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Capital Adequacy Framework 2018

INTRODUCTION
BACKGROUND:

Prior to 1988, there was no uniform international regulatory standard for setting bank capital
requirements. In 1988, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS)! developed the Capital
Accord, which is known as Basel |, to align the capital adequacy requirements applicable especially
to banks in G-10 countries. Basel | introduced two key concepts. First, it defined what banks could
hold as capital, as well as designating capital as Tier 1 or Tier 2 according to its loss-absorbing or
creditor-protecting characteristics. The second key concept introduced in Basel | was that capital
should be held by banks in relation to the risks that they face. The major risks faced by banks relate to
the assets held on balance sheet. Thus, Basel I calculated banks’ minimum capital requirements as a
percentage of assets, which are adjusted in accordance with their riskiness and assigning risk weights
to assets. Higher weights are assigned to riskier assets such as corporate loans, and lower weights are
assigned to less risky assets, such as exposures to government.

The BCBS released the "International Convergence of Capital Measurements and Capital Standards:
Revised Framework", popularly known as Basel Il, on June 26, 2004. This framework was updated in
November 2005 and a comprehensive version of the framework was issued in June 2006. Basel Il
builds significantly on Basel | by increasing the sensitivity of capital to key bank risks. In addition,
Basel Il recognizes that banks can face a multitude of risks, ranging from the traditional risks
associated with financial intermediation to the day-to-day risks of operating a business as well as the
risks associated with the ups and downs of the local and international economies. As a result, the
framework more explicitly associates capital requirements with the particular categories of major
risks that banks face.

The Basel Il capital framework also recognizes that large, usually internationally active banks have
already put in place sophisticated approaches to risk measurement and management based on
statistical inference rather than judgment alone. Thus, the framework allows banks, under certain
conditions, to use their own ‘internal’ models and techniques to measure the key risks that they face,
the probability of loss, and the capital required to meet those losses. In developing the new
framework, the Basel Committee incorporated many elements that help to promote a sound and
efficient financial system over and above the setting of minimum capital requirements. Keeping this
in mind, the Basel II framework incorporates three complementary ‘pillars’ that draw on the range of
approaches to help ensure that banks are adequately capitalized commensurate with their risk profile.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) released a comprehensive reform package
entitled “Basel III: A global regulatory framework for more resilient banks and banking systems”
(known as Basel 11 capital regulations) in December 2010. Basel 11l reforms are the response of the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) to improve the banking sector’s ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the risk of spill
over from the financial sector to the real economy. Basel Il reforms strengthen the bank-level i.e.
micro prudential regulation, with the intention to raise the resilience of individual banking institutions
in periods of stress. Besides, the reforms have a macro prudential focus also, addressing system wide

! The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision is a committee of banking supervisory authorities that was established by the
central bank governors of the Group of Ten countries in 1975. It consists of senior representatives of bank supervisory authorities
and central banks from Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, lItaly, Japan, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain, Sweden,
Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the United States. It usually meets at the Bank for International Settlements in Basel,
Switzerland where its permanent Secretariat is located.
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risks, which can build up across the banking sector, as well as the procyclical amplification of these
risks over time. These new global regulatory and supervisory standards mainly seek to raise the
quality and level of capital (Pillar 1) to ensure that banks are better able to absorb losses on both a
going concern and a gone concern basis, increase the risk coverage of the capital framework,
introduce leverage ratio to serve as a backstop to the risk-based capital measure, raise the standards
for the supervisory review process (Pillar 2) and public disclosures (Pillar 3) etc. The macro
prudential aspects of Basel 111 are largely enshrined in the capital buffers. Both buffers i.e. the capital
conservation buffer and the countercyclical buffer are intended to protect the banking sector from
periods of excess credit growth.

The recommendations of Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's (BCBS) on capital accord are
important guiding frameworks for the regulatory capital requirement to the banking industry all over
the world and Nepal is no exception. Realizing the significance of capital for ensuring the safety and
soundness of the banks and the banking system, at large, Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has developed
and enforced capital adequacy requirement based on international practices with an appropriate level
of customization based on domestic state of market developments.

With a view of adopting the international best practices, NRB has already issued the Basel Il
implementation action plan and expressed its intention to adopt the Basel 111 framework, albeit in a
simplified form. In line with the international development and thorough discussion with the
stakeholders, evaluation and assessment of impact studies at various phases, this framework has been
drafted. This framework provides the guidelines for the implementation of Basel 11l framework in
Nepal. The Basel Il capital regulations continue to be based on three-mutually reinforcing Pillars,
viz. minimum capital requirements, supervisory review of capital adequacy, and market discipline of
the Basel Il capital adequacy framework.

OBJECTIVE:

The main objective of this framework is to develop the safe and sound financial system by way of
sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management practices. This framework is intended to
ensure that each bank maintains a level of capital which,

(i) isadequate to protect its depositors and creditors.
(ii) is commensurate with the risk associated activities and profile of the bank.

(iii) promotes public confidence in the banking system.

PRE-REQUISITES:

The effective implementation of this framework is dependent on various factors. Some such pre-
requisites are:

(i) Implementation of Basel Core Principles for effective Banking Supervision.
(if) Adoption of the sound practices for the management of Operational Risk.
(iii) Formulation and adoption of comprehensive risk management policy.

(iv) Adherence to high degree of corporate governance.

RESPONSIBILITY:

The board of directors of each bank shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining, at all times,
an adequate level of capital. The capital standards herein are the minimum that is acceptable for
banks that are fundamentally sound, well managed, and have no material financial or operational
weaknesses. Thus, banks are generally expected to operate above the limits prescribed by this
framework.
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SCOPE OF APPLICATION:

This framework shall be applicable to all Infrastructure Development Banks licensed to conduct
banking business in Nepal under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

This capital adequacy framework shall be applicable uniformly to all Infrastructure Development
Bankson a stand-alone basis and as well as on a consolidated basis, where the bank is member of a
consolidated banking group. For the purpose of capital adequacy, the consolidated bank means a
group of financial entities, parent or holding company of which a bank is a subsidiary. All banking
and other relevant financial activities (both regulated and unregulated) conducted within a group
including a bank shall be captured through consolidation. Thus, majority owned or controlled
financial entities should be fully consolidated. If any majority owned subsidiary institutions are not
consolidated for capital purposes, all equity and other regulatory capital investments in those entities
attributable to the group will be deducted and the assets and liabilities, as well as third party capital
investments in the subsidiary will be removed from the bank’s balance sheet for capital adequacy
purposes.

APPROACHES TO IMPLEMENTATION:

"International Convergence for Capital Measurements and Capital Standards: Revised Framework",
Basel Il under Pillar 1, provides three distinct approaches for computing capital requirements for
credit risk and three other approaches for computing capital requirements for operational risk. These
approaches for credit and operational risk are based on increasing risk sensitivity and allow banks to
select an approach that is most appropriate to the stage of development of banks’ operations.

The products and services offered by the Nepalese Banks are still largely conventional, in comparison
to other economies. Considering the starting phase of credit rating practice of Nepal, Standardized
Approach (SA) to measure credit risk while Basic Indicator Approach and an indigenous Net Open
Position Approach for measurement of Operational Risk and Market Risk is adopted respectively.
These approaches have been customized to deal with Nepalese financial and banking sector
development.

IMPLEMENTATION OF ADVANCED APPROACHES:

This framework prescribes the simplest of the available approaches at the initial phase with a vision
to move onto more complex and risk sensitive approaches as the market gradually gains maturity.
Banks willing to adopt advanced approaches, even for internal purposes, should obtain prior written
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank on providing evidence that they have the resources and the
capability to adopt the proposed approaches.

A bank will not be allowed to choose to revert to a simpler approach once it has been approved for a
more advanced approach without supervisory approval. However, if a supervisor determines that a
bank using a more advanced approach no longer meets the qualifying criteria for an advanced
approach, it may allow the bank to revert to a simpler approach for some or all of its operations, until
it meets the conditions specified by the supervisor for returning to a more advanced approach.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY REQUIREMENT

Capital ratios will be as follows:-

S.No. Regulatory Capital Percentage

1. Minimum Common Equity Capital Ratio 4.50

2 Capital Conservation Buffer 2.50

3. Minimum common equity plus capital conservation buffer 7.00

4 Minimum Tier 1 Capital 6.00
(Excluding conservation buffer)

5. Minimum Total Capital 8.50
(Excluding conservation buffer)




6. Minimum Total Capital (including conservation buffer ) 11.00
7. Counter Cyclical Buffers* 0-2.5

Leverage Ratio 3

*Note: For FY 2082/83 countercyclical buffer will remain at 0 percent.

2.1

REQUIREMENTS FOR CAPITAL FUNDS

DEFINITION OF CAPITAL.:
The qualifying regulatory capital shall consist of the sum of the following components:
a. Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)
A. Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
B. Additional Tier 1 (AT1)
b.Tier 2 Capital (Supplementary Capital)
The detailed description of the components of regulatory capital and their elements are as follows:
I. Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)

The key element of capital on which the main emphasis should be placed is Tier 1 (core) capital,
which is comprised of equity capital and disclosed reserves. This key element of capital is the basis
on which most market judgments of capital adequacy are made; and it has a crucial bearing on profit
margins and a bank's ability to compete.

The BCBS has therefore concluded that capital, for supervisory purposes, should be defined in two
tiers in a way, which will have the effect of requiring at least 50% of a bank's capital base to consist
of a core element comprised of equity capital and published reserves from post-tax retained earnings.

In order to rank as Tier 1, capital must be fully paid up, have no fixed servicing or dividend costs
attached to it and be freely available to absorb losses ahead of general creditors. Capital also needs to
have a very high degree of permanence if it is to be treated as Tier 1.

Tier 1 Capital shall consist of Common Equity Tier 1 Capital and Additional Tier 1 Capital and the
sum of these two capitals shall be total Tier 1 Capital.

A.Common Equity Tier 1 Capital

Common Equity is recognized as the highest quality component of capital and is the primary form of
funding which ensures that a bank remains solvent. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital consists of the
sum of the following elements:

(i)  Common shares issued by the bank that meet the criteria for classification as common shares for
regulatory purposes;

(i) Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in Common Equity
Tier 1;

(iif) ~ Statutory General Reserve;
(iv) Retained Earnings available for distribution to shareholders;

(v)  Un-audited current year cumulative profit, after all provisions including staff bonus and taxes.
Where such provisions are not made, this amount shall not qualify as Common Equity Tier 1 capital,

(vi) Capital Redemption Reserves created in lieu of redeemable instruments
(vii) Capital Adjustment reserves created in respect of increasing the capital base of the bank
(viii) Dividend Equalization Reserves;

(ix)  Other free reserves if any



)

(xi)

Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Common Equity
Tier 1 capital;and

Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Common Equity
Tier 1 capital.

Criteria for common shares issued by the bank for inclusion in Common Equity:

Common shares must meet the following criteria to be included in Common Equity Tier 1 Capital:

1.
2.
3.

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

All common shares should be voting shares.
Represent the most subordinate claim in liquidation of the bank.

Be entitled to a claim on the residual assets which is proportional to its share of paid up
capital, after all senior claims have been repaid in liquidation (i.e. has an unlimited and
variable claim, not a fixed or capped claim).

Principal is perpetual and never repaid outside of liquidation (except discretionary
repurchases / buy backs or other means of effectively reducing capital in a discretionary
manner with the prior approval of NRB which is allowable under relevant law as well as
guidelines, if any, issued by NRB in the matter).

The bank does nothing to create an expectation at issuance that the instrument will be
bought back, redeemed or cancelled nor do the statutory or contractual terms provide any
feature which might give rise to such an expectation.

Distributions are paid out of distributable items. The level of distributions is not in any way
tied or linked to the amount paid up at issuance and is not subject to a contractual cap
(except to the extent that a bank is unable to pay distributions that exceed the level of
distributable items). As regards ‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on
common shares will be paid out of the current year’s profit and retained earnings only.

There are no circumstances under which the distributions are obligatory. Non-payment is
therefore not an event of default.

Distributions are paid only after all legal and contractual obligations have been met and
payments on more senior capital instruments have been made. This means that there are no
preferential distributions, including in respect of other elements classified as the highest
quality issued capital.

It is the paid up capital that takes the first and proportionately greatest share of any losses
as they occur. Within the highest quality capital, each instrument absorbs losses on a going
concern basis proportionately and pari passu with all the others.

The paid up amount is classified as equity capital (i.e. not recognised as a liability) for
determining balance sheet insolvency.

The paid up amount is classified as equity under the relevant accounting standards.

It is directly issued and paid up and the bank cannot directly or indirectly have funded the
purchase of the instrument. Banks should also not extend loans against their own shares.

The paid up amount is neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related
entity nor subject to any other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the
seniority of the claim.

Paid up capital is only issued with the approval of the owners of the issuing bank, either
given directly by the owners or, if permitted by applicable law, given by the Board of
Directors or by other persons duly authorized by the owners.

Paid up capitalis clearly and separately disclosed in the bank’s balance sheet.



B. Additional Tier 1 Capital

Additional Tier 1 Capital mainly include the instruments either classified as equity under relevant
accounting standards but are not the common equity share and hence not includible in common
equity tier 1 or the instrument which are classified as liabilities under relevant accounting
standards, however it is includible in additional tier 1 capital. Under Basel Il hon-common equity
elements to be included in Tier 1 capital should absorb losses while the bank remains a going
concern. Towards this end, one of the important criteria for Additional Tier 1 instruments is that
these instruments should have principal loss absorption through either (i) conversion into common
shares at an objective pre-specified trigger point or (ii) a write-down mechanism which allocates
losses to the instrument at a pre-specified trigger point. Banks should not issue Additional Tier 1
capital instruments to the retail investors.

Additional Tier 1 capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

Q) Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI) issued
by the bank that meet the criteria for inclusion in Additional Tier 1 capital;

(i) Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of PNCPS instruments included in
Additional Tier 1 capital; and

(iii)  Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Additional Tier 1 capital.
Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Additional Tier 1:

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI)
issued by the bank must meet the following criteria to be included in Additional Tier 1 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ etc.
set up by the bank for this purpose)and fully paid up.

2. The claim of investors of the instruments shall be:
(A) In case of Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Shares:
(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares; and

(if) Subordinated to the claims of PDIs, all Tier 2 regulatory capital instruments, depositors and
general creditors of the bank.

(B) In case of Perpetual Debt Instruments:

(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares and perpetual non-cumulative
preference shares;

(ii) Subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and subordinated debt of the
bank;

3. The instruments should be neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related
entity or other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim
vis-a-vis bank creditors

4. The instruments should be perpetual, i.e., there is no maturity date and there are no step-ups
or other incentives to redeem

5. The Instruments may be callable at the initiative of the issuer. This means that the
instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, banks may issue instruments
with a “Call Option” at a particular date subject to following conditions:

a) The call option on the instrument is permissible after ten years of issuance;
b) To exercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB;

c) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be
exercised.; and

d) Banks must not exercise a call unless:



6.

10.

11.

12.

i. The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better quality
and the replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for
the income capacity of the bank; or

ii. The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the call option is exercised.

Any repayment of principal (eg. through repurchase, buy-back or redemption) must be with
prior approval of NRB and banks should not assume or create market expectations that
supervisory approval will be given. Banks may repurchase / buy-back / redeem the
instruments only if:

(@) The bank replaces such instrument with capital of the same or better quality and the
replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for the income
capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the repurchase / buy-back / redemption.

Dividend/coupon discretion:

a. The bank must have full discretion at all times to cancel distributions/payments;

b. Cancellation of discretionary payments must not be an event of default;

¢. Banks must have full access to cancelled payments to meet obligations as they fall due;and

d. Cancellation of distributions/payments must not impose restrictions on the bank except in
relation to distributions to common stockholders.

Dividends/coupons must be paid out of ‘distributable items’:

As regards ‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on perpetual non-cumulative
preference shares (PNCPS) will be paid out of current year’s profit only.

In case of coupon on perpetual debt instruments (PDI), it is clarified that if the payment of
coupons on perpetual debt instrument (PDI) is likely to result in losses in the current year,
their declaration should be precluded to that extent.

Dividend on PNCPS and coupons on PDI should not be paid out of retained earnings /
reserves. In other words, payment of dividend/coupons should not have the effect of reducing
retained earnings / reserves.

The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive dividend/coupon feature, that is a
dividend/coupon that is reset periodically based in whole or in part on the banking
organization's credit standing.

The dividend/coupon shall not be cumulative. i.e., dividend/coupon missed in a year will not
be paid in future years, even if adequate profit is available and the level of CAR conforms to
the regulatory minimum. When dividend/coupon is paid at a rate lesser than the prescribed
rate, the unpaid amount will not be paid in future years, even if adequate profit is available
and the level of CAR conforms to the regulatory minimum.

The instrument cannot contribute to liabilities exceeding assets if such a balance sheet test
forms part of requirement to prove insolvency by any law or otherwise.

Instruments classified as liabilities for accounting purposes must have principal loss
absorption through either (i) conversion to common shares at an objective pre-specified
trigger point or (ii) a write-down mechanism which allocates losses to the instrument at a pre-
specified trigger point. The write-down will have the following effects:

a. Reduce the claim of the instrument in liquidation;

b. Reduce the amount re-paid when a call is exercised; and



c. Partially or fully reduce coupon/dividend payments on the instrument.

13. Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence(as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) can have purchased
the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly have funded the purchase of the
instrument

14. The instrument cannot have any features that hinder recapitalization, such as provisions that
require the issuer to compensate investors if a new instrument is issued at a lower price
during a specified time frame.

. Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital

The Supplementary (Tier 2) Capital includes reserves whichhave been passed through the profit
and loss account and all other capital instruments eligible and acceptable for capital purposes.
Elements of the Tier 2 capital will be reckoned as capital funds up to a maximum of 100 percent
of Tier 1 capital arrived at, after making regulatory adjustments/deductions. In case, where the
Tier 1 capital of a bank is negative, the Tier 2 capital for regulatory purposes shall be considered
as zero and hence the capital fund, in such cases, shall be equal to the core capital.

The Tier 2 Capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

(i)  Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative
Preference Shares (RCPS)] issued by the bank with the maturity of 5 years or above;

(i)  Subordinated term debt fully paid up with a maturity of 5 years or above; unsecured and
subordinated to the claim of other creditors, free of restrictive clauses and not redeemable
before maturity. Since, subordinated term debt is not normally available to participate in
the losses; the amount eligible for inclusion in the capital adequacy calculations is limited
to 50% of core capital. Moreover, to reflect the diminishing value of these instruments as a
continuing source of strength, a cumulative discount (amortization) factor of 20% per
annum shall be applied for capital adequacy computations, during the last 5 years to
maturity.

(iii) Hybrid capital instruments combine certain characteristics of debt and certain
characteristics of equity. Each such instrument has a particular feature, which can be
considered to affect its quality as capital. Where these instruments have close similarities to
equity, in particular when they are able to support losses on an ongoing basis without
triggering liquidation, they may be included in Tier 2 capital with approval from Nepal
Rastra Bank.

(iv) Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in Tier 2
capital;

(v)  General loan loss provision limited to a maximum of 1.25% of total Credit Risk Weighted
Exposures. General loan loss provision refers to provisions or loan- loss reserves held
against future, presently unidentified losses are freely available to meet losses which
subsequently materialize and therefore the provisions created in respect of Performing
Loans only qualify for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital. Provisions ascribed to identify
deterioration of particular assets or loan liabilities, whether individual or grouped, should
be excluded. Accordingly, for instances provision on rescheduled/restructured and
classified loans, both an individual account and portfolio level shall be excluded. The
additional loan loss provisions created in respect of Personal Guarantee loans, third party
collateral loans and loans in excess of Single Obligor Limits are specific provisions and
hence cannot be included under this category. Such provisions however can be deducted
from the gross exposures while calculating risk weighted exposures for credit risk.



However, provisions created in excess of the regulatory requirements or provisions which
are not attributable to identifiable losses in any specific loans shall be allowed to be
included in the General Loan Loss Provision.

(vi) Exchange equalization reserves created by banks as a cushion for unexpected losses arising
out of adverse movements in foreign currencies.

(vii) Investment adjustment reserves created as a cushion for adverse price movements in banks’
investments falling under “Available for Sale” category.

(viii) Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be
fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market
values and tax consequences of revaluation. Therefore, revaluation reserves will be eligible
up to 50% for treatment as Tier 2 capital and limited to a maximum of 2% of total Tier 2
capital subject to the condition that the reasonableness of the revalued amount is duly
certified by the internal auditor of the bank.

(ix) Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Tier 2
capital

(X)  Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Tier 2 capital.
Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital:

Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares (RCPS)], Subordinated Term Debt and Hybrid Capital Instrument issued by the bank must
meet the following criteria to be included in Tier 2 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ etc.
set up by the bank for this purpose) and fully paid up.

2. These instruments could be either perpetual or dated with a maturity period of minimum 5
years or more and there should be no step-ups or other incentives to redeem. The perpetual
instruments shall be cumulative. The dated instruments could be cumulative or non-
cumulative.

3. The dated instruments (both cumulative and non-cumulative) shall be subjected to a
progressive discount for capital adequacy purposes over the last five years of their tenor, as
they approach maturity as indicated in the table below for being eligible for inclusion in Tier
2 capital.

Remaining Maturity of Instruments Rate of Discount (%0)
Less than one year 100
One year and more but less than two years 80
Two years and more but less than three years 60
Three years and more but less than four years 40
Four years and more but less than five years 20

4. Dividend/Coupon/Rate of Interest

(i)  The dividend/coupon payable to the investors may be either at a fixed rate or at a
floating rate referenced to a market determined rupee interest benchmark rate.

(i)  The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive coupon feature, i.e. a coupon that is
reset periodically based in whole or in part on the banks’ credit standing.

5. The claims of the investors in instruments shall be:
(i)  senior to the claims of investors in instruments eligible for inclusion in Tier 1 capital;
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(i)  subordinate to the claims of all depositors and general creditors of the bank; and

(iii) Neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related entity or other
arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim vis-a-
vis bank creditors.

6. The instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, the Instruments may be
callable at the initiative of the issuer. Banks may issue instruments with a “Call Option” at a
particular date subject to the following conditions:

(i)  The call option on the instrument is permissible after five years of issuance;
(i)  To exercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB; and

(iii) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be
exercised; and

(iv) Banks must not exercise a call unless:

(a) The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better
quality and the replacement of this capital is done on conditions which are
sustainable for the income capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum
capital requirements after the call option is exercised.

7. Treatment in Bankruptcy / Liquidation

The investor must have no rights to accelerate the repayment of future scheduled payments
(coupon or principal) except in bankruptcy and liquidation

8. Prohibition on Purchase / Funding of Instruments

Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence (as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) should purchase
the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly should fund the purchase of the
instrument. Banks should also not grant advances against the security of the debt instruments
issued by them.

2.2 LOSS ABSORPTION OF ADDITIONAL TIER 1 INSTRUMENTS (AT1) AT THE PRE-
SPECIFIED TRIGGER

I.  Level of Pre-Specified Trigger and Amount of Equity to be Created by Conversion / Write-down

1. As abank’s capital conservation buffer falls to 0.625% of RWE, it will be subject to 100%
profit retention requirements. One of the important objectives of capital conservation buffer
is to ensure that a bank always operates above minimum Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
level. Therefore, a pre-specified trigger for loss absorption through conversion/write-down
of the level of Additional Tier 1 (AT1) instruments (PNCPS and PDI) at CET1 of 5.125%
of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + 25% of capital conservation buffer of 2.5% i.e.
0.625%) has been fixed.

2. The write-down/conversion must generate CET1 under applicable Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards equal to the written-down / converted amount net of tax, if any.

3. The aggregate amount to be written-down / converted for all such instruments on breaching
the trigger level must be at least the amount needed to immediately return the bank’s CET1
ratio to the trigger level or, if this is not sufficient, the full principal value of the
instruments. Further, the issuer should have full discretion to determine the amount of AT1
instruments to be converted/written-down subject to the amount of conversion/write-down
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not exceeding the amount which would be required to bring the total Common Equity ratio
to 7% of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + capital conservation buffer of 2.5%).

The conversion / write-down of AT1 instruments are primarily intended to replenish the
equity in the event it is depleted by losses. Therefore, banks should not use conversion /
write-down of AT1 instruments to support expansion of balance sheet by incurring further
obligations / booking assets. Accordingly, a bank whose total Common Equity ratio slips
below 7% due to losses and is still above 5.125% i.e. trigger point, should seek to expand
its balance sheet further only by raising fresh equity from its existing shareholders or
market and the internal accruals. However, fresh exposures can be taken to the extent of
amortization of the existing ones. If any expansion in exposures, such as due to drawdown
of sanctioned borrowing limits, is inevitable, this should be compensated within the
shortest possible time by reducing other exposures. The bank should maintain proper
records to facilitate verification of these transactions by its internal auditors, statutory
auditors and supervisors.

Il. Types of Loss Absorption Features

5.

Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion / write-down features. Further, banks
may issue a single AT1 instrument having both conversion and write-down features with
the option for conversion or write-down to be exercised by the bank. Whichever option is
exercised; it should be exercised across all investors of a particular issue.

When a bank breaches the pre-specified trigger of loss absorbency of AT1 and the equity is
replenished either through conversion or write-down, such replenished amount of equity
will be excluded from the common equity tier 1 of the bank for the purpose of determining
the proportion of earnings to be paid out as dividend in terms of rules laid down for
maintaining capital conservation buffer. However, once the bank has attained a total
Common Equity ratio of 7% without counting the replenished equity capital, that point
onwards, the bank may include the replenished equity capital for all purposes.

The conversion / write-down may be allowed more than once in case a bank hits the pre-
specified trigger level subsequent to the first conversion / write-down which was partial.

I11. Treatment of AT1 Instruments in the event of Liquidation, Merger, Acquisitionof the Bank

8.

10.

11.

If a bank goes into liquidation before the ATL1 instruments have been written-down/
converted, these instruments will absorb losses in accordance with the order of seniority
indicated in the offer document, and legal provisions governing priority of charges. The
order of seniority indicated in the offer document should be in compliance with the
provision of Banking Act.

If a bank goes into liquidation after the AT1 instruments have been written-down, the
holders of these instruments will have no claim on the proceeds of liquidation.

If a bank is merged with/acquired by any other bank before the AT1 instruments have been
written-down/converted, these instruments will become part of the corresponding
categories of regulatory capital of the new bank emerging after the merger/acquisition.

If a bank is merged with any other bank after the non-equity regulatory capital instruments
have been written-down, these cannot be written-up by the merged entity.

IV. Fixation of Conversion Price, Capping of Number of Shares / Voting Rights

12.

13.

Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion features either based on price fixed at
the time of issuance or based on the market price prevailing at the time of conversion.

There will be a possibility of the debt holders receiving a large number of shares in the
event the share price is very low at the time of conversion. Thus, debt holders will end up
holding the number of shares and attached voting rights exceeding the legally permissible

R



limits. Banks should therefore, always keep sufficient headroom to accommodate the
additional equity due to conversion without breaching any of the statutory / regulatory
ceilings especially that for maximum shareholdings and maximum voting rights per
investors / group of related investors. In order to achieve this, banks should cap the number
of shares and / or voting rights in accordance with relevant laws and regulations on
Ownership and Governance of banks. Banks should adequately incorporate these features
in the terms and conditions of the instruments in the offer document.

V. Order of Conversion / Write-down of Various Types of AT1 Instruments

14. The instruments should be converted / written-down in order in which they would absorb
losses in a gone concern situation. Banks should indicate in the offer document clearly the
order of conversion / write-down of the instrument in question vis-a-vis other capital
instruments which the bank has already issued or may issue in future.

2.3 DEDUCTIONS FROM CORE (TIER 1) CAPITAL:

Banks shall be required to deduct the following items from the CET 1 capital for capital adequacy
purposes. The claims that have been deducted from CET1 capital shall be exempted from risk weights
for the measurement of credit risk.

a.

@ - o o

Book value of goodwill and all other intangible assets.

Goodwill and all other intangible assets should be deducted from CET1 capital including any
goodwill included in the valuation of significant investments in the capital of banking, financial
and insurance entities which are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation.

The full amount of the intangible assets is to be a deducted net of any associated deferred tax
liabilities which would be extinguished if the intangible assets become impaired or
derecognized under the relevant accounting standards. For this purpose, the definition of
intangible assets would be in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Assets computed as under should be deducted from Common Equity Tier 1

(i) Deferred Tax Assets associated with the accumulated tax losses

(ii) Deferred Tax Assets other than associated with the accumulated tax losses, net of Deferred Tax
Liabilities, if any. Where the Deferred Tax Liabilities is in excess of the Deferred Tax Assets
(excluding Deferred Tax Assets associated with accumulated losses), the excess shall neither be
adjusted against item (i) nor added to CET1 capital.

Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent not written off. e.g. VRS expense, preliminary
expense, share issue expense, deferred revenue expenditure, etc.

Investment in Securities of financial institutions licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank?.
All Investments in equity of institutions with financial interest.
Investments in equity of institutions in excess of the prescribed limits.

Investments arising out of underwriting commitments that have not been disposed within a year
from the date of commitment.

Reciprocal crossholdings of bank capital artificially designed to inflate the capital position of
the bank.

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

2 Investment in shares of institutions, where the waiver has been explicitly provided by NRB are subject to risk weight of 100%
and shall not be deducted from Tier 1 capital.
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The amount of the cash flow hedge reserve which relates to the hedging of items that are not fair valued
on the balance sheet (including projected cash flows) should be derecognized in the calculation of CET1.
This means that positive amounts should be deducted and negative amounts should be added back. This
treatment specifically identifies the element of the cash flow hedge reserve that is to be derecognized for
prudential purposes. It removes the element that gives rise to artificial volatility in Common Equity, as in
this case the reserve only reflects one half of the picture (the fair value of the derivative, but not the
changes in fair value of the hedged future cash flow).

J-  Defined Benefit Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities

Defined benefit pension fund liabilities, as included on the balance sheet, must be fully recognized in the
calculation of Common Equity Tier 1 capital (i.e. Common Equity Tier 1 capital cannot be increased
through derecognizing or unrecognition of these liabilities). For each defined benefit pension fund that is
an asset on the balance sheet, the asset should be deducted in the calculation of Common Equity Tier 1
net of any associated deferred tax liability which would be extinguished if the asset should become
impaired or derecognized under the relevant accounting standards.

K.  Any other instruments as stipulated by Nepal Rastra Bank, from time to time.
CAPITAL FUNDS:

The capital fund is the summation of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital and Tier 1 capital is the total of
common equity Tier 1 (CET1) and additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital. A bank should compute capital
ratios in the following manner:

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Total Risk Weighted Exposure*
Eligible Tier 1 Capital

Total Risk Weighted Exposure
Eligible Total Capital

Total Risk Weighted Exposure

*Total Risk Weighted Exposure = RWE* on Credit Risk +RWE on Market Risk+ RWE on
Operational Risk + Supervisory Adjustment under Pillar 11

¥RWE-= Risk weighted Exposure
# Capital Adequacy Ratio

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio =

Tier 1 capital ratio =

Total Capital (CAR?) =

(i) Banks shall maintain a minimum total capital (MTC) of 8.5% of total risk weighted assets
(RWASs) i.e. capital to risk weighted assets (CRAR).

(i) Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital must be at least 4.5% of risk-weighted assets (RWAS)
i.e. for credit risk + market risk + operational risk on an ongoing basis.

(iii) Tier 1 capital must be at least 6% of RWASs on an ongoing basis. Thus, within the minimum
Tier 1 capital, Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted maximum at 1.5% of RWAs.

(iv) Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital plus Tier 2 Capital) must be at least 8.5% of RWAs on an
ongoing basis. The sum total of the different components of the Tier 2 capitals will be limited
to the sum total of the various components of the Tier 1 capital net of deductions as specified
in paragraph2.3. In case the Tier 1 capital is negative, Tier 2 capital shall be considered to be
"Nil" for regulatory capital adequacy purposes and hence, in such a situation, the capital fund
shall be equal to the Tier 1 capital.

(v) If a bank has complied with the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 and Tier 1 capital ratios,
then the excess Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted for compliance with the minimum
CRAR of 8.5% of RWA:s.
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(vi) In addition to the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital of 4.5% of RWAs, banks are also
required to maintain a capital conservation buffer (CCB) of 2.5% of RWAs in the form of
Common Equity Tier 1 capital.

For the purpose of all prudential exposure limits linked to capital funds, the ‘capital funds’
will exclude the applicable capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer as
and when activated, but include Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. It may be noted
that the term ‘Common Equity Tier 1 capital’ does not include capital conservation buffer
and countercyclical capital buffer.

2.5 CAPITAL CONSERVATION BUFFER
A. Objective

1.

The capital conservation buffer (CCB) is designed to ensure that banks build up capital buffers
during normal times (i.e. outside periods of stress) which can be drawn down as losses are
incurred during a stressed period. The requirement is based on simple capital conservation rules
designed to avoid breaches of minimum capital requirements.

Outside the period of stress, banks should hold buffers of capital above the regulatory minimum.
When buffers have been drawn down, one way banks should look to rebuild them is through
reducing discretionary distributions of earnings. Banks may also choose to raise new capital from
the market as an alternative to conserving internally generated capital. However, if a bank decides
to make payments in excess of the constraints imposed as explained above, the bank, with the
prior approval of NRB, would have to use the option of raising capital from the market equal to
the amount above the constraint which it wishes to distribute.

The capital conservation buffer can be drawn down only when a bank faces a systemic or
idiosyncratic stress. A bank should not choose in normal times to operate in the buffer range
simply to compete with other banks and win market share. This aspect would be specifically
looked into by NRB during the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process. If, at any time, a
bank is found to have allowed its capital conservation buffer to fall in normal times, particularly
by increasing its risk weighted assets without a commensurate increase in the Common Equity
Tier 1 Ratio (although adhering to the restrictions on distributions), this would be viewed
seriously. In addition, such a bank will be required to bring the buffer to the desired level within a
time limit prescribed by NRB. The banks which draw down their capital conservation buffer
during a stressed period should also have a definite plan to replenish the buffer as part of its
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process and strive to bring the buffer to the desired level
within a time limit agreed to with NRB during the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process.

The framework of capital conservation buffer will strengthen the ability of banks to withstand
adverse economic environment conditions, will help increase banking sector resilience both going
into a downturn, and provide the mechanism for rebuilding capital during the early stages of
economic recovery. Thus, by retaining a greater proportion of earnings during a downturn, banks
will be able to help ensure that capital remains available to support the ongoing business
operations / lending activities during the period of stress. Therefore, this framework is expected
to help reduce pro-cyclicality.

B. The Framework

5.

Banks are required to maintain a capital conservation buffer of 2.5%, comprised of Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, above the regulatory minimum capital requirement of 8.50%. Banks should
not distribute capital (i.e. pay dividends or bonuses in any form) in case capital level falls within
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this range. However, they will be able to conduct business as normal when their capital levels fall
into the conservation range as they experience losses. Therefore, the constraints imposed are
related to the distributions only and are not related to the operations of banks. The distribution
constraints imposed on banks when their capital levels fall into the range increase as the banks’
capital levels approach the minimum requirements. The Table below shows the minimum capital
conservation ratios a bank must meet at various levels of the Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratios.

Minimum capital conservation standards for individual bank
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio Minimum Capital Conservation Ratios
(expressed as a percentage of earnings)
4.5% - 5.125% 100%
>5.125% - 5.75% 80%
>5.75% - 6.375% 60%
>6.375% - 7.0% 40%
>7.0% 0%

For example, a bank with a Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio in the range of 5.125% to 5.75%
is required to conserve 80% of its earnings in the subsequent financial year (i.e. payout no more
than 20%).

The Common Equity Tier 1 ratio includes amounts used to meet the minimum Common Equity
Tier 1 capital requirement of 4.5%, but excludes any additional Common Equity Tier 1 needed to
meet the 7% Tier 1 and 8.5% Total Capital requirements. For example, a bank maintains Common
Equity Tier 1 capital of 8.5% and has no Additional Tier 1 or Tier 2 capital. Therefore, the bank
would meet all minimum capital requirements, but would have a zero conservation buffer and
therefore, the bank would be subjected to 100% constraint on distributions of capital by way of
dividends, share-buybacks and discretionary bonuses.

The following represents other key aspects of the capital conservation buffer requirements:

(i) Elements subject to the restriction on distributions: Dividends and share buybacks,
discretionary payments on other Tier 1 capital instruments and discretionary bonus
payments to staff would constitute items considered to be distributions. Payments which do
not result in depletion of Common Equity Tier 1 capital, (for example includes certain scrip
dividend) are not considered distributions.

(ii) Definition of earnings: Earnings are defined as distributable profits before the deduction
of elements subject to the restriction on distributions mentioned at (i) above. Earnings are
calculated after the tax which would have been reported had none of the distributable items
been paid. As such, any tax impact of making such distributions are reversed out. If a bank
does not have positive earnings and has a Common Equity Tier 1 ratio less than 7%, it
should not make positive net distributions.

(iii) Additional supervisory discretion: Supervisors have the additional discretion to impose
time limits on banks operating within the buffer range on a case-by-case basis. In any case,
supervisors should ensure that the capital plans of banks seek to rebuild buffers over an
appropriate timeframe.
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26 COUNTERCYCLICAL BUFFER

A.

1.

Introduction

Losses incurred in the banking sector can be extremely large when a downturn is preceded by a
period of excess credit growth. These losses can destabilize the banking sector and spark a
vicious circle, whereby problems in the financial system can contribute to a downturn in the real
economy that then feeds back on to the banking sector. These interactions highlight the particular
importance of the banking sector building up additional capital defenses in periods where the
risks of system-wide stress are growing markedly.

The countercyclical buffer aims to ensure that banking sector capital requirementstake account of
the macro-financial environment in which banks operate. The primary aim of the countercyclical
capital buffer requirement is to use a buffer of capital to achieve the broader macro prudential
goal of protecting the banking sector from periods of excess aggregate credit growth that have
often been associated with the build-up of system-wide risk.Protecting the banking sector in this
context is not simply ensuring that individual banks remain solvent through a period of stress, as
the minimum capital requirement and capital conservation buffer are together designed to fulfill
this objective. Rather, the aim is to ensure that the banking sector in aggregate has the capital on
hand to help maintain the flow of credit in the economy without its solvency being questioned,
when the broader financial system experiences stress after a period of excess credit growth.
Therefore, excess aggregate credit growth is judged to be associated witha build-up of system-
wide risk to ensure the banking system has a buffer of capital to protectit against future potential
losses.

The countercyclical buffer regime consists of the following elements:

a) Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor credit growth and other indicators that may signal a buildup
of system-wide risk and make assessments of whether credit growth is excessive and
isleading to the buildup of system-wide risk. Based on this assessment Nepal Rastra Bank
will put in place a countercyclical buffer requirement when circumstances warrant.
Thisrequirement will be released when system-wide risk crystallises or dissipates.

b) The countercyclical buffer requirement to which a bank is subject to extend the size of the
capital conservation buffer. Banks will be subject to restrictions on distributions if they do
not meet the requirement.

. Countercyclical buffer requirements

Nepal Rastra Bank has adopted the Credit to GDP ratio, macro-economic variable, as guide for
reference point for taking buffer decisions. Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor Credit to GDP ratio
at least annually and calculate Credit to GDP gap, i.e. the gap between Credit to GDP ratio and its
Trend. The intensity of Credit to GDP gap shall be the indication of the extent of thebuildup of
system-wide risk i.e. If the credit-to-GDP ratio is significantly above its trend (i.e. there is a large
positive gap) then this is an indication that credit may have grown to excessive levels relative to
GDP.The Credit to GDP gap shall be calculated as follows:

Credit to GDP Gap(t) = Credit to GDP Ratio(t) — Trendt)

The countercyclical buffer requirement will vary between 0 and 2.5% of risk weighted assets,
depending on the extent of thebuild- up of system-wide risk. The credit to GDP gap of 5 points
shall be taken as cut off points of excess credit growth level. The increase by additional 1 point of
credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 point shall require buffer requirement of 0.5% i.e. each increase
in every one points in credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 points shall require to raise the buffer
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requirement by each 0.5%. For this purpose, trend is defined as average of credit to GDP ratio of
past 10 years. The following table shows the countercyclical buffer requirement in case of excess
credit growth:

Countercyclical Buffer Requirement

Credit to GDP Gap Buffer Requirement in Terms of CET 1
Up to 5 points 0%

5 to 6 points 0.5%

6 to 7 points 1.0%

7 to 8 points 1.5%

8 to 9 points 2.0%

above 9 points 2.5%

The banks are required to raise level of the buffer by up to 12 months, but shall be allowed to
decrease the level of the buffer with immediate effect. The bank, not being able to maintain the
countercyclical buffer requirement, shall not be allowed to distribute its earnings.

2.7 LEVERAGE RATIO
A. Rationale and Objective

One of the underlying features of the crisis was the build-up of excessive on-and off-balance
sheet leverage in the banking system. In many cases, banks built up excessive leverage while still
showing strong risk based capital ratios. During the most severe part of the crisis, the banking
sector was forced by the market to reduce its leverage in a manner that amplified downward
pressure on asset prices, further exacerbating the positive feedback loop between losses, declines
in bank capital, and contraction in credit availability. Therefore, under Basel Ill, a simple,
transparent, non-risk based leverage ratio has been introduced. The leverage ratio is calibrated to
act as a credible supplementary measure to the risk based capital requirements. The leverage ratio
is intended to achieve the following objectives:

a) Constrain the build-up of leverage in the banking sector, helping avoid destabilising
deleveraging processes which can damage the broader financial system and the economy; and

b) Reinforce the risk based requirements with a simple, non-risk based “backstop” measure.
B. Definition and Calculation of the Leverage Ratio

a) Banks are required to maintain minimum leverage ratio of 3 percent of their total assets.

b) The leverage ratio shall be maintained on a quarterly basis, which is calculated as:

Leverage Ratio = Capital Measure
Exposure Measure

I. Capital Measure

a) The capital measure for the leverage ratio should be based on the definition of Tier 1
capital as set out in paragraph 2.1

b) Items that are deducted completely from capital do not contribute to leverage, and should
therefore also be deducted from the measure of exposure.
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Exposure Measure

The exposure measure for the leverage ratio should generally follow the accounting measure
of exposure. In order to measure the exposure consistently with financial accounts, the
following should be applied:

a) On-balance sheet, non-derivative exposures will be net of specific provisions and
valuation adjustments (e.g. prudent valuation adjustments for Available for Sale (AFS)
and Held For Trading (HFT) positions, credit valuation adjustments);

b) Physical or financial collateral, guarantees or credit risk mitigation purchased is not
allowed to reduce on-balance sheet exposures; and

c) Netting of loans and deposits is not allowed.

Component of Exposure Measure

(i)

(i)

On-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should include all items of assets reported in their accounting balance sheet for the
purposes of calculation of the leverage ratio. In addition, the exposure measure should
include the following treatments for Securities Financing Transactions (e.g. repo and reverse
repo agreements, CBLO) and derivatives.

Repurchase agreements and securities finance

Securities Financing Transactions (SFTs) are a form of secured funding and therefore, an
important source of balance sheet leverage that should be included in the leverage ratio.
Therefore, banks should calculate SFT for the purposes of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) the accounting measure of exposure; and

(b) without netting various long and short positions with the same counterparty.

(iii) Derivatives

Derivatives create two types of exposure: an “on-balance sheet” present value reflecting the
fair value of the contract (often zero at outset but subsequently positive or negative depending
on the performance of the contract), and a notional economic exposure representing the
underlying economic interest of the contract. Banks should calculate exposure in respect of
derivatives, including where a bank sells protection using a credit derivative, for the purposes
of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) The accounting measure of exposure (positive Marked to Market (MTM) value) plus an
add-on for Potential Future Exposure (PFE) calculated according to the Current Exposure
Method; and

(b) Without netting the MTM values and PFEs in respect of various long and short positions
with the same counterparty.

(iv) Other Off-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should calculate the off balance sheet items. These includecommitments (including
liquidity facilities), unconditionally cancellable commitments, directcredit substitutes,
acceptances, standby letters of credit, trade letters of credit, failedtransactions and unsettled
securities. The off balance sheet items are source of the potentially significant leverage.
Therefore, bank should calculate the above off balance sheet items for the purposes of the
leverage ratio by applying a uniform 100% credit conversion factor (CCF).
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3. Credit Risk — The Standardized Approach

1. As per the standards developed by the BCBS Committee, NRB permits banks a choice between
two broad methodologies for calculating their capital requirements for credit risk. One
alternative, the Standardized Approach, will be to measure credit risk in a standardized manner,
supported by external credit assessments.®

2. The other alternative, the Internal Ratings-based Approach, which is subject to the explicit
approval of the bank’s supervisor, would allow banks to use their internal rating systems for
credit risk.

3. NRB prescribes the standardized approach for credit risk however, the banks could adopt the
advance approach, the Internal Rating-based Approach but they are not allowed to revert to a
simpler approach without approval of NRB.

4. The credit equivalent amount of Securities Financing Transactions (SFT)* and OTC derivatives
that expose a bank to counterparty credit risk®is not included in this section, which will be
updated in next revision. In determining the risk weights in the standardized approach, banks
may use assessments by external credit assessment institutions or external credit rating agencies
recognized as eligible for capital purposes by NRB in accordance with the criteria defined in
part B below. Exposures should be risk-weighted net of specific provisions.

In order to be consistent with the Basel framework, the credit risk for the regulatory capital purpose shall be
computed by segregating the exposure in the following 9 categories®

a) Claims on government & central bank
b) Claims on other official entities
c) Claims on banks
d) Claims on corporate & securities firms
e) Claims secured by commercial real state
f) Past due claims
g) Higher-risk categories
h) Other assets
i) Off balance sheet items

A. Individual claims

a. Claims on sovereigns

1. Claims on sovereigns and their central banks will be risk weighted as follows:

3The banks follow the methodology used by one institution, ICRA Nepal’s, the use of ICRA Nepal’s credit ratings is an example only; those of
some other external credit assessment institutions could equally well be used. The ratings used throughout this document, therefore, do not express
any preferences or determinations on external assessment institutions by the NRB.

4Securities Financing Transactions (SFT) are transactions such as repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, security
lending and borrowing, and margin lending transactions, where the value of the transactions depends on the market valuations and
the transactions are often subject to margin agreements.

5The counterparty credit risk is defined as the risk that the counterparty to a transaction could default before the final settlement of
the transaction’s cash flows. An economic loss would occur if the transactions or portfolio of transactions with the counterparty has
a positive economic value at the time of default. Unlike a firm’s exposure to credit risk through a loan, where the exposure to credit
risk is unilateral and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, the counterparty credit risk creates a bilateral risk of loss: the
market value of the transaction can be positive or negative to either counterparty to the transaction. The market value is uncertain
and can vary over time with the movement of underlying market factors.

5Two more categories i.e. claims on regulatory retail portfolio and claims secured by residential properties have been withdrawn.
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Credit AAAto AA- | A+to A- | BBB+to BBB- | BB+ to B- Below B- Unrated
Assessment

Risk Weight | 0% 20% 50% 100% 150% 100%

2. All claims on Government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank could be risk weighed at 0 %.
3. Claims on the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the European
Central Bank, and European Community may receive a 0% risk weight.

al. Claims on government public sector entities (PSEs)
4. Claims on domestic and foreign public sector entities will be risk-weighted as follows:

Credit AAA to AA- A+to A- | BBB+ to BBB- BB+ to B- Below B- | Unrated
Assessment
Risk Weight 20% 50% 50% 100% 150% 100%

5. Furthermore, claims on domestic PSEs can be assigned risk weight of 0%, if strict lending rules apply to
these entities and a declaration of bankruptcy is not possible because of their special public status and
government or sovereign guarantee in case of default.

b. Claims on other official entities i.e. multilateral development banks (MDBs)

6. Multilateral Development Banks (MDBs) will be eligible for a 0% risk weight.
7. The standard risk weight for claims on Multilateral Development Banks except above will be assigned
risk weights as per claims on foreign public sector entities.

c. Claims on banks

8. All claims, irrespective of currency and sovereign ownership, excluding investment in equity shares
and other instruments eligible for capital funds, on domestically incorporated banks and financial
institutions that have complied Capital Adequacy Requirements will be risk weighed at 20% while for
the rest, it will be 100%.Banks may use the publicly available information of the immediately
preceding quarter of the respective banks and financial institutions to acquire their status on capital
adequacy.

9. Claims on foreign banks shall be risk weighed as per credit assessment subject to the floor of 20%. The
primary basis for applying the credit assessment shall be the country of incorporation of the bank.

Credit AAA to AA- A+ to A- BBB+ to BBB- BB+ to B- Below B- Unrated
Assessment

Risk Weight 20% 50% 50% 100% 150% 100%
Risk  Weight | 20% 20% 20% 50% 150% 100%
for short- term

claims®

"World Bank Group comprised, of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) and the International
Finance Corporation (IFC), Asian Development Bank (ADB), Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank (AlIB), African Development
Bank (AfDB), European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), Inter-American Development Bank (IADB),
European Investment Bank (EIB), European Investment Fund (EIF), Nordic Investment Bank (NIB), Caribbean Development Bank
(CDB), Islamic Development Bank (IDB), and Council of Europe Development Bank (CEDB).
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d. Claims on corporate and securities firms

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Claims on securities firms may be treated as claims on banks provided these firms are subject to
supervisory and regulatory arrangements comparable to those under this Framework (including, in
particular, risk-based capital requirements).® Otherwise such claims would follow the rules for claims
on corporate.

The table provided below illustrates the risk weighting of rated corporate claims, including claims in
insurance companies. The standard risk weight for unrated claims on corporate will be 100%. No claim
on an unrated corporate may be given a risk weight preferential to that assigned to its sovereign of
incorporation.

Credit Assessment | AAA toAA- | A+ to A- BBB+ toBB- Below BB- | Unrated

Risk Weight 20% 50% 100% 150% 100%

As part of the supervisory review process, supervisor may also consider whether the credit quality of
corporate claims held by individual banks should warrant a standard risk weight higher than 150%.

Supervisor may increase the standard risk weight for unrated claims where they judge that a higher risk
weight is warranted by the overall default experience in banking system. As part of the supervisory
review process, supervisors may also consider whether the credit quality of corporate claims held by
individual banks should warrant a standard risk weight higher than 100%.

Banks are permitted to risk weight all corporate claims at 100% without regard to external ratings as
defined in paragraph 11. Supervisor should be ensured that banks apply a single consistent approach,
i.e. either to use ratings wherever available or not at all. To prevent “cherry-picking” of external
ratings, banks should obtain supervisory approval before utilising this option to risk weight all
corporate claims at 100%.

e. Claims secured by commercial real estate

15.

16.

In view of the experience in numerous countries that commercial property lending has been a recurring
cause of troubled assets in the banking industry. Over the past few decades, NRB hold to the view that
claims secured by mortgages on commercial real estate do not, in principle, justify other than a 100%
weighting of the loans secured.

Commercial real estate hereby refers to mortgage of office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction etc.

f. Past due loans

17.

18.

The unsecured portion of any loan, which currently is or has been past due for more than 90 days at
any point of time during last two years, net of specific provisions, will be risk-weighted as follows:

o 150% risk weight when specific provisions are less than 50% of the outstanding amount of the loan;

e 100% risk weight when specific provisions are no less than 50% of the outstanding amount of the
loan;

For the purpose of defining the secured portion of the past due loan, eligible collateral and guarantees
will be the same as for credit risk mitigation purposes.

8Short-term claims are defined as having an original maturity of three months or less. But claims with (contractual) original
maturity under the 3 months which are expected to be or practiced of rolled over (i.e. where the effective maturity is longer than 3
months) do not qualify for this preferential treatment for capital adequacy purposes.

That is, capital requirements that are comparable to those applied to banks in this Framework. Implicit in the meaning of the word
“comparable” is that the securities firm (but not necessarily its parent) is subject to consolidated regulation and supervision with
respect to any downstream affiliates.
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g. Higher-risk categories

19.

The following claims will be risk weighted at 150% or higher:

Claims on sovereigns, PSEs, banks, and securities firms rated below B-.
Claims on corporates rated below BB-.

Past due loans except as set out in paragraph 17.

Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are not listed in the

stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be risk weighed at 150%

net of provisions.

e Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are listed in the
stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be risk weighed at 100%

net of provisions.
e Investments in mutual fund shall be risk weighted at 100%.

o Reflecting the higher risks associated with some other assets, such as venture capital and private

equity investments shall be applied 150% risk weight.

h. Other assets

20.

21.
22.

The standard risk weight for all other assets will be 100%. Investments in equity or regulatory capital
instruments issued by banks or securities firms will be risk weighted at 100%, unless deducted from

the capital base according to point 2 of this framework.
Interest receivable/claim on government securities will be risk-weighted at 0%.
Cash items in the process of collection can be risk-weighted at 20%.

i. Off-balance sheet items'®

23.

Off-balance sheet items will be converted into equivalent risk weight as follows:

Off Balance Sheet Exposure Risk
Weight

Any commitments those are unconditionally cancelable at any time by the bank without 0%
prior notice, or that effectively provide for automatic cancellation due to deterioration in
a borrower’s creditworthiness (for example bills under collection)
Forward exchange contracts. 10%
Short Term Trade-related contingencies 20%
Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured against an
underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank and are short term in
nature. This includes documentary letters of credit, shipping guarantees issued and any
other trade-related contingencies with an original maturity up to six months.
Undertaking to provide a commitment on an off-balance sheet items 20%
Unsettled'! securities and foreign exchange transactions between bank to bank and 20%
between bank and customer
Long Term Trade-related contingencies 50%

Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured against an
underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank and are long term in
nature. This includes documentary letters of credit, shipping guarantees issued and any

10Banks can use credit conversion factor as per standardized approach for assigning risk weights. In this document,
uniform credit conversion factors (CCF) as 100% is recommended.
11 An unsettled transaction is one where delivery of the instrument is due to take place against receipt of cash, but
which remain unsettled five business days after the due settlement date.
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other trade-related contingencies with an original maturity of over six months. In case
the usance letter of credit is discounted, the risk weight shall be calculated on net basis.

Performance-related contingencies 50%

Contingent liabilities, which involve an irrevocable obligation to pay a third party in the
event that counterparty fails to fulfill or perform a contractual non-monetary obligation,
such as delivery of goods by a specified date etc. This includes issue of performance
bonds, bid bonds, warranties, indemnities, underwriting commitments and standby
letters of credit in relation to a non-monetary obligation of counterparty under a
particular transaction.

Long term irrevocable Credit Commitments 50%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of more than 1
year. This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital loans
e.g. overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance exposures.

Short term irrevocable Credit Commitments 20%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of upto 1 year.
This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital loans e.g.
overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance exposures.

Repurchase agreements, securities lending, securities borrowing, reverse repurchase 100%
agreements and equivalent transactions

This includes sale and repurchase agreements and asset sales with recourse, where the
credit risk remains with the purchasing bank.

Direct credit substitutes 100%

Any irrevocable off-balance sheet obligations which carry the same credit risk as a direct
extension of credit, such as an undertaking to make a payment to a third party in the
event that a counterparty fails to meet a financial obligation or an undertaking to a
counterparty to acquire a potential claim on another party in the event of default by that
party, constitutes a direct credit substitute. This includes potential credit exposures
arising from the issue of financial guarantees and credit derivatives, confirmation of
letters of credit(acceptances and endorsements), issue of standby letters of credit serving
as financial guarantees for loans, securities and any other financial liabilities, and bills
endorsed under bill endorsement lines (but which are not accepted by, or have the prior
endorsement of, another bank).

Unpaid portion of partly paid shares and securities 100%
Unpaid Guarantee Claim 200%
Other Contingent Liabilities 100%

B. External credit assessment
1. The recognition process

24. External credit assessment institution (ECAI) should meet the criteria listed in the paragraph below.
The assessments of ECAIs may be recognized on a limited basis, e.g. by type of claims or by
jurisdiction. The supervisory process for recognizing ECAIls should be made public to avoid
unnecessary barriers to entry.

2. Eligibility criteria

25. An ECAI must satisfy each of the following six criteria.
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Objectivity: The methodology for assigning credit assessments must be rigorous, systematic, and
subject to some form of validation based on historical experience. Moreover, assessments must be
subject to ongoing review and responsive to changes in financial condition. Before being recognized
by supervisors, an assessment methodology for each market segment, including rigorous back testing,
must have been established for at least one year and preferably three years.

Independence: An ECAI should be independent and should not be subject to political or economic
pressures that may influence the rating. The assessment will not be valid if there exist any kind of
conflict of interest in the assessment process.

International access/Transparency: The individual assessments should be available to both domestic
and foreign institutions with legitimate interests and at equivalent terms. In addition, the general
methodology used by the ECAI should be publicly available.

Disclosure: An ECAI should disclose the following information: its assessment methodologies,
including the definition of default, the time horizon, and the meaning of each rating; the actual default
rates experienced in each assessment category; and the transitions of the assessments, e.g. the
likelihood of AA ratings becoming A over time.

Resources: An ECAI should have sufficient resources to carry out high quality credit assessments.
These resources should allow for substantial ongoing contact with senior and operational levels within
the entities assessed in order to add value to the credit assessments. Such assessments should be based
on methodologies combining qualitative and quantitative approaches.

Credibility: To some extent, credibility is derived from the criteria above. In addition, the reliance on
an ECAT’s external credit assessments by independent parties (investors, insurers, trading partners) is
evidence of the credibility of the assessments of an ECAI. The credibility of an ECAI is also
underpinned by the existence of internal procedures to prevent the misuse of confidential information.

C. Implementation considerations

1. The mapping process

26.

27.

28.

29.

Supervisors will be responsible for assigning eligible ECAIs’ assessments to the risk weights available
under the standardized risk weighting framework, i.e. deciding which assessment categories
correspond to which risk weights. The mapping process should be objective and should result in a risk
weight assignment consistent with that of the level of credit risk reflected in the tables above. It should
cover the full spectrum of risk weights.

When conducting such a mapping process, factors that supervisors should assess include, among
others, the size and scope of the pool of issuers that each ECAI covers, the range and meaning of the
assessments that it assigns, and the definition of default used by the ECAL. In order to promote a more
consistent mapping of assessments into the available risk weights and help supervisors in conducting
such a process, Annex 2 provides guidance as to how such a mapping process may be conducted.
Banks must use the chosen ECAIs and their ratings consistently for each type of claim, for both risk
weighting and risk management purposes. Banks will not be allowed to “cherry-pick” the assessments
provided by different ECAISs.

Banks must disclose ECAIs that they use for the risk weighting of their assets by type of claims, the
risk weights associated with the particular rating grades as determined by supervisors through the
mapping process as well as the aggregated risk-weighted assets for each risk weight based on the
assessments of each eligible ECAL.

2. Multiple assessments

30.

31.

32.

If there is only one assessment by an ECAI chosen by a bank for a particular claim, that assessment
should be used to determine the risk weight of the claim.

If there are two assessments by ECAIs chosen by a bank which map into different risk weights, the
higher risk weight will be applied.

If there are three or more assessments with different risk weights, the assessments corresponding to the
two lowest risk weights should be referred to and the higher of those two risk weights will be applied.
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3. Issuer versus issues assessment

33. Where a bank invests in a particular issue that has an issue-specific assessment, the risk weight of the
claim will be based on this assessment. Where the bank’s claim is not an investment in a specific
assessed issue, the following general principles apply.

e In circumstances where the borrower has a specific assessment for an issued debt — but the bank’s
claim is not an investment in this particular debt — a high quality credit assessment (one which
maps into a risk weight lower than that which applies to an unrated claim) on that specific debt may
only be applied to the bank’s unassessed claim if this claim ranks pari passu or senior to the claim
with an assessment in all respects. If not, the credit assessment cannot be used and the unassessed
claim will receive the risk weight for unrated claims.

e In circumstances where the borrower has an issuer assessment, this assessment typically applies to
senior unsecured claims on that issuer. Consequently, only senior claims on that issuer will benefit
from a high quality issuer assessment. Other unassessed claims of a highly assessed issuer will be
treated as unrated. If either the issuer or a single issue has a low quality assessment (mapping into a
risk weight equal to or higher than that which applies to unrated claims), an unassessed claim on the
same counterparty will be assigned the same risk weight as is applicable to the low quality
assessment.

34. Whether the bank intends to rely on an issuer- or an issue-specific assessment, the assessment must
take into account and reflect the entire amount of credit risk exposure the bank has with regard to all
payments owed to it.*2

35. In order to avoid any double counting of credit enhancement factors, no supervisory recognition of
credit risk mitigation techniques will be taken into account if the credit enhancement is already
reflected in the issue specific rating (see paragraph 49).

4. Domestic currency and foreign currency assessments

36. Where unrated exposures are risk weighted based on the rating of an equivalent exposure to that
borrower, the general rule is that foreign currency ratings would be used for exposures in foreign
currency. Domestic currency ratings, if separate, would only be used to risk weight claims
denominated in the domestic currency.

5. Level of application of the assessment

37. External assessments for one entity within a corporate group cannot be used to risk weight other
entities within the same group.

6. Unsolicited ratings®

38. As a general rule, banks should use solicited ratings from eligible ECAIs. It is allowed banks to use
unsolicited ratings in the same way as solicited ratings. However, there may be the potential for ECAls
to use unsolicited ratings to put pressure on entities to obtain solicited ratings. Such behaviour, when
identified, should cause supervisors to consider whether to continue recognising such ECAIls as
eligible for capital adequacy purposes.

D. The standardised approach — credit risk mitigation
1. Overarching issues
(i) Introduction

39. Banks use a number of techniques to mitigate the credit risks to which they are exposed. For example,
exposures may be collateralised by first priority claims, in whole or in part with cash, cash items or

2For example, if a bank is owed both principal and interest, the assessment must fully take into account and reflect the credit risk
associated with repayment of both principal and interest.

13Rating agency's assessment of a borrower's usually based only on publicly available information. The borrower neither involves
nor pays for assessment.
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40.

securities, a loan exposure may be guaranteed by a third party, or a bank may buy a credit derivative to
offset various forms of credit risk. Additionally, banks may agree to net loans owed to them against
deposits from the same counterparty.

Where these techniques meet the requirements for legal certainty as described in paragraph 46 and 47
below, the revised approach to CRM allows a wider range of credit risk mitigants to be recognised for
regulatory capital purposes.

(i) General remarks

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

The framework set out in this Section is applicable to the banking book exposures in the standardised
approach.

No transaction in which CRM techniques are used should receive a higher capital requirement than an
otherwise identical transaction where such techniques are not used.

The effects of CRM will not be double counted. Therefore, no additional supervisory recognition of
CRM for regulatory capital purposes will be granted on claims for which an issue-specific rating is
used that already reflects that CRM. As stated in paragraph 34 of the section on the standardised
approach, principal-only ratings will also not be allowed within the framework of CRM.

While the use of CRM techniques reduces or transfers credit risk, it simultaneously may increase other
risks (residual risks). Residual risks include legal, operational, liquidity and market risks. Therefore, it
is imperative that banks employ robust procedures and processes to control these risks, including
strategy; consideration of the underlying credit; valuation; policies and procedures; systems; control of
roll-off risks; and management of concentration risk arising from the bank’s use of CRM techniques
and its interaction with the bank’s overall credit risk profile. Where these risks are not adequately
controlled, supervisors may impose additional capital charges or take other supervisory actions as
outlined in Pillar 2 i.e. supervisory review process.

The Pillar 3 i.e. disclosure requirements must also be observed for banks to obtain capital relief in
respect of any CRM techniques.

(iii) Legal certainty

46.

47.

In order for banks to obtain capital relief for any use of CRM techniques, the following minimum
standards for legal documentation must be met.

All documentation used in collateralised transactions and for documenting on-balance sheet netting,
guarantees and credit derivatives must be binding on all parties and legally enforceable in all relevant
jurisdictions. Banks must have conducted sufficient legal review to verify this and have a well founded
legal basis to reach this conclusion, and undertake such further review as necessary to ensure
continuing enforceability.

2. Overview of Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques

(i) Collateralised transactions

48.

49.

A collateralised transaction is one in which:

e banks have a credit exposure or potential credit exposure; and

o that credit exposure or potential credit exposure is hedged in whole or in part by collateral posted
by a counterparty14 or by a third party on behalf of the counterparty.

Where banks take eligible financial collateral (e.g. cash or securities, more specifically defined in

paragraph 61), they are allowed to reduce their credit exposure to a counterparty when calculating their

capital requirements to take account of the risk mitigating effect of the collateral.

Overall framework and minimum conditions

50.

Banks may opt for either the simple approach, which, similar to the 1988 Accord, substitutes the risk
weighting of the collateral for the risk weighting of the counterparty for the collateralized portion of
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51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

the exposure (generally subject to a 20% floor), or for the comprehensive approach, which allows
fuller offset of collateral against exposures, by effectively reducing the exposure amount by the value
ascribed to the collateral. Banks may operate under either, but not both, approaches in the banking
book, but only under the comprehensive approach in the trading book. Partial collateralization is
recognized in both approaches. Mismatches in the maturity of the underlying exposure and the
collateral will only be allowed under the comprehensive approach.

However, before capital relief will be granted in respect of any form of collateral, the standards set out
below in paragraphs 52 to 55 must be met.

In addition to the general requirements for legal certainty set out in paragraphs 46 and 47, the legal
mechanism by which collateral is pledged or transferred must ensure that the bank has the right to
liquidate or take legal possession of it, in a timely manner, in the event of the default, insolvency or
bankruptcy (or one or more otherwise-defined credit events set out in the transaction documentation)
of the counterparty (and, where applicable, of the custodian holding the collateral). Furthermore, banks
must take all steps necessary to fulfill those requirements under the law applicable to the bank’s
interest in the collateral for obtaining andmaintaining an enforceable security interest, e.g. by
registering it with a registrar, or for exercising a right to net or set off in relation to title transfer
collateral.

In order for collateral to provide protection, the credit quality of the counterparty and the value of the
collateral must not have a material positive correlation. For example, securities issued by the
counterparty — or by any related group entity — would provide little protection and so would be
ineligible.

Banks must have clear and robust procedures for the timely liquidation of collateral to ensure that any
legal conditions required for declaring the default of the counterparty and liquidating the collateral are
observed, and that collateral can be liquidated promptly.

Where the collateral is held by a custodian, banks must take reasonable steps to ensure that the
custodian segregates the collateral from its own assets.

(ii) On-balance sheet netting

56.

Banks are not allowed netting arrangements for loans and deposits from on-balance sheet.

(iii) Guarantees and credit derivatives

o7.

58.

Where guarantees or credit derivatives are direct, explicit, irrevocable and unconditional, and
supervisors are satisfied that banks fulfill certain minimum operational conditions relating to risk
management processes they may allow banks to take account of such credit protection in calculating
capital requirements.

Detailed operational requirements are given below in paragraphs 62 to 63.

(iv) Maturity mismatch

59.

Where the residual maturity of the CRM is less than that of the underlying credit exposure a maturity
mismatch occurs. Where there is a maturity mismatch and the CRM has an original maturity of less
than one year, the CRM is not recognized for capital purposes.

(v) Currency mismatch

60.

Where the credit protection is denominated in a currency different from that in which the exposure is
denominated — i.e. there is a currency mismatch — the amount of the exposure deemed to be
protected will be reduced by the application of a haircut. It shall be subject to supervisory haircut of
10%.

3. Collateral

61.

The following collateral instruments are eligible for recognition in the simple approach:
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(a) Cash (as well as certificates of deposit or comparable instruments issued by the lending bank) on deposit
with the bank which is incurring the counterparty exposure.>®

(b) Gold.
(c) Debt securities rated by a recognized external credit assessment institution where these are either:

o at least BB- when issued by sovereigns or PSEs that are treated as sovereigns by the Nepal rastra
bank; or

o at least BBB- when issued by other entities (including banks and securities firms).
(d) Debt securities not rated by a recognized external credit assessment institution where these are:
e issued by a bank; and
o listed on a recognized exchange; and
o classified as senior debt; and

o all rated issues of the same seniority by the issuing bank must be rated at least BBB- by a
recognised external credit assessment institution; and

o the bank holding the securities as collateral has no information to suggest that the issue justifies a
rating below BBB-; and

o the supervisor is sufficiently confident about the market liquidity of the security.

(e) Equities (including convertible bonds) that are included in a main index.

() Undertakings for Collective Investments in Transferable Securities (UCITS) and mutual funds where:
e a price for the units is publicly quoted daily; and
e the UCITS/mutual fund is limited to investing in the instruments listed in this paragraph.*’

4. Guarantees and credit derivatives

(i) Operational requirements

Operational requirements common to guarantees and credit derivatives

62. A guarantee (counter-guarantee) or credit derivative must represent a direct claim on the protection provider and
must be explicitly referenced to specific exposures or a pool of exposures, so that the extent of the cover is
clearly defined and incontrovertible. Other than non-payment by a protection purchaser of money due in respect
of the credit protection contract it must be irrevocable; there must be no clause in the contract that would allow
the protection provider unilaterally to cancel the credit cover or that would increase the effective cost of cover as
a result of deteriorating credit quality in the hedged exposure.18 It must also be unconditional; there should be no
clause in the protection contract outside the direct control of the bank that could prevent the protection provider
from being obliged to pay out in a timely manner in the event that the original counterparty fails to make the
payment(s) due.

15 Cash funded credit linked notes issued by the bank against exposures in the banking book which fulfill the criteria for credit
derivatives will be treated as cash collateralized transactions.

16\When cash on deposit, certificates of deposit or comparable instruments issued by the lending bank are held as collateral at a
third-party bank in a non-custodial arrangement, if they are openly pledged/assigned to the lending bank and if the
pledge/assignment is unconditional and irrevocable, the exposure amount covered by the collateral (after any necessary haircuts for
currency risk) will receive the risk weight of the third-party bank.

17 However, the use or potential use by a UCITS/mutual fund of derivative instruments solely to hedge investments
listed in this paragraph and paragraph 76 shall not prevent units in that UCITS/mutual fund from being eligible
financial collateral.

Note that the irrevocability condition does not require that the credit protection and the exposure be maturity
matched; rather that the maturity agreed ex ante may not be reduced ex post by the protection provider.
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Additional operational requirements for guarantees

63.

In addition to the legal certainty requirements in paragraphs 46 and 47 above, in order for a guarantee
to be recognized, the following conditions must be satisfied:

() On the qualifying default/non-payment of the counterparty, the bank may in a timely manner
pursue the guarantor for any monies outstanding under the documentation governing the
transaction. The guarantor may make one lump sum payment of all monies under such
documentation to the bank, or the guarantor may assume the future payment obligations of the
counterparty covered by the guarantee. The bank must have the right to receive any such
payments from the guarantor without first having to take legal actions in order to pursue the
counterparty for payment.

(b) The guarantee is an explicitly documented obligation assumed by the guarantor.

(c) Except as noted in the following sentence, the guarantee covers all types of payments the
underlying obligor is expected to make under the documentation governing the transaction, for
example notional amount, margin payments etc. Where a guarantee covers payment of principal
only, interests and other uncovered payments should be treated as an unsecured amount in
accordance with paragraph 68.

(ii) Range of eligible guarantors (counter-guarantors)/protection providers

64.

Credit protection given by the following entities will be recognized:

e sovereign entities, 19 PSEs, banks20 and securities firms with a lower risk weight than the

counterparty;

e other entities rated A- or better. This would include credit protection provided by parent, subsidiary

and affiliate companies when they have a lower risk weight than the obligor.

(iiii) Risk weights

65.

66.

The protected portion is assigned the risk weight of the protection provider. The uncovered portion of
the exposure is assigned the risk weight of the underlying counterparty.

Materiality thresholds on payments below which no payment is made in the event of loss are
equivalent to retained first loss positions and must be deducted in full from the capital of the bank
purchasing the credit protection.

Proportional cover

67.

Where the amount guaranteed, or against which credit protection is held, is less than the amount of the
exposure, and the secured and unsecured portions are of equal seniority, i.e. the bank and the guarantor
share losses on a pro-rata basis capital relief will be afforded on a proportional basis: i.e. the protected
portion of the exposure will receive the treatment applicable to eligible guarantees/credit derivatives,
with the remainder treated as unsecured.

(iv) Sovereign guarantees and counter-guarantees

68.

Supervisor may extend this treatment to portions of claims guaranteed by the sovereign (or central
bank), where the guarantee is denominated in the domestic currency and the exposure is funded in that
currency. A claim may be covered by a guarantee that is indirectly counter-guaranteed by a sovereign.
Such a claim may be treated as covered by a sovereign guarantee provided that:

19 This includes the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the European Central Bank and the

European Community, as well as those MDBs referred to in footnote 6.

20 This includes other MDBs.
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(a) the sovereign counter-guarantee covers all credit risk elements of the claim;

(b) both the original guarantee and the counter-guarantee meet all operational requirements for
guarantees, except that the counter-guarantee need not be direct and explicit to the original claim; and

(c) the supervisor is satisfied that the cover is robust and that no historical evidence suggests that the
coverage of the counter-guarantee is less than effectively equivalent to that of a direct sovereign

guarantee.

5. Other items related to the treatment of CRM techniques

(i) Treatment of pools of CRM techniques

69.

In the case where a bank has multiple CRM techniques covering a single exposure (e.g. a bank has
both collateral and guarantee partially covering an exposure), the bank will be required to subdivide
the exposure into portions covered by each type of CRM technique (e.g. portion covered by collateral,
portion covered by guarantee) and the risk-weighted assets of each portion must be calculated
separately. When credit protection provided by a single protection provider has differing maturities,
they must be subdivided into separate protection as well.

6. Methodology for using CRM
Step 1: Identify the accounts eligible for capital relief under credit risk mitigation.

Step 2: Assess the value of the exposure and the eligible collateral.

Step 3: Adjust the value of the eligible collateral in respect of the supervisory haircut in terms of currency

mismatch and other eligibility requirements.

Step 4: Compare the adjusted value of the collateral with the outstanding exposure.

Step 5: The value of the eligible CRM is the lower of the adjusted value of the collateral and the

outstanding exposure.

Step 6: Plot the eligible CRM in the appropriate category of credit risk.

The sum total of net amount of eligible CRM as per “Form No.4 Exhibit of claims with eligible credit risk
mitigants” shall be consistent with the “Form No.3 Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants” prescribed in this
framework.

4.
4.1

4.2

OPERATIONAL RISK
GENERAL:

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate internal processes, people, and systems,
or from external events. Operational risk itself is not a new concept, and well run banks have been
addressing it in their internal controls and corporate governance structures. Basel 1l requires banks to
hold capital against the risk of unexpected loss that could arise from the failure of operational
systems.

The most important types of operational risk involve breakdowns in internal controls and corporate
governance. Such breakdowns can lead to financial losses through error, fraud, or failure to perform
in a timely manner or cause the interests of the bank to be compromised in some other way, for
example, by its dealers, lending officers or other staff exceeding their authority or conducting
business in an unethical or risky manner. Other aspects of operational risk include major failure of
information technology systems or events such as major fires or other disasters.

BASIC INDICATOR APPROACH:

Under the basic indicator approach, banks must hold capital for operational risk equal to the average
over the previous three years of a fixed percentage (denoted alpha) of positive annual gross income.
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4.3

The capital charge for operational risk may be expressed as follows:

Keia = [Y.(Glinxo)]/N

where:
Kaia = capital charge under the Basic Indicator Approach
GI = annual gross income, where positive, over the previous three years
N = number of the previous three years for which gross income is positive
o = 15 percent.

NRB shall review the capital requirement produced by this approach for general credibility,
especially in relation to a bank's peers and in the event that credibility is lacking, appropriate
supervisory action under Review Process shall be considered.

Figures for the year, in which annual gross income is negative or zero, should be excluded from both
the numerator and denominator while calculating the average. In case where the gross income for all
of the last three years is negative, 5% of total credit and investments net of specific provisions shall
be considered as the capital charge for operational risk. For this purpose, investments shall comprise
of money at call, placements, investment in government securities and other investments irrespective
of currency.

Similarly, in case of new banks which have not completed a year of operation and whose average
gross income cannot be measured reliably, they shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross income.
These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year onwards. But, based on the
reasonableness of the so computed capital charge for Operation Risk, during the first three years of
operation, review process may require additional proportion of capital charge if deemed necessary.

GROSS INCOME:

Gross income is defined as "net Interest Income™ plus "non interest income". It is intended that this
measure should:

a. be gross of any provisions (e.g. for unpaid interest) and write-offs made during the year;

b. be gross of operating expenses, exclude reversal during the year in respect of provisions and
write-offs made during the previous year(s);

c. exclude income/gain recognized from the disposal of items of movable and immovable
property;
d. exclude realized profits/losses from the sale of securities in the “held to maturity” category;
e. exclude other extraordinary or irregular items of income and expenditure
Thus, for the purpose of capital adequacy requirements, gross income shall be summation of:

a. Total operating income as disclosed in Profit and Loss account prepared as per NRB directive
no.4. The total operating income comprises of:

1. Net Interest Income

2. Commission and Discount Income
3. Other Operating Income

4. Exchange Fluctuation Income

b. Addition/deduction in the Interest Suspense during the period.

R



44

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Banks shall use the annual audited financials of the last three years for the computation of gross
income under this approach. Hence, the capital requirement for operational risk for a whole financial
year shall remain constant. Until the accounts are finalized for the financial year, banks shall use the
provisional figures for the period, which should be validated by the internal auditor of the bank.

COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Operational risk-weighted assets are determined by multiplying the operational risk capital charge by
9.09 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.

MARKET RISK
DEFINITION OF MARKET RISK:

Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising
from adverse movements in market prices. The major constituents of market risks are:

a. The risks pertaining to interest rate related instruments;
b. Foreign exchange risk (including gold positions) throughout the bank; and
c. The risks pertaining to investment in equities and commodities.

Banks shall recognize measure, present and disclose the investment instruments as per the
requirement of NFRSs.

NET OPEN POSITION APPROACH:

Out of the various components of market risk, foreign exchange risk is predominating at this time.
The effects of other forms of market risk are minimal. Thus, a net open position approach has been
devised to measure the capital requirement for market risk. As evidenced by its hame, this approach
only addresses the risk of loss arising out of adverse movements in exchange rates. This approach
will be consolidated over time to incorporate other forms of market risks as they start to gain
prominence.

The designated Net Open Position approach requires banks to allocate a fixed proportion of capital in
terms of its net open position. The banks should allocate 5 percentages of their net open positions as
capital charge for market risk.

NET OPEN POSITION:

Net open position is the difference between financial assets and financialliability in a currency. In
other words, it is the uncovered volume of asset or liability which is exposed to changes in the
exchange rates of currencies. For capital adequacy requirements the net open position includes both
net spot positions as well as net forward positions.

For capital adequacy purposes, banks should calculate their net open position in the following
manner:

a. Calculate the net open position in each of the foreign currencies.
b. Convert the net open positions in each currency to NPR as per prevalent exchange rates.

c. Aggregate the converted net open positions of all currencies, without paying attention to long
or short positions.

d. This aggregate shall be the net open position of the bank.
COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Risk-weighted assets in respect of market risk are determined by multiplying the capital charges by
9.09 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.
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6.2

REVIEW PROCESS
GENERAL:

The supervisory review process of the framework is intended not only to ensure that banks have
adequate capital to support all the risks in their business, but also to encourage banks to develop and
use better risk management technigues in monitoring and managing their risks. It is the responsibility
of the bank management in developing an internal capital assessment process and setting capital
targets that are commensurate with the bank’s risk profile and control environment beyond the core
minimum requirements.

Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes the significance of the relationship between the amount of capital held
by the bank against its risks and the strength and effectiveness of the bank’s risk management and
internal control processes. However, increased capital should not be viewed as the only option for
addressing increased risks confronting the bank. Other means for addressing risk, such as
strengthening risk management, applying internal limits, strengthening the level of provisions and
reserves, and improving internal controls, must also be considered. Furthermore, capital should not be
regarded as a substitute for addressing fundamentally inadequate control or risk management
processes.

There are three main areas that is particularly suited to treatment under this process: risks considered
under minimum capital requirements which are not fully captured it (e.g. credit concentration risk);
those factors not taken into account by the minimum capital requirements (e.g. business and strategic
risk); and factors external to the bank (e.g. business cycle effects).

In order to achieve the objectives of the supervisory review process, this process has been broadly
divided into three parts:

a. Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
b. Supervisory Review
c. Supervisory Response
INTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS:

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which
requires board and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews
at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk profile
of the bank and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key components of an
effective ICAAP are discussed below.

a. Board and senior management oversight

Bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by
the bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring
that the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate with
the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation for
an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position.

The board of directors of the bank are responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance for risks. The
board should also ensure that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various risks;
develops a system to relate these risks to the bank’s capital level and sets up a method for
monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills
strong internal controls and thereby an effective control environment through adoption of
written policies and procedures and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively
communicated throughout the bank.

The analysis of a bank’s current and future capital requirements in relation to its strategic
objectives is a vital element of the strategic planning process. The strategic plan should clearly
outline the bank’s capital needs, anticipated capital expenditures, desirable capital level, and
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external capital sources. Senior management and the board should view capital planning as a
crucial element in being able to achieve its desired strategic objectives.

Sound capital assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be
able to make a sound capital assessment the bank should, at minimum, have the following:

e Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports
all material risks;

e A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

e A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the
bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

e A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall
management process.

Comprehensive assessment of risks

All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment process.
Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, bank
should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a
comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following
forms of risk.

1. Credit risk: Banks should have methodologies that enable them to assess the credit risk
involved in exposures to individual borrowers or counterparties as well as at the portfolio
level. The credit review assessment of capital adequacy, at a minimum, should cover risk
rating systems, portfolio analysis/aggregation, large exposures and risk concentrations.

Internal risk ratings are an important tool in monitoring credit risk. Internal risk ratings
should be adequate to support the identification and measurement of risk from all credit
exposures, and should be integrated into an institution’s overall analysis of credit risk and
capital adequacy. The ratings system should provide detailed ratings for all assets, not
only for problem assets.

2. Credit concentration risk: Risk concentrations are arguably the single most important
cause of major problems in banks. A risk concentration is any single exposure or group of
exposures with the potential to produce losses large enough (relative to a bank’s capital,
total assets, or overall risk level) to threaten a bank’s health or ability to maintain its core
operations.

Lending being the primary activity of most banks, credit risk concentrations are often the
most material risk concentrations within a bank. However, risk concentrations can arise in
a bank’s assets, liabilities, or off-balance sheet items, through the execution or processing
of transactions (either product or service), or through a combination of exposures across
these broad categories. Credit risk concentrations are based on common or correlated risk
factors, which, in times of stress, have an adverse effect on the creditworthiness of each of
the individual counterparties making up the concentration.

Such credit concentrations are not addressed in the minimum capital requirements for
credit risk. Thus, banks should have in place effective internal policies, systems and
controls to identify, measure, monitor, and control their credit risk concentrations. Banks
should explicitly consider the extent of their credit risk concentrations in their assessment
of capital adequacy under review processes. These policies should cover the different
forms of credit risk concentrations to which a bank may be exposed to. Such
concentrations include but are not limited to:
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o Significant exposures to an individual counterparty or group of related counterparty.
Banks might also establish an aggregate limit for the management and control of all
of its large exposures as a group;

o Credit exposures to counterparties in the same economic sector or geographic region;

o Credit exposures to counterparties whose financial performance is dependent on the
same activity or commaodity; and

e Indirect credit exposures arising from a bank’s CRM activities (e.g. exposure to a
similar type of collateral or credit protection provided by a single counterparty or
same collateral in cases of multiple banking).

A bank’s framework for managing credit risk concentrations should be clearly
documented and should include a definition of the credit risk concentrations relevant to
the bank and how these concentrations and their corresponding limits are calculated.
Limits should be defined in relation to a bank’s capital, total assets or, where adequate
measures exist, its overall risk level. A bank’s management should conduct periodic stress
tests of its major credit risk concentrations and review the results of those tests to identify
and respond to potential changes in market conditions that could adversely impact the
bank’s performance.

Operational risk: The failure to properly manage operational risk can result in a
misstatement of an institution’s risk/return profile and expose the institution to significant
losses. Gross income, used in the Basic Indicator Approach is only a proxy for the scale of
operational risk exposure of a bank and can in some cases underestimate the need for
capital. Thus, banks should develop a framework for managing operational risk and
evaluate the adequacy of capital as prescribed by this framework. The framework should
cover the bank’s appetite and tolerance for operational risk, as specified through the
policies for managing this risk, including the extent and manner in which operational risk
is transferred outside the bank. It should also include policies outlining the bank’s
approach to identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling/mitigating the risk.

Market risk: The prescribed approach for the computation of capital charge for market
risk is very simple and thus may not be directly aligned with the magnitude of risk.
Likewise, the approach only incorporates risks arising out of adverse movements in
exchange rates while ignoring other forms of risks like interest rate risk and equity risks.
Thus, banks should develop a framework that addresses these various forms of risk and at
the same time perform stress tests to evaluate the adequacy of capital.

The use of internal models by the bank for the measurement of market risk is highly
encouraged. Wherever banks make use of internal models for computation of capital
charge for market risks, the bank management should ensure the adequacy and
completeness of the system regardless of the type and level of complexity of the
measurement system as the quality and reliability of the measurement system is largely
dependent on the quality of the data and various assumptions used in the model.

Liquidity risk: Liquidity is crucial to the ongoing viability of any financial institution.
Capital positions can have a telling effect on institution’s ability to obtain liquidity,
especially in a crisis. Each bank must have adequate systems for measuring, monitoring
and controlling liquidity risk. Banks should evaluate the adequacy of capital given their
own liquidity profile and the liquidity of the markets in which they operate. Banks are also
encouraged to make use of stress testing to determine their liquidity needs and the
adequacy of capital.

Other risks: Although the 'other risks', such as reputational and strategic risk, are not
easily measurable, banks are expected to take these into consideration as well while
deciding on the level of capital.
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d. Monitoring and reporting

The bank should establish an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and
assessing how the bank’s changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The bank’s senior
management or board of directors should, on a regular basis, receive reports on the bank’s risk
profile and capital needs. These reports should allow senior management to:

o Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;

o Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital
assessment measurement system:;

e Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in
compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and

e Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank’s reported risk profile and make
necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic plan accordingly.

e. Internal control review

The bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and, where
appropriate, the involvement of internal or external audits. The bank’s board of directors has a
responsibility to ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks,
develops a system to relate risk to the bank’s capital level, and establishes a method for
monitoring compliance with internal policies. The board should regularly verify whether its
system of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business.

The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk management process to ensure its
integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include:

e Appropriateness of the bank’s capital assessment process given the nature, scope and
complexity of its activities;

¢ Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations;
e Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process;
e Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and
e  Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.

SUPERVISORY REVIEW:

Nepal Rastra Bankshall regularly review the process by which a bank assesses its capital adequacy,
risk positions, resulting capital levels, and quality of capital held by a bank. Supervisors shall also
evaluate the degree to which a bank has in place a sound internal process to assess capital adequacy.
The emphasis of the review should be on the quality of the bank’s risk management and controls and
should not result in supervisors functioning as bank management. The periodic review can involve
any or a combination of:

e On-site examinations or inspections;
o Off-site review;
e Discussions with bank management;

e Review of work done by external auditors (provided it is adequately focused on the
necessary capital issues); and

e Periodic reporting.

Some of the key areas which will be reviewed during the supervisory review process are discussed
hereunder
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Review of adequacy of risk assessment

NRB shall assess the degree to which internal targets and processes incorporate the full range
of material risks faced by the bank. Supervisors shall also review the adequacy of risk measures
used in assessing internal capital adequacy and the extent to which these risk measures are used
operationally in setting limits, evaluating business line performance, and evaluating and
controlling risks more generally. Supervisors shall consider the results of sensitivity analyses
and stress tests conducted by the institution and how these results relate to capital plans.

Assessment of capital adequacy

NRB shall review the bank’s processes to determine that:

e Target levels of capital chosen are comprehensive and relevant to the current operating
environment;

e These levels are properly monitored and reviewed by senior management; and

e The composition of capital is appropriate for the nature and scale of the bank’s
business.

NRB shall also consider the extent to which the bank has provided for unexpected events in
setting its capital levels. This analysis should cover a wide range of external conditions and
scenarios, and the sophistication of techniques and stress tests used should be commensurate
with the bank’s activities.

Assessment of the control environment

NRB shallconsider the quality of the bank’s management information reporting and systems,
the manner in which business risks and activities are aggregated, and management’s record in
responding to emerging or changing risks. In all instances, the capital level at an individual
bank should be determined according to the bank’s risk profile and adequacy of its risk
management process and internal controls. External factors such as business cycle effects and
the macroeconomic environment should also be considered.

Supervisory review of compliance with minimum standards

In order to obtain relief as per this framework banks are required to observe a number of
requirements, including risk management standards and disclosures. In particular, banks will be
required to disclose features of their internal methodologies used in calculating minimum
capital requirements. As part of the supervisory review process, supervisors must ensure that
these conditions are being met on an ongoing basis. Likewise, the supervisors must ensure that
qualifying criteria as specified in the framework are continuously being met as these criteria are
developed as benchmarks aligned with bank management expectations for effective risk
management's and capital allocation.

Significance of risk transfer

Securitization or credit sale agreements with recourse may be carried out for purposes other
than credit risk transfer (e.g. funding). Where this is the case, there might still be a limited
transfer of credit risk. However, for an originating bank to achieve reductions in capital
requirements, the risk transfer arising from a securitization or credit sale has to be deemed
sufficient by the NRB. If the risk transfer is considered to be insufficient or non existent, NRB
can require the application of a higher capital requirement or, alternatively, may deny a bank
from obtaining any capital relief from the securitization or transfer agreements. Therefore, the
capital relief that can be achieved will correspond to the amount of credit risk that is effectively
transferred.

Credit Risk Mitigants
In case when the eligibility requirements are not fulfilled, NRB will not consider Credit Risk
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Mitigants in allocating capital. Similarly, CRM may give rise to residual risks, which may
render the overall risk reduction less effective. Where these risks are not adequately controlled
by the bank, NRB may impose additional capital charges or take other appropriate supervisory
actions.

Operational risk and Market Risk

The framework prescribes simple approaches for allocating capital for operational and market
risk which may not be directly aligned with the volume and complexity of risk. Thus, the
supervisor shall consider whether the capital requirements generated by the prescribed
approaches give a consistent picture of the individual bank's risk exposure in comparison with
the peer group and the banking industry at large. Where NRB is convinced such is not the case,
appropriate supervisory response is warranted.

Market Discipline

The framework requires banks to disclose various key informations about their business on a
periodic basis. It is imperative that the banks discharge their obligations under the disclosure
requirements in order to be eligible to claim benefits of CRM. In line with the utmost
significance of this requirement, the supervisor shall review the adequacy of the disclosures. As
a part of this process itself, the supervisor shall regularly review the website of the banks and
review the contents of the site. Wherever the review process identifies any shortcomings or
non-compliances, appropriate supervisory response shall be initiated.

6.4 SUPERVISORY RESPONSE:

Nepal Rastra Bank expects banks to operate above the minimum regulatory capital ratios. If NRB is
not convinced about the risk management practices and the control environment, it has the authority
to require banks to hold capital in excess of the minimum.

a.

Supervisory adjustments in risk weighted assets and capital

Having carried out the review process as described above, supervisors should take appropriate
action if they are not satisfied with the results of the bank’s own risk assessment and capital
allocation. In such a scenario, NRB shall be empowered to undertake any or combination of the
following adjustments in the banks risk weighted assets and regulatory capital computations.

1. Shortfall in provisions made by the bank against adversely classified assets shall be
deducted from the Tier 1 capital.

2. The loans and facilities extended to Directors, Employees (other than loans given under
Employee rules), Shareholders holding more than 1% percent shares and related parties
as well as loans, advances and facilities restricted by the prevailing rules and regulations
shall be deducted from Tier 1 capital.

3. In case the bank has provided loans and facilities in excess of its Single Obligor Limits,
10% of all such excess exposures shall be added to the risk weighted exposure for credit
risk.

4. Where the bank has been involved in the sale of credit with recourse facility, 1% of the
contract (sale) value shall be added to the risk weight for credit risk.

5. Where the banks do not have satisfactory Assets Liability Management policies and
practices to effectively manage the market risks, an additional risk weight of 1% of Net
Interest Income of the immediate previous financial year shall be added to the risk weight
for market risk.

6. Where the banks do not adopt sound practices for the management of operational risk, an
additional capital charge of 2% to 5% of Gross Income of immediate previous financial
year shall be levied for operational risks.
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7.  Where the Gross Income determined for computation of capital charge of Operational
Risk for all of the last three years is negative and where the banks themselves have not
addressed the capital charge for operational risk, 5% of the total credit and investments
net of specific provisions shall be the capital charge for operational risk.

New banks who have not completed a year of operation and hence whose gross income
cannot be measured reliably and where the banks themselves have not addressed the
capital charge for operational risk, shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross
income. These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year onwards.
But, based on the reasonableness of the so-computed capital charge for Operation Risk,
during the first three years of operation, review process may require additional proportion
of capital charge.

8. During the course of review, where the supervisor is not satisfied with the overall risk
management policies and procedures of the bank, the total risk weighted exposures of the
bank shall be increased up to 5%.

9. In case the bank has not achieved the desired level of disclosure requirements, the total
risk weighted exposures of the bank shall be increased up to 3%.

10. Banks that do not meet the eligibility requirements to claim the benefit under credit risk
mitigation technigues shall not be allowed the benefit of CRM.

b. Corrective Actions for Non-Compliances

1. The failure on part of the banks to meet the provisions of this framework shall be
considered as a violation of the NRB directives and shall attract stipulated actions. The
nature of the enforcement action largely depends on degree of the capital adequacy of the
bank. The trigger points and the prescribed action in case of non-compliance shall be as
per the provisions of Prompt Corrective Action Bylaw,2074 propounded by Nepal Rastra
Bank.

DISCLOSURE
GENERAL:

The purpose of disclosure requirements is to complement the minimum capital requirements and the
review process by developing a set of disclosure requirements which will allow market participants to
assess key pieces of information on the scope of application, capital, risk exposures, risk assessment
processes, and hence the capital adequacy of the bank. It is believed that providing disclosures that
are based on a common framework is an effective means of informing the market about a bank’s
exposure to those risks and provides a consistent and comprehensive disclosure framework that
enhances comparability. The importance of disclosure is more pronounced in cases of banks that rely
on internal methodologies in assessing capital requirements.

DISCLOSURE PRINCIPLES:

Banks should have a formal disclosure policy approved by the Board of Directors that addresses the
bank’s approach for determining what disclosures it will make and the internal controls over the
disclosure process. In addition, banks should implement a process for assessing the appropriateness of
their disclosures, including validation and frequency. While deciding on the disclosure policy, the
board should pay due attention to strike a balance between materiality and proprietary and
confidential information.

a. Materiality

Besides the minimum prescribed disclosure requirements, a bank should decide which
additional disclosures are relevant for it based on the materiality concept. Information would be
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regarded as material if its omission or misstatement could change or influence the assessment
or decision of a user relying on that information for the purpose of making economic decisions.

b. Proprietary and confidential information

Proprietary information encompasses information (for example on products or systems), that if
shared with competitors would render a bank’s investment in these products/systems less
valuable, and hence would undermine its competitive position. Information about customers is
often confidential, in that it is provided under the terms of a legal agreement or counterparty
relationship. This has an impact on what banks should reveal in terms of information about
their customer base, as well as details on their internal arrangements, for instance
methodologies used, parameter estimates, data etc. The disclosure requirements set out below
by NRB aims to strike an appropriate balance between the need for meaningful disclosure and
the protection of proprietary and confidential information.

VALIDATION:

The disclosures of the bank should be subjected to adequate validation. In addition, supplementary
material (such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis) that is published should also be subjected
to sufficient scrutiny (e.g. internal control assessments, etc.) to satisfy the validation issue. If material
is not published under a validation regime, for instance in a stand alone report or as a section on a
website, then management should ensure that appropriate verification of the information takes place,
in accordance with the general disclosure principles.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:

Banks should at minimum, disclose the following information at the stipulated time intervals. At the
same time, banks shall be free to disclose any other information they consider important for its
stakeholders as and when they consider necessary, beyond the prescribed requirements.

a. Banks should provide the following disclosures as at the end of each financial year along with
the annual financial statements.

1. Capital structure and capital adequacy
o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to
be reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capital;
o Total qualifying capital;
o Capital adequacy ratio;

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

2. Risk exposures
o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk;
o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;
o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)
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Restructure/Reschedule Loan
Substandard Loan
Doubtful Loan
Loss Loan
o NPA ratios
» Gross NPA to gross advances
> Net NPA to net advances
o Movement of Non Performing Assets

YV V V V

o Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense
o Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense
o Details of additional Loan Loss Provisions

o Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and
Available for sale category

Risk Management Function

o For each separate risk area (Credit, Market and Operational risk), banks must
describe their risk management objectives and policies, including:

» Strategies and processes;

» The structure and organization of the relevant risk management function;
» The scope and nature of risk reporting and/or measurement systems; and
>

Policies for hedging and/or mitigating risk and strategies, and processes for
monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges/mitigants.

o Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM.

All banks should make following disclosures on a quarterly basis on their respective websites.

O

O

O

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds.

Deductions from capital;

Total qualifying capital;

Capital adequacy ratio;

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk;

Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

» Restructure/Reschedule Loan

» Substandard Loan

» Doubtful Loan
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» Loss Loan
o NPA ratios
» Gross NPA to gross advances
» Net NPA to net advances
o Movement of Non Performing Assets
o Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense
o Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense
o Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions

o Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and Available
for sale category

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in
case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Disclosure requirements under this framework should also be published in the respective
websites of the banks. Such disclosures of the banks should also be updated to reflect the
capital adequacy position of the banks after the supervisory adjustments under the review
process.

Banks are required to report to NRB their capital adequacy computations, according to the
format as specified in Annexure of this framework on a monthly basis within one month after
the end of the month or as required by NRB from time to time. All such returns must be
validated by the internal auditor of the bank. If the monthly internal audit couldnot be carried
out, it should be disclosed on the monthly return. But, such returns at the end of each quarter
must be submitted with the validation from the internal auditor of the bank.

In addition to the returns specified above, a bank must inform NRB within 30 days of:

1. Any breach of the minimum capital adequacy requirements set out in this framework
together with an explanation of the reasons for the breach and the remedial measures it has
taken to address those breaches.

2. Any concerns it has about its capital adequacy, along with proposed measures to address
these concerns.

Full compliance of these disclosure requirements is a pre-requisite before banks can obtain any
capital relief (i.e. adjustments in the risk weights of collateralized or guaranteed exposures) in
respect of any credit risk mitigation techniques.

FORM NO. 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE (Summary)

(Rs.n .....)
Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Tier 1 Capital
Tier 2 Capital
Total Capital

Risk-Weighted Exposures

Regulatory Ratios

Current Period

Previous Period

Leverage Ratio
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Common Equity Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

FORM NO. 1A CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE

(Rs.In .....)

1. 1 Risk Weighted Exposures

Current Period

Previous Period

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non compliance to Disclosure
Requirement (6.4 a9)

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar 1)

1.2 CAPITAL

Current Period

Previous Period

Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital) (CET1 +AT1)

0

0

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)

0

0

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Equity Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(Loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

U"‘QUODB_X'_'_':@ =h|D | |0 |T|®

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit &
unutilized

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets

Less: Un recognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities

x|s|<|e|~

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and
Restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

Additional Tier 1 (AT1)
a Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital
b Perpetual Debt Instruments

¥y




c | Stock Premium

Supplementary Capital (Tier I1)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

Stock Premium

General loan loss provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

| T|IKQ|=|o|a|lo ||

Other Reserves

Total Capital Fund (Tier | and Tier I1)

0

0

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Current Period

Previous Period

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures

(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's

adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After

Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

FORM NO. 2: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR CREDIT RISK

(Rs.In .....)
Book (Specific ~|Eligible |\ . _IRisk Wnghte ;
A. Balance Sheet Exposures Value |Provision |CRM Weight Exposures
a b C d=a-b-c |e f=d*e
Cash Balance 0 0 0 0% 0
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Gold 0 0 0 0% 0
Investment in  Nepalese = Government 0
Securities 0 0 0 0% 0
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0 0 0 0% 0
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0 0 0 0% 0
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA 0-1) S 0 0% |0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -2) L 0 0 20% |0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0 0
Bank (ECA -3) 0 |0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA-4-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 10
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and on
Multilateral Development Banks (MDB's) | 0 0 0 0% 0
recognized by the framework
Claims on Other Multilateral Development 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
Banks
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
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Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims on dor_nestlc banks that meet capital 0 0 0 0 20% 0
adequacy requirements
Cla!ms on domestic panks that do not meet 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
capital adequacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% | 0
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of | 0 0 0 0 20% 0
1% above their respective regulatory capital
Claims on Domestic Corporates 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Past due claims 0 0 0 0 150% | 0
High Risk claims 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions listed in the stock | 0 0 0 0 100% | O
exchange
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions not listed in the | 0 0 0 0 150% | O
stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property 0 0 0 0 60% 0
Interejsft Receivable/claim on government 0 0 0 0 0% 0
securities
Cash in transit apd other cash items in the 0 0 0 0 20% 0
process of collection
Other Assets (as per attachment) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
Gross - - . Risk
Specific  |Eligible Risk .
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures \B/OOk Provision |CRM Net Value Weight Weighted
alue Exposures
a b c d=a-b-c |e f=d*e
Revocable Commitments 0 0 0 0% 0
Bills Under Collection 0 0 0 0% 0
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities 0 0 0 0 10% 0
LC Commitments With Original Maturity
Upto 6 months 0 0 0 0 20% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% |0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0

¥%




LC Commitments With Original Maturity

Over 6 months 0 0 0 0 50% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter
guarantee 0 0 0 0 50% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | 0O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% [ O
Underwriting commitments 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Lendl_n_g of Bank's Securities or Posting of 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
Securities as collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with
recourse 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Advance Payment Guarantee 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Financial Guarantee 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Acceptances and Endorsements 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Unpal_d_ portion of Partly paid shares and 0 0 0 0 100% | o
Securities
Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) | O 0 0 0 20% 0
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) | 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operatl_ng with a buffer_ of 0 0 0 0 20% 0
1% above their respective regulatory capital
requirement
Other Contingent Liabilities 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Unpaid Guarantee Claims 0 0 0 0 200% |0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
Total RWE for credit Risk Before
Adjustment (A) +(B) 0 |0 0 0 0
Adjustments under Pillar Il
Add: 10% of the loan and facilities in excess 0

of Single Obligor Limits(6.4 a 3)

Add: 1% of the contract(sale) value in case
of the sale of credit with recourse (6.4 a
4)

Total RWE for credit Risk (After Bank's
adjustments of Pillar I1)
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FORM NO.3 ELIGIBLE CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

Credit exposures

Deposits |Deposits|Gold |Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of{domest e ofge of
Bank other Securities [of Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e (M) @ |(h) |(i)

Balance Sheet Exposures

Claims on Foreign government and

Central Bank (ECA -2) 0
Claims on Foreign government and

Central Bank (ECA -3) 0
Claims on Foreign government and

Central Bank (ECA-4-6) 0
Claims on Foreign government and

Central Bank (ECA -7) 0
Claims on Other Multilateral

Development Banks 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA

0-1) 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA

2) 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA

3-6) 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA

7) 0
Claims on domestic banks that meet

capital adequacy requirements 0
Claims on domestic banks that do not

meet capital adequacy requirements 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating

0-1) 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
2)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
3-6)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
7)

Claims on foreign bank incorporated

in SAARC region operating with a

buffer of 1% above their respective

regulatory capital requirement

Claims on Domestic Corporates 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
0-1)

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
2)

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
3-6)

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
7)

Claims secured by Commercial real 0
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Credit exposures Deposits |Deposits|Gold |Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of|domest e ofpe of
Bank other Securities jof Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e | (@ () [(i)
estate
Past due claims 0
High Risk claims 0
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions
listed in the stock exchange
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions not
listed in the stock exchange
Other Assets (as per attachment)
Total 0
Off Balance Sheet Exposures
Forward Exchange Contract
Liabilities
LC Commitments with Original 0
Maturity Upto 6 months
domestic counterparty
foreign  counterparty (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 7)
LC Commitments with Original 0
Maturity Over 6 months
domestic counterparty
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 7)
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and 0
Counter guaranteedomestic
counterparty
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
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Credit exposures Deposits |Deposits|Gold |Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of|domest e ofpe of
Bank other Securities jof Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e | (@ () [(i)
Rating 7)
Underwriting commitments 0
Lending of Bank's Securities or 0
Posting of Securities as collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale 0
with recourse
Advance Payment Guarantee 0
Financial Guarantee 0
Acceptances and Endorsements 0
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares 0
and Securities
Irrevocable  Credit  commitments 0
(Short Term)
Irrevocable  Credit  commitments
(Long Term)
Other Contingent Liabilities 0
Total
Grand Total

FORM NO.4 EXHIBIT OF CLAIMS WITH CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

(Rs.In ...l
S.N | Counterparty Category | Facility | Outstanding | Eligible CRM
Nature | Gross Haircut | Net
Amount Amount
FORM NO.5 OTHER ASSETS

S.No. | Assets Gross Amount Specific Net
Provision& Balance
Valuation
Adjustment

1 Cash and Cash Items in Transit 0

2 Miscellaneous Expenditure not written off 0

3 Fixed Assets 0

4 Interest Receivable on Other Investment 0

5 Interest Receivable on Loan 0

6 Non Banking Assets 0

7 Reconciliation Account 0

8 Draft Paid Without Notice 0

9 Sundry Debtors 0

10 Advance payment and Deposits 0

11 Staff Loan and Advance 0

12 Stationery 0

Yo




13 | Other 0
TOTAL 0 0
FORM NO. 6: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR OPERATIONAL RISK

Particulars FY ...... FY ...... FY ...
Net Interest Income

Commission and Discount Income

Other Operating Income

Exchange Fluctuation Income

Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period

Gross income (a)

Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)]

Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times

(e) 9.09
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]

PILLAR-II ADJUSTMENTS

If Gross Income for all the last three years is negative(6.4 a 8)

Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision)

Capital Requirement for operational risk (5%)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times 9.09
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [g]

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f or g)

FORM NO.7 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR MARKET RISK

S.No. | Currency Open Position (FCY) Open Position

(NPR)

Relevant Open Position

INR

usD

GBP

EURO

THB

O INOO || B W[IN| PP

I

Total Open Position ()

Fixed Percentage (b) 5%
Capital Charge for Market Risk [c=(axb)]
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times (d) 9.09

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [e=(cxd)]
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FORM NO.: 8 Leverage Ratio

(Rs.In....)

Particulars

Amount

A | Exposure Measure

1. On balance sheet Assets(net of specific provisioning)

2. Repurchase agreements and securities finance

3. Derivatives

4. Off balance sheet exposure

B | Capital Measure

1. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (After regulatory Adjustment)

2. Additional Tier 1 Capital

%

C | Leverage Ratio

Note (if any):
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az,
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(@) FEITA YTERTeh TaH T deehl A¥ehRe%d! NarsHl Public Private Partnership (PPP) Model
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(1) IATSTHES® Rl it (Repayment Schedule) TR &1 T YA€ 9T =T THIUTEHT
ATIRHAT [T & TR0 T T |
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() “TARERHAT” AT ol / radTeh! Tebid a1 TTHT AREdT T a7 T<sTes II8e T+ Grhardrs
iR |

(3) FofrebT | a9 AHATHT BT STURT T AGRAT IGUHT GRATAT |irer Jo7 el feaf@a
AT IfeAt@d IETIHT ATARHAT FATAATAIT FEAT faea=q qUHT FoiieArs TARATABIHIT

T/ AT AT g -

(%) ol qEIAT BRI AT GRET FAT AU JHT,

(@) FAT AGA & ARIEATAR SATTATAIT FEAT [qeaeq AUl AR, T

() FHATATE TARATABIHIY AT TAREAAT T (g PAASAT GeT gepl Afdieeh ca=ar
FAT [ARATABIRIOT AT TAEALAAT TETehT [ AT G aAlebl ATl FRIA] T d
gfTeTd AT ThH AGASIY U |

(). RN | {7 THATHT ST TR OB AARATET © SETAHT F Teh FAF€AT TUHAT FOITHI
MO [T &THATHT 8T8 ATTH A S

4



9. Cost Overrun, Time Overrun, Cashfow Mismatch ST FHdHIAT BRI
ATRTAIH] BT TS Holiehl (bl a7 TS (AT ARETHT qhTl AFCAT |

R, TRl fEEr A1 @S Ui ST ARl SUArt giaed el dEwar a1 a7 e
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() ITUTH FTHITH TARATARIRI T/ AT TAREHAAT TRUH Foleedl Y gfqerd  Hal
AT SEeT FEH IO, |

(F) TFA TARANABIRLIT T /AT TAREHLAAT TRTHN Foleeedls S aTHT aNTHLI TRTH G
TIET AT A TIS, |
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1.

(%) qATIR fqepra el glea aar vegeee, famr (fadee, Svel, dar/=ae%, drew uve fnfesw
TTITHRT FANTAT JaTled &l o), RIeT, e &9 grafedd &ol qgr arel, qies,
ToFFT ST YTeBTcTeh /ST TehITaTe TATIT HUHT qRATSTATHT ARMHAT T&ehl FolfelTs !
FARIGHT FURT/ A A6 Jale q97 AR [y T Araeasbdr ¥ aifarcasr
ATITHT AFHTIAIA TSB! HTHT 0 IANT THH AT I TR0 S@TART TABoh AATTAT

TET FoATeh! qAXATTARIRIUl AT [ARERHAAT T Fleh |

(1) T ARATABIRIIT T /AT [ATHATAAT 050 T AT TR I, |

() ROSR, T HATTHT FHA FHT TITHIU TUR! FoA[ells TAXANABIRRI ¥/ AT TARELHAT
T AT, |

(3) ITUTH FHITTH JAXATABIHIU ¥/ AT qATETAAT TRUHT FoleedT & AT Hell Arearar
LT HAH TS, |

(¥) FF TARANABIRIT ¥/ AT [AERAAT TR FAETATe [T aAT B TRUH
T AT AR TS, | TARETTAT a1 TARAT AR TRUHT Foliebl Fiar ferear
JAT AR AR AAR T3 TUGHH (HATHT AUHT ATLITHT AT HolleAls AT FHSIHT
qRard T Al B |

(Q0) TUHRT (3) THISTH aATHLUT TMRUHT FAEEHT (G Gg AN THINS, |

Q0. FHST YA AGTAS AT T TS AT

HAT AT ATEATATS TETHRT HALATAEd U T IS -

(%) FAT Aqe@T HUHT,

(@) FAhl THIAT [hearaeal a1 ATRTE FTAT ATAT Fol AR ATEART Foll AT HFLAT

FIH & qHTAN TUHN FIAFAR] Holl AT TRTHT Foll AT ST,

(A1) YARETEAT a1 AR AR TRUHT FSAiehl AT qAT ATTH qHMI AR 5 AUGHH

frafaa swoar 7

(5) I =[ThT HTHAT |
(3) GURHAELATHT FHAT IFGUHT FRTTEE GEATT IR THT AARATHT Geafeda e faeqmr

faeasa quaT |

TR-sifepy Teataer AT sgae T foemw oy I

Q)

qATIR faFTe el B o1l e THUHT GREAVET el fudl afeas T4 ardr arar T s
IIST FHFG | FA AGA T FRIAT 3 TEHarA far faamdlr gbear Q@ e a8 I Ry
ferY VTP GUSHT WA ATRA PR T UG | THR &7 fdrel gAiad aoik Jed a1 faadr
PR T wAferedd] fETqTHeP! WU 99T THAT I FH 5 AEl GAHT TATST T T4 |
gfe fadrel a9k JT FSA(dl o1 IEAAT] FH TUAT FH AUSIG THH dlel Add quHr

[N = ~

AT/ A fedEH T @ del SRR AT JoiE THIES, |

TR, T FeAT3T &M AT TR-cifehy Gt aTqqepl ThH q¥qu &q97 feare faar qwoaey
ST THHHAAD] TS THHATS ATRT/ATFTT [EETeHT AT STATST Urge &4 ¥ od&dl ThHTS
TR Sfepy Tt ATIAHT AT SAELATHT AT, |

GEGH] BT THITH TS, |
(F) TTEHP! TIET TS T-cifhg TRARTP! FTHT FHR &1 T qerars Afar
FIHT FTATTAAT THTHLT THIAE |
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AT AT ATHAT TEehl TR-cifhy FFATAH] aard TIE @ HeATsAHdrEnd
AR E HATFA TRISAIAES, |

TR, U3 HATSAFAEE AR U STwal &l ditg qrIrdepl HedTsd RIS ITge
el

fordT TReqor/ TR-Afkg TRl fadre GFamamT S qREefT ¥ T Ew TR HATH
feq T=eor g T faer IS |

JEfeerrs o o o, #ifires sowar 4 fore argee |

T FER T [Audr Tetadrg aaraetd f5ar fahr T qg | ST AT gaATeaTs
ATEAAF TUHAT AT FI FTANTHT AT FoeATerh AT Sehd TS T AebelTs THT
ST RTINS, |

wferepl o) @rg fRal T TR-Sfke awdfq SRETEHA AT WeT a1 RRdAT TaTE
EAHT TEHT THAT THH (AT T AP A€) AH T IET g7 &l THHAT T9e
T gEEfead TR ¥ gEEid GREAT giaTeel ATIHT ATAIgRT geEivad e
aATelTs | Rt/ REAur Real T s A1 FE9TTer arer Qe A |

qR. TR o Sweeer T wmagwr AT Credit Sale /Purchase/Re-purchase @am Takeover T+
THSA | TR, TF Sobel ATehebT YSiTIT TAT SUHT TATAR [TbTE Sebel GolToTqTaTe “sF” a¥Tehl
SFE YATE H JATAY dFIfead aiedrsaressl Credit Sale/Purchase/Re-purchase dem
Takeover TaTaR faera SehetTs TRt 97 9T AT ETTHT STl FASTTAT LT T T |

9.
R.

TATIRET Fralfrad =IATH &.30 FS ATl delehl ol g |

JATITR T Sehel FRIATR A& T (IS ¥ TUGET AT Aferedl TTATGHT HTaH
TEH HA FHell AMHTR AlghaH Uk fqerg A7 Credit Sale/Purchase/Re-purchase
TAT Takeover T Hfeh |

Credit Sale/Purchase/Re-purchase d4r Takeover W1 faw/fad FFeg#T  qaTaR
faeTa b ATHT FIT ATHT T FFLAT T g | AFAT AT PRER T
qrEAE |

aifde Fuewr af<qw #@fearr Credit Sale /Purchase/Re-purchase @am Takeover
LT BT T ITETS |

&9 @ieq (Credit Purchase) TT&T AT FoIT YA AGATIR T Tl AR oo
fam 99 | T IR AT FEafedd ATeehepl Ted(q THT [aquds |

FHATH! O ¥ ATEATH! faeqd faaror fquR arm & @iE T |

fepfar, qoRTIT wawen, faRTadl ol FRIERET AG2T, STHHARTR 2 aad, &l
fieeureRl feafq enfe faarues fafaq soHr faqads |

FIT @RE T qaTaR e bt ol axfreheurel fa=raT saear qar well A
LT FHINAHBT Al AT AT FTIH TAIAE |

FAT GXg T [AaT T&AT Foll GAT Tl TI7 AATATS RIgarsTde AT/ THTHT AT
ATHT & ATIR ol FHISATAES AHIedd Foll BIGAHT  FAATAEH THIAS, |

LT



*®=

9%.

i«

q0. Credit Sale /Purchase/Re-purchase @41 Takeover #RIERET ATy faawor
wgaE  oaty HT WU fAfaer QU feAtew ww Seer gt guieaer
faamTeT Toed TS |

9. qaTaR faer Seewd a9 #uir @ikg/faht (Purchase and Sale) & HeeaTrad
GiEhdl T ®AT IITST AGHAT AT Fol A AThel @ik T (Credit
Repurchase) STd &l €T fasnledl FeqTel =ar &eil Repurchase RTE=wiel
Contingent Liability @1 a7 3T faxira faarurer aeamiaa afaea T <@r gweedr
fawoftepl  AE=IAT I@TSHIS ¥ I&T Cotingent Liability &g dSirepry oram 1+
TATSTHHT AT J00 YfqeTd AT FfEgH R Yad TS |

R AR faebrg el #IRER ¥E A ¥ audty g9 feiamEer Credit Sale
/Purchase/Re-purchase @41 Takeover d¥erwl sqadl @d: Mg g |

TIGITHT TATIAT 5 FooATATHT TgehT ofh qAT faeiTd FEATEwel RN TXehl fairar SHTA (Financial

Guarantee) T ITITRAT FEAT ot/ Fiaar fa qar fdg @ier T arg=gT |

TS qF TqUAdTT S qa7 fadd SRR T w9l fad faq awey # #REr
c N |

TR, TF AT Tl O faTaFHET q=iReleh FRIAR (ATTEN /) T 1T TATTHRT AATS |

HRe PR /AT TFTHAT

JATITR faehT Sohel A7 SOSTqIAITe b T fairg FRATeT T AT9d] FRIARATS (HAtae Fofl
FTILIHRI FTHT AAS A=IRad HRIEATR /AT (Interbank Transactions/Borrowings) T FGHT {TH T
ITEHE, | AvRad ATTLTH qatd Ferr © faqaw s w1 s |

9%. S FHAA (BankGuarantee) =T

.

qz.

(%) TIATSA ST THT o ST (Bank Guarantee) aTIcel T Beneficiary @18 SRl f&
U FAAITHT | IMET GXbl AT H (G097 qRTAT (6 /ATGT Treg T a31 agad I
| AT, International Chamber of Commerce, Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantee (URDG)
AN S e STHTHde®®! FHT 99 URDG AT STUHT HARITE%ed! AATHT TET TRl
FET AU TS |

(@) TELA STAT Gl AT BT [GHTTHT b THS FART T Gl Beneficiary @Tg SRl 6
T SERATHT JAT AR AT qhTeT FHT GFatedd JareR [abre bl T AT T8l
QAT a7 9 Sihel AR [GUHT Sehepl @IATATE 3T T FHI=d Beneficiary &g qRhT=T T
leheg |

(M) TEI TIATHT ATRT ITET G AT aTIqh] AT IIcaeATs TS ThITehl AT TOrT
T GASTAHT ART 300 FIqTA AMEGH AR GIF THIE |

TEAAF, THE FAFN AR a1 FETYT Teh! TRIIHRIATE A8 g1 ol qe=ear

AT AU GATTATAIT  FEATRT FTIFRI THE AT AT TEhT TRIARIIPT  SATThIT

S TEdl ®H, FFIAT a7 GEATAT F I [BIaaepr &9 garg T4 G S | a9 FAToTTeh]

AT sAfrepier @A AT 40 JiqeTd W=l del @MHcd WURl &H, AT a1 J¥T TFh

e |

THSTIA FF ATH Holl THH (HHIET T{IA THIEHT

TR FIThT THH (AHTET &l Geafedd SepAT § @IAT Gl ST T I, | T aTeshehl FawrH]

T FFIRTHT ATTAT U= qdT =/ 97/ faaeia Areaware arh geafead gofier @rarar s

T ol THH M THIAS |
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9. faRelr Rt/ QREAUHT FT FATE TH AR AT
TATER AEE dH g% FAH T AA(BA (AR AT TEHT fAdT/ AT FA qAE T
TS |

R0. TS FSAHIU TH FRIEHT

Q) YTETSHT Il T ARAT UTebebl SATTATS GO 79 U2+ & | a%, IeTdal ey
TITHEATIT S| SAT9TRAT TAH AR ATARAT ST GoilehR0 T STeT Bl A

ol
(%) TR IIEA, TRV FAT [FAR0T TAATHRT IAHAD AN,
(@) @<l F=a 92T GANT g faasy 91 fadwe Imes g edr 99,
(1) SfT I,
(¥) PaAPR IAM,
(3) Ml ITaRA FFT I,
(=) T T q& IAEA I,
(@) AT TRFRF! raledd Hepraare A9 9 IT TH HShd Fheloles,
() aivacd faaelt HeT A1 T 9desh T aladey,
(W) AT,
(1) HAR, HHAT, TSI AMATHR] ATHBTAT H TRATIAATEE |
() T AT ISHee0l T GFafegd qatar fqere dod goaras atafae o o |
(3) IAREREAT AT GARATTebTehRoT TRUHT HITeh] ATSTeTS GoebRoT T argai |
(¥) I/ Moratorium 3Tafae STeTdTs oIl &l Ysiied el Thaare Interest Capitalized
Term Loan (ICTL) efredT g o@ies U, |

() TCATSTATRT 79T JaTe fqeerur 7 [CTL T AohTl Jafd qeafd qaramr e S dqra
T |

9.9’ qIT AT SNGHET Ao I ATT wll JaTe T =T

(%) HSAT AT THYE ARATSTAT/SURTHT TITIAT AT AT ST/ AT/ Frepfa fae Initial
Environmental Examination (IEE) T Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) maede®
O ARATSIAT/ SARTHT BhAT F¥ategd fAepraee |1 gfdasd @Eidhd AUl ATIRAT T4 IEE /
EIA STa9T% Age AT/ SURTH bl JaTaR (G §F dThel il oIl e
TATERUT TATAH! [Teeloor TR FaAl JaTe T |

(@) I qEIIHAT, ATATATOT G TA, 0%, FATATIRY R0 [HIHmEel, 098, 51| UF, R09¥ qa7
A YA FIAAHT TUFT TFRATH A1 Separe s Guideline On Environmental &
Social Risk Management (ESRM) For Banks And Financial Institution, 2022 &0 91T
g TR ATEYgEd Ad TSl T ARELAS Joo@ ¢ ARG ATATER0 q97 dTH1sh
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R,

ATAINTF AMGH FHAD! (qIAT0T T ol HeAThd T T ARIEHIGH FHT qar Rards
T =T TS |
() Guideline On Environmental & Social Risk Management (ESRM) For Banks And

Financial Institution, 2022 @ s g=T 99 aHISTHS! Giqaen e a9 A AUH 30
fedforT S gufeasror fasmrar o1 TREFI |

TS (ST ST THAGTAT JodA@ T IHHIEH A1 HER gH

SHAT  [CURT daXImEHT FHMIAHT Jooi@ bl THAFR] dGl ThRHB! oANT FHT fad
R/ H /FFIAT/ TRATATS el I AT fTFRaR. TRISH STHIHITS TR IT&T o STHHT T,
HUTH AT, HITH! FATSH, TH@ H, e, STHAAHATH] qTH, SAET, A1 B FAEd AT
fauoees Tt FUHT I gIS |

Rrar wepar S

FA AFGHINTA ALASI T 99 GO IhH G Fedbdlg QR Araus faar 4
FRTEATTT FeRAThl AN FFIedd FRATATHAT d€@l TSSAIAE |

Hige Adeg

qATIR [T Shad T U0 FIE AT | AT &Rl Holl ITART 9 HUATs w1 JaE a1
fea s |

qATIR [T el TS ATRTHIP] @i &l 99 shard 9T AU Guidance Note on
Interest Income Recognition, 2025 a=itsH TH 94 |

FAT qrIep! ATHIT fTaR0r TSI AT

TS ST qUhT AGS, T&, = T AR TATTHT FAl TR TN o a9 wIH. .9,
R T 3 AMIARHT [qEARUET AIATE U TUHT QU [GHATT T9 Shepl Sk qdr fa-ie gwdr
foree faamT ¥ o qaieasre faanmET garsas |

g T g9

@) TH ShATE AT AT TRTHT IETART (ETHES GRS TRTHT T -

THEd (e, 05 & Fl qIT a1 TFdl Faedl e\ 7. 3 dd AT TRTHI
frgem qur &1 gvena fafg RosR AMg R wE G wUwr 78 fquEe T aeEtead e
IRIAET |

() IUEET (@) THIAT @RS TRUFT FEH T IRIAGHIAH AT THT FH FRATET T
e I WU TRl WS |
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3. o e ®IARR
TTEhT=3, FITHIOT TRUDT HAEs qAT Frebl ATFTH AT FETwaT [qaor

............ et L HET T
el ([FHE (WO [/ | FIOH] AR F AR (TR PISHT (ol AT FHTA
G2l F|FERER fafq  |smanfea gfaer
T |[qw | fefq (%)
JER | AT ||iET (3T |ATeeT g (Ffar (F)
(%) F B qIaT (%) (F) (F)
el STET -
ot ARl AT
TEIEd
T - ) (FEATEATHT IS TRUHT Aatad Foes(Term Loan)®l gehdT qiedl fohearer 9rar Areer fafq F qeprr
fafa ge | afe & HoipT SR AIG F A9CH BUHT TR Fo Qiaemar i quer fafa
(Booking date) =% F sihrT fufdr | o | (&~ TRUET SR Forced L/C,=Tel @rar e fefae
TG ATHT AT(g) |
) R fAfT fem/afeAT/ A (day/month/year) AR TETITS, |
3 afg waEears e fAfq aear e smeamEr anfteRor wifvean, iR Aiuwr FRO RRAd Hewdw
IIE T TS, | (SITERITHN AN N FAGATHT THTELT HOHAT, AT oA AFTHT, FoAl GETART
quAT A1) |
%) faue A w geEter faavuee g faavoret s9AT 9 @ afed Iereaas |
W) AT Bl faarerAT UE qHEewT wofEwar faaver g W e s |
%) T AHIITHT A, G RN, [ARATADBTROT / AT, FHAA, TFTeIE JAT @A FHT: 9,
1.9, %, 3, ¥ T Y Iw@ T TLF |
©) T faaRurer 3-Fd A TIST TG | ETSHY TSTSATASA |
TR, b G BIAR3
.............. qreT "I
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AR (g ShaTe USd Wed, BH, HEAT AT AU JEIwd TUHT YEheeh] THEATS

c ~ L NN ~ c ~ . N ~ ~ n
HITATATH Ueh SFAT JATe & Holleh] FFI=IHT AT A oAb UA, 0UG P THT R o [qUH ATTHR
JANT T TETIRT (HE9T ST TRUH T |

1.

R

THA AEF AT QAT : TAER [TFE Sl TIE TEh, HH, HFAT a7 ATI{T q¥avd STUH
MEFeed] THEATS J&TT THd Follehl AMBUHT AldhaH ATHIATS Uhd TTadh Hal GrAT (Single
Obligor Limit) i |

FT qrqe quT Yraarer Jrar fraR

T US4 Uesh, HH, HEAT a1 AT qEIvd qUHT TEhedeshl] THEdTS HITHT Amaniza (Fund

Based) #=1 a19a ¥ fRepr9AT smaniea (Non-Fund Based) faemes & T8 T YTATHE Joirept

FEHT 40 UTTNATFHH! AHT HTIH T Y& TH Falegd | T Holl A qdqT raaresl GrHr

AFATTHT IR TTATHE GSilehl ATARAT FTUTEF HoAl FTde IAT iadrepl JrAT (LR T I |

FAT qrIe AT Graars FHwT ge

TETIAHT Al ATIS AT rAuTHl gHAT FaT &, X AT Jooi@ TRTHT ATHT AT G -

(F) FUTA FIHRE! AT/ GIENTA, T AT b HOTAR! fudmr ¥ fava o, wfgamn
fobra S quT a=RIted fa (0 AT AT W AURT dRRIGd Sgasd
(Multilateral) fa=irr @eemes qar e=Rifttgad oiTeRd (Rated) Sehepl 970 STHGHT T&TH
nﬁ—rrtrﬁmwaﬁrrwamaﬁm|ma WWF@WWWHWWW
WWWF&%&WWWW@HW@%@WW
FEIETT FEITS ST T ST (Guarantee) AT TeTiRa 9E qaTdR e Sebel YaTT T
FHSTHT GSIIhIT! AT TUMAT TH GATSTAHT ATNT 9 SEH AR (Zero Risk Weight) 9aT=
T i, |
TR FrAeifgd i (Rated) dF T GGH ARIRTT TATTTH AVSTAIS FHIIIT
The Banker 9/7a7e7 Ge% a9 eils HIEATAT 19T T+ Top Thousand World Banks # &=147
&I Sfe<ar a FHAT FUFE FFEATE TERTTAE |

T T HUHT AEHETATS USe THE A e

Foll TS TAT AT FHAH AR [T AT T TR Tedesd] qHedls e

HATITHT U3¢ THE AT T -

(F) Tl FHEIRICA Al FFIAIH] Toai UfeTeTed o ATl el YAX fAUehT 9 I g9 HFIIes,

@) F ATch, FEITH GoaTcish, TEHE [ATHdE FFIATE GG, ATHART FHET AHER, HHE
TSR AT T ATk, odATeAh, YA, IEhaR aT WATSIehT ThTHRHT T T 3ATTehT
AT PR~ TUHT 9T a1 I, DRI, ST, gHIA, gHTA, aTd, WA, G dTHT T TR
QIATHTIOT I O TS, W, 47 i, afe,
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@M @IS (@) AT IledArad AThese Tl a1 TIHETHT Aehl HEIHTRT Y I a1 & q=1 aal
IR fATRT AU T RS,

(®) @IS (@) AT JfeaAtgd AfheseT Tl a1 FIH TIHT Aehl HFIWTH] Too AT 9val FF Ja7
feTuepr U qrafy T FEIIRT SHERITITHT BT [RaHare M= quasr &l HHes.-
Q) FoeATeleh FrATTRT AT TS,

() FEHTRT FIEE TG T, a7
(3) HFAID] oeATAREEAH Y, TAMTHT G F=AAbe (Hdh T |
@ UH GHEH S AEG T FH, BT AT AT THEH TIEET,

(F) WUE (@) THIAH TIT ek a7 HHHI Ab] TEF a1 HFIAIATS THT [GURl AT &l
UTEe a7 FFAIES |

(@ UIe fadrr Uhseer odl HOEsars &ofl YaTe bl YU Al HAhes,

(W) ®Y, FEAEES AT GAESH ghAT I YT oo, I a7 FGEAITaT TAET
A Afch AT ATl THTERHT TS T ATTHT a7 GETR (9 AUHT 9id a1 T, BIRT,
I, gHIA, GETAT, ATe, ATHT, FTAAT ATHT ¥ TR qTA-IIor T 9 1o, 97, q47 f7dT,
e |

AT qF HUHT AEHETP! (qaR0 TS I

GEITS AT FF=d AUHT YTEhEsehl ATHE AT D SIHT TR T T [GATHT T Sbebl S
oo faxira Tear e faamr qor S quiasr e goeaas |

FT FHE! T fergn e

YT PR qUT AT T HfAT qwaT qEl SMHed Ul FST FLT a1 FFIwIers G ()
THEH! T4 g @ |

afgfsa sif@w (Concentration Risk) =A6Or T qa@m

T e TIST UTesh, BH, FHAT a7 AT qHwd AUH YEheed] GHedTs ga1 . () A

TIFTRT THA TEh HoAl AHTART TG Holl ATIe a1 raeT Fa= TAT I FHaeddl Jeorud

AUH MG T I AGITE I g Fal Afdebirad SEH @IFTR AT ATATHRT Fel

YaTH TRUHT HSA1 A9 a1 Jlaeme od qfqerd o9 wei Arerr aa=dr (Loan Loss Provision)

FEH T I8 | A% Fa1 F 3 (F) THISTH JAT8 TRTHT HSl A9 a1 Giadmhl FHAT AT a7

AN e |

AT Holl GRS

Q) SifEH I TR AN HRIT 9T AT A AHesel SAdedT TR & el
TEAATH! ATTHA T TS, | AR (T areedr a1 dond (Heed w19 .3 A
It TRTH |

() &PNTA ¥IH] JATe TRUH HoAl q97 qadrers FLaTd Foll qouadl dT9aR  @rdan i
FEATUR AT, (I FAT AT JUTEATRT a7 T I9S - (RLA. .3 F g=1 FTER
Aifeed wqAT Q% feAta Ter o)

afAe IotrepT T ISl &l USE &AWl aATed Hofl |rde ¥ Ffaurel Te=er J&l
FATH TATR T Tehebl TodATeAer TR THT ATHET TRIGTH gAIS | TATER
faeprar Srepepl oo ATHTAST IRl Follesel ATHT Jrafdes qoirel o7d yiqerd =21 ol
PHTAH TCT a1 TR T~ JEIegHT a1 AT (Mo 9 Ig ¥ |7 (Horaepr s a9
Srepepl sep e fairar e faawe faamT T awatead quicasrr faammar qoreas; |
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(3) AT U &l URATTATEEHT ATHT FA ol STRITATR TGl YO FqeTaasd Heil JaTe
T YT FaedT TRUR G | T&T & Hofl GrAT ATHT SrAT waT a6 Jar8 WUhl T
T yrafae gefiare gersd avs |

et T J9E

Q@) TH ShaTe AT AT TRUHT TETART (HETFES @RS TRUHT G -

THRd 39, 059 & Uhd UTedh 97 & &oll dde qdr Fiaarel Grr e
FraT T e 7.3 A el MRueRr fAEer g9t 9r ge=ng fafa Ro0gR we R ww
AT AR T fATEET FrEtead GO 9RTTes |

(k) SUGRT () THITH @RS RS A9 qa7 IROATHINTT T T HTH HRATET T
e THINTH WU T A, |
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ST AT
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% |SENT/§AET TP | WAt el afaRia | e Foll qraeh!
' T, giawa
| ST SR IRASET
R AT TTRPHT AT Il G TRAATEE
9 |9 I Iedred geeedT afedsTn
R YR ¥ foaror gl qiRasn
R.3 I AR AT FeqTa qrer=al qieae=n
Y | I faea Far grEs aikAen
RO A s L M L s s R O K2 L
R.% g ISl AT T4l G
3 AT (5 90 S AT HUEH) IRASTET
¥ ST - & HRErn /fHam
¥.q | fadve 3=ET
¥.3 | fepga 9=
¥.3 |@a e
N Y T @R
4.9 REIERICIEE
4.3 |fo=m= = (cold storage)
43 | =y e (Adro Warehouse)
LY |y gEe g9 AT e FramEr (Agro related
equipment/ tools manuyfacturino company)
4% | =r=aras &y (Commercial Aaro Farming)
% RNk
9 oy =R gads &7
5 D LI L L s e TR G L L R B R Gk T
Q sHifqe qaEr T FrmE
.9 NECIURRGII
?.R Mass Public Transportation System (BRT)
R.3 STedre /S Ararana.
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’.Y | FATER TRl qIRATSHT
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90.¥ | RIfad T s (THTOT
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9.9 | foreafasme
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FOTAT A GRAIT TTH TT ATSFE BIRTHAT FHFT THGH JAERH G AT [T A1
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HTITT FITEITTT T FEHITFEN TATITT THATE THTEIT T AlFAE |
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AU AL AP
P FAAT
% qur o ge frawe favm

GEL I AT

JgT At qun foxia [aaRusssr gt v g

T, 04 T THT R of faUar dfrsp AT T et fder s aikes g |

1.

Tt fora=or Tt sae
AT TETHT AT faiir faarues qor s |
F. AqMF a9

a9 I TcAd aukl ITeA q TAefd HAh UKl AAR HATTITHE! AATATS
AIF T ATIAS, |

= ~

g, 9 debel dlebebl TS JUTHe Sr=m (Statutory Form) &7 39T fer a1

TG S AMBGTHT gram ¥ fafg dar g fero R 9 9\ g | J9YeR AR TRTEH
forira foraRuret or@radrerer s qur faxie ger gee=dr U9, 3093 A7 JifeUs qHamaaiaT

I TRISAIAG, |
T, gEfead <@l ATISUSH AR I

AT AT faxira faaroes A faxia gfqasaa™ (NFRSs) @R TR 6 949 | T91d
fairr gfqaaTHIT qHTEET AVNH SFeSH] Aeiead fadrg qidaaad (IFRSs) @5 AT
TIAT fATae |

g A A [gEaRues g Ta

FIAAT AT T ANFTCHT AT @I T AeqPd(g faarg faazer aiis giqas
qeTehTaT JeRIRRT TRl ATY AT qREdehT ST JodTecHT JamEias T 9+ | 91y,
FAATIRUIR] STARRIGT AN (i AaedTehl faazor, qThRT a7 ATl faaxor, fa&qa e
faa=ur (Statement of Comprehensive Income), & YaTe faa=er, sfeEd™m wuwl qRad=er
foeaor 7 79 fAaee 9. 9 FHEISHET IS qifasr T yHE faxia ety ATarE qav
TiftaaEaeehT afTehTaT S qAT O ST FERT UF, 093 A7 ik uar raraty i afard
TIAT JHITT TS, |
T, FH o qiqdaad JehreTd T A

@) ThIEa faxia gfqasd @@ mad yHE faig aRdEweedl dand faa gfaeaed (@i
iqaad) T9 TATSTART AT AR TH! STATHT &b TTHTHR! ATEAT eqdrd TUH! fAfder ©
feferT & U toeavept afHe ARTehTHT ATETT FUHT YT TRT AIehT Tk Wi S
qar faxia dear o faamr 3 gt qUiaa FaRars 99d Suaed RS T94 |
e, yearew faia gfdeaer fawqa faerer a9 e qifeiausT Sr=rar JTT Jaargaar
e TG | TR e sreaten faira gfdeas Jaarger afguest IERT afTeTaT yeRrer
e gfqae a1 q0d Iword IS, |
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(x) =areH faxirr wfqeaes g™ el Afqeard TUAT ATieE dEraeieihere JHIvT TR
AT FHTTH IS, |

(3) &P ATMIF FURT ATAT FEATeIT FEATH! AARSHT A=ARH ol qfqaad T A@ra€raro
quepl faxira foaor = Sf@uat R AEwAT FROT GATE AT STAT FLATEH AT(H
GfeTarawepl eV ITHTHT T ool cTebebl @ITHT YeRTHTd T |

(¥) aarw o gfgaes gaird TeT STh Aatdedl Rl aiFd, hHARET grEred
GEET qAT ATTHY TAAHT TH0 @eiee TaH [HIATHN AT THAATS AT TR
AT FHIRTT THIAS, |

(%) TEAATIRUTHT SATAHIHT AT AARTHT AACH [T Gfqaad TepreTd a7 “Faeaeror T
[T a9 aTed d@TaiEEd 99/ M9 e feuAT afvsga fadi faererr ke 99
g A ZERTH Radle @l JHH THIAS, |

(%) T, Hifq, o qar AT ot TRusT fauee aHa qardr faw St saaedrae
JHTH FHESE TR a0 GiqaeTa T B Gl AGEATHT Frivad ETdrs ATTYTH
FRATE! TS, |

. T TSRl TATSTH A¥aT=IHT

T AT SHITSTH AT AT @I S AR of@rgd, HedTg a9l IEqcleol Tl Hl,
fAées evmader @7 Rl q9r anacass qu w91 e feeror g A |
TART T UTEAs, | a9 Sl fatqer g sty a9 Sepepr fafgey faammesar Jor T o
TAT GHIH T I9 TAT3ET T8 Sobebl qeaivdd (aed FuIfaTd § gg | 91, a9 depep
fgere awite a9 Sl fafaer faamT qor srremesar o1 79 o fafee qors wRwes
TAT YHTITH T I TN ABTHT aRor qeeedl 370 & aiq fAeemars a9 fAaemer amar
S C\ \?gl

AT FATSIAH] AN AR ITRA @ [a=or T T

79 g gt qATaR faTe Skl ATRANE FATIHER! AT qIR TR q ofEn
faaRues TAR T AT TATTHT AT |

RRIC G Ms11e 2: 2 I R LR o M 7 e e O M L i R Rl

fairar faamurept o ofTie SIvaTd YW ARl U ararT &1 ofiie F1aH €T a9 Sl ATebep
ST F qREA T e G | O, ATGEEH Seoid WUHl ‘o=’ ofHfaT e T
AEALTHAT ATAR AT eMUFee FHEL T FIhAS, |

. e faair faavores Ter T

AT AT s fEdTaehl ATIRAT TR IRepl ANy faard faaor ares s@radierdere gRisTE
FAGTIUNE H U AUA(S, IR ATH] YRISTE Jiqaed, I Jiqaed IR FaeqTI=eh]
SATh AT Gl ATIRAT TG el AMBIEURT A=A AR ARUHT faara fqavoes anfde a9
AT U 3 AieA T qeatead quiasor faamrar Sefaer @fr Tor ™ 9\ g | SE
PR OTE ST AT T SHE R-wenTd Waﬂwﬁwﬁaﬁmqﬁﬁﬁmww
FHITH FHESE T e a9 AT WUH! ¥ Hlewr T (WIE 99 TUH! AGEITAT TErdT
g7 T AEANT) @R wF R T uNg | A", gemEtead fake e,
AR DT ATTH qqdad qaT @R dAfed RUE (Long Form Audit Report, LFAR)
AGTINETT TEI HURT QY [GATT TF Sehepl Frafeard AL fqamme<ar g1 T g |
ATMIeh IR TATHT TRl AT T TH TGS JIR TN a1 fedma (Annual
Accounts) & qUTeaEror faqmTeRr TeAfq fauR ar qrastias TS, |

o)



R faira foavor qaR ik smaR a9 W@ dgrHia

(@) fairar faeor @R Tl A9 A gfqaea e (NFRSs) FHINE TaR T 999, | T9Td o@m
YTTAGAHTA S FHTAST AR SFFEEHT Aeaaiegd faira qfqagaa (IFRSs) @Ts ATl FIHT
faas; |

(@) faarRer quR & dUAET d@Hiides q9Td g giqagad e (NFRSS) AT Seoifad saaeTe]
FUTHT TET qATaR fahE ST gearasd Afqare qiRd RIS dadrEd IR gE, |
T AUATUH] @I desehl ATRTcHE [qaxor faxrg faarurer o@r av=r fewfr smra
gH@ @I (Significant Accounting Policies) $TIHeFAT Sei@ T 98 | d@MIIdes IRadT
T 9CHT q9 faira giqaead T (NFRSs) 1 dAGWHAT @0 9ikdad T diebdg | giedad
MR F@HIdesd! faazor fadi faezorer o@r awewdr fawoly s=ava Basis of Preparation

®I Changes in Accounting Policies ¥=RTd Jeei@ IS |

3. O FHHAN STOEdl AR Hediehd (Actuarial Valuation) TRISET A9 o qidqasd A
(NFRSS) &l 9radrd s eq PRI qoaTs e AR TE FeiauRer HTHATES (Assumption) g

HATh RIS wwmﬁ ATrd¥eh A@TIRETIETE Xl TS HWWW&H@W&W
WA AT Aot T e fere T |

¥, MIRASRT qHIENT

FEAT AT T A@IHIT STHITH FTIH g G HATRIETE S qa7 fadii Tear qweredy T,
093 YT qH bl [HEYAHITSTHST TUME TAT AT FUEEHT ThH SShiS T afehl gl
HATRTATE  SETTAHITSTHE] FAIAAHT FHENA T FEAH AUH IHAATE At faqeer a9
Jrps, |

(%) ¥ dfedr NFRSs Compliant fa<ig fgarer @™ &l Opening Statement of Financial
Position @1 T a9l faxia fqa=oAT NFRSs a#itsH fafqe ofiveesd qwmeE T
AfS=Iq HATHTHT THH STFAT TRHAT AT aRTeRE THAATs Statement of Changes in Equity #Thd
afs=ra HATHT (Retained Earning) @TAT @< < fHIAA#RT ®W (Regulatory Reserve) AT ST
T |

@) ufedt NFRSs Compliant fa<ira faaror qon @@ gqe=maer avewe fa<im faaroesar g™
FHITTHH! aaaErT T T HoEa@RT #19 (Regulatory Reserve) AT TeH STHAT,/ @4
T |
(@) Q) TEER e dhdl AT THNH S@rgT TRUH! boiih] AW AREHHE 99

JFepepr fEI THIRTT JIewTEr MR (Accrual Basis) AT @ RN ITST g7 ST =T
TN SR THHAT FATAA ATCATHATARB AT, FHAL AT qAT AU BT
(VTR SAST HY T N AHANAS FAGRNAE BIY) AT STHAT TH THH Haal Ao
it IHAATE Afsaa TATHT (Retained Earning) @9 T4 @Rl SINAT ST T
Mg | I AW GH W g ACHT FIHFeRl ®iNare qfsaq qaret (Retained
Earning) #1 feat 71+ afeas |

() JATIR AT g ool 9IS WaT=T J9ATd T@Id g1 ad7 Financial Closure g+
c N ;$ NN % \F\ \\; ﬁ .
JreHTar AT (Accrual Basis) T i@l WRUHI IH Aafd/Moratorium Period &

ATSTATs IS0 & YSilehd ATl AT Interest Capitalized Term Loan (ICTL)
SfTFAT Fg AT THINS, |




ICTL HT S@ishd FUHT YSilehd TSl SRTERB! IHHAT YATAT ATLATATARE! THH FHadl
T Al IHAATS Arsaa "ATRT (Retained Earning) @<= T Interest Capitalized
Reserve (ICR) @AMl w@id T 998 | J&< o@idd 9UH Interest Capitalized
Reserve (ICR) @rs fHa#=®rr #1W (Regulatory Reserve) sI=iia &q«is | ICTL =T
G AR TSIehd AT THH Tl HUILATT Ih (AT ICR aTe wars |faa HATRT
feamasr ¢ dMUYEs | A7, TS doliEenr RS Aefagd, AR angadt Sul
AT AT T Ik TIATSTATER! [AHIOT 1 &0 Yiqerd qrq= AUHT FHIOTT U
FaeqmaT ICTL AT eah! YhHems ICR are werg dfaa wareT feqremr ar afeas |

1. At the time of Income Recognition
Accrued Interest Receivable a/c Dr
To Interest Income Cr

2. At the time of Interest Capitalization

Interest Capitalized Term Loan (ICTL) a/c Dr
To Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR) a/c Cr
Retained Earnings a/c Dr
To Interest Capitalized Reserve(ICR) a/c Cr
3. At the time of Recovery

Cash/Bank a/c Dr

To ICTL a/c Cr

ICR a/c Dr

To Retained Earning a/c Cr

(3T) FRATA EXF HoIHT AT QTN FHINSTH a@Tga T gl e (Impairment Loss)

JaT TF Ahhl UG F. I FHINAT HAH A oAl AT @aedr (Loan Loss
Provision) #T fa=qa faaxer g Fo|mEsr R 79 995 | NFRSs aHitTH or/@rse g+
HAT BTAT ATRGTAIR] TBH T, (Heerd &, R THINSTH BIAH & boll AT AL THH
A3 FH UAT FH HUSIG ThH AT FIHT qisaaq qATHRT (Retained Earning) @rdrars
ge T EAEAERT HEHAT ST T 99 | NFRSs SHIGH @Tsd g7 Fell el
AT THH dge TUHT AT TSoAid ThH [MAATHN Paare afsard qArwrr fFar T
afepg |

qATaR e Sebhel quTer faira widqeaa= (NFRSs) @it Fair value through profit
or loss ®T <I@TgH TXHl AMHIET AT d7T F qerae<AT Fair value gain (unrealized
gain) 9UHT I ATHRT IEAATS Afsaq #ATRT (Retained Earning) @TaTeTs @ eI
WWWWW|WWWWWNFR&W
Frafeaa qratael Fair value gain @il ar Fair value l0Ss STTeT a=amdT &1 THHATS
M FTAT (HIHASRT FaTe Gtsad qATRET fRAT T AfFs; |

SHARATATANH AR, FHATT GG TIT TR BT (AR SWTST P TGN
TTHINE FAGNIA HIT) AT STEAT LRI TehH el LT qThl TS X Alehy qodra
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TEql ThH T dfepy gwafa fasel AURT GUHT o1 WYASTIRT AT THRET TRhT FUHT
[T FIvare Ffs=ra AATRT @A fhal T9 Alee, |

() fadra faerorer A>=ra {ATHRT /a1 F (RO ARG HATHT T F¥(ad g3 S
THId aRTaRH THH Al FATRT @TaTdTe @9 T MIATHT BTHT ST T I71, |
TR FLpl I AT & A F< GHrael 90 (Carrying Amount) AT FHT ST
FYAT FHT ATTHI SRTARB] THH (MAAASN HUATE Afoaaq qATRT @rarr fear T
g |

(F) AT @IS THITH Goodwill <@ T&T <@rs= Taiehl T9dT Goodwill T feraret
I (Carrying Amount) SRTERE! THH Afoad HATHRT GIATdTs @ TR IHTHRT HITHT
STET T 993 | A1, Goodwill T BTHT FTeRITHT (Impairment Loss) STRT e femerar
g9 o@rgT T Goodwill FT fHaTET H=a (Carrying Amount) SIS S=ITHT &A1 AT
FRTERFT THH ATHAARRI FHHATe fsad HATRT @IATAT fRdr T9 dfEs; |

(T) ATHET F@HITd FHITH Merger/acquisition 3@ fafsfa Bargain Purchase Gain @&l o@Ts+
AT @39 TRIH F9AT Al farar Hed (Carrying Amount) SRTER&T THA  Fised
HATRT @IATATE @ T FIHAHT HITHAT FTHAT I 995 T A1 ¥6H Bonus Share Sy
T JATSIRT AT | JANT T+ 4fbd & | @19, Bargain Purchase Gain &I &HaTE
BonusShare FTETHT ATNT TFirdd AL FqARTHT TeT & Fiel faeqa faaror afed
TeT T I | AN cpare FIkid IaTH HUH FaeaTAT Bonus Share STRT TR IHATH
e Frvare dfsaa qATRT @arET fhar T dfeTs, |

(@) ATET JEEINT FHINTH FHANT @oehl @gd &l AMHIT6E FATs9 (Actuary Valuation)
FuifeTd fas™T 9UHT Actuarial Loss @Ts Other Comprehensive Income HT @Tg T
HITITHT |1 SRTREF] THH Ao HATHT @ATdAs @ T [AIHAHN BITHT ST T
T8 | Actuarial Loss 0 HUHT FH WU I MIATHNT HoaTe Af=rd qATRT @rarr
fRar T Afes |

(3T) @I THINTH e @ TehH ATRT AT Qe «@rg 9% Other Comprehensive
Income WTHd a7 ATH Ifwdrar wmrgd WE fEdT femma swnider @t o
HUTCHE AUHT 9l SRIEGRP Fi>=d HATHT @ATdAls @ TR (HAHAHE BITH] ST T
UG | FH ATIE TTAT AET STHAT AT QTS HURT AFRATHT T ATFETAT TR
THH (HIHASRI HIEHT STFAT AUHT THH T&T del dgd <) [MITATH BT @< T
Tfserd HATHT @A ST T FihAs; |

(A7) AT Jecdfgd  aRATATedHl HEItead  quieasr faamer fagee faweasitweer wwa
AR FTHT FHRESE TS, |

() A== AATRT @ T IATHRT FTHT STEAT AUH IHA ITATHRT FOare 1. qioad
HATHTHT fRAT &7 Saedm AUAT MaAaery #ivere fFal g4 IwH A1 HITH STFT HUH
THH VST A& B |

() FAIRFERI BITHT ST qUHT THH T FaTHT Iledigd HaRAT TaH JF Sebel [qUepT TTehie
ATeehehl ATTITAT G T qTgTeT |

(°) TIHTHNT HITH] ST AUH JIT @ HUH THH Fled HITHT HUH TRATTR! (a0 ATHT
fairer faamurent or@m gwaredr fewrdi (Notes to Accounts) AT Iwi@ (Disclose) IS, |
AT HreT fe@eET q@rgs A9% Other Comprehensive Income HThd <@Tgehd &1 oI Ufg

Retained Earning AT “@TgeA gl a1 ATHIST [0 TH TR @@rged aal R0 gfdqerd TFH General
Reserve HT AT I, |
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%, gl T gErs
Q) TE depere TEAM TRT TRTHT TETqHT (Hea9es @vsl TRUH & -

THIRd 39, 059 FT or@r |difq qor faxir faaruessr gien awedr e e |,
¥ 97 AT MRUHT e qur 91 =g fafq k05 AT R qER AT qUwT a9 favge
Frafead T IRITET |

(k) SUGRT (@) THITH GRS RS A9 qa7 IROATHINTT T T HH FRATET T
ﬁ%&waﬁﬁwwnﬁaﬁmﬁﬁa|
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Ason....... Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions 4.3
Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Other trading assets 4.5
Loan and advances to B/FIs 4.6
Loans and advances to customers 4.7
Investment securities 4.8
Current tax assets 4.9
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10
Investment in associates 4.11
Investment property 4,12
Property and equipment 4.13
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14
Deferred tax assets 4.15
Other assets 4.16
Total Assets
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18
Derivative financial instruments 4.19
Deposits from customers 4.20
Borrowing 4.21
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9
Provisions 4.22
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15
Other liabilities 4.23
Debt securities issued 4.24
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital 4.26

2



Share premium
Retained earnings

Reserves 4.27
Total equity attributable to equity
holders

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28

Net assets value per share

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year

Interest income 4.29

Interest expense 4.30

Net interest income

Fee and commission income 4.31

Fee and commission expense 4.32

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income 4.33

Other operating income 4.34

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans

and other losses 4.35

Net operating income

Operating expense

Personnel expenses 4.36

Other operating expenses 4.37

Depreciation & Amortization 4.38

Operating Profit

Non operating income 4.39

Non operating expense 4.40

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 4.41

%



Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
e Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
e Gains/(losses) on revalution
e Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
e Income tax relating to above items
Net other comprehsive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
e Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
e Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
e Income tax relating to above items
e Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehsive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Group

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

®
c c
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Other

reserve

Total

Non-controlling

interest

Total equity

Balance at Sawan 1, 20...

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued

Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20......

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
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Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity

Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid

Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....

Bank
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Share
Capital
Share
premium
General
reserve
Exchange
equalizatio
N recerv/e
Regulatory
reserve
Fair value
reserve
Revaluatio
n reserve
Retained
parninn
Other
reserve
Total

Balance at Sawan 1, 20...

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued

Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Non-controlling

interest
Total equity



Balance at Asar end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20......

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For the year ended ........Asar 20.......
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Fees and other income received

Divided received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities

Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
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Interest received
Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 20.......
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 20.....

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Notes to the consolidated financialstatements

for the year
ended...... Asar........

1 Reporting entity
General and background information of infrastructure developmentbank and its subsidiary.
This shall also include the principal activities and location of the head office of the reporting
entity.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 | Statement of compliance

2.2 | Reporting period and approval of financial statements

2.3 | Functional and presentation currency

2.4 | Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

2.5 | Changes in Accounting policies

2.6 | New standards issued but not yet effective

2.7 | New Standards and interpretation not adopted

2.8 | Discounting

3 Significant Accounting Policies

R




3.1 | Basis of Measurement
3.2 | Basis of consolidation
a. Business combination
b. non controlling interest (NCI)
c. Subsidiaries
d.Loss of Control
e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)
f.Transaction elimination on consolidation
3.3 | Cash andcash equivalent
3.4 | Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition
Classification
Measurement
De-recognition
Determination of fair value
Impairment
3.5 | Trading assets
3.6 | Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
3.7 | Property and Equipment
3.8 | Goodwill Intangible assets
3.9 | Investment Property
3.10 | Income tax
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
3.11 | Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
3.12 | Provisions
3.13 | Revenue Recognition
Interest income
Fee and commission income
Dividend income
Net trading income
Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
3.14 | Interest expense
3.15 | Employees Benefits
3.16 | Leases
3.17 | Foreign Currency translation
3.18 | Financial guarantee and loan commitment
3.19 | Share capital and reserves
3.20 | Earnings per share including diluted
3.21 | Segment reporting

3




Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Cash in hand

Balances with B/FIs

Money at call and short notice

Other

Total

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Statutory balances with NRB

Securities purchased under resale agreement

Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Placement with domestic B/Fls

Placement with foreign B/FIs

Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other

Total
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Other trading assets
Group

Bank

4.5

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Treasury bills
Government bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

Loan and advances to B/Fls
Group

Bank

4.6

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Loans to bank and financial institutions
Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balance at Asar end

Loans and advances to customers
Group

Bank

4.7

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost
Less: Impairment allowances

Collective impairment

Individual impairment

Net amount

Loan and advances measured at
FVTPL
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Total

4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product
Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Product
Long Term loans
Personal
Business
Working Capital
Overdraft (Personal)
Trust receipt/Import loans
Cash Credit Loan
Short Term WC/Demand Loans
Personal residential loans
Real estate loans
Margin lending loans
Hire purchase loans
Auto Loan
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased
Staff loans
Other

Sub total

Interest receivable

Grand total

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency
Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japanese yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

Total
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4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Secured
Movable/immovable assets
Gold and silver
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls
Government guarantee
Guarantee of international rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Government securities
Counter guarantee
Personal guarantee
Other collateral
Subtotal
Unsecured
Grant Total
4.7.4: Allowances for impairment
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement
Balance at Asar end

Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement
Balance at Asar end
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Total allowances for impairment

Investment securities 4.8
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

Total

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities

Total
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4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities

Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair . . .
Fair Fair Fair
Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Investment in quoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Investment in unquoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
Current tax assets 49
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets
Tax assets of prior periods
Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities
Tax liabilities of prior periods
Total
Investment in subsidiaries 4710
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Investment in quoted subsidiaries
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries
Total investment

Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount
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4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

4.10.2: Investment in unguoted subsidiaries

4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........

Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Bank
Percentage of ownership held by
the Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Group
Current Year
..Ltd  ...Ltd. . Ltd  ...Ltd.
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Dividend paid to NCI

Previous Year

..Ltd  ...Ltd. ..Ltd ... Ltd.
Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........
Dividend paid to NCI
Investment in associates
Group
Current Previous Current
Year Year Year
Investment in quoted associates
Investment in unquoted associates
Total investment
Less: Impairment allowances
Net carrying amount
4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates
Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Year
) Fair . .
Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
411.2: Investment in unquoted
associates
Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Year
) Fair . .
Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value
............................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
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4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Group Bank
Percentage of Percentage of
ownership held by the ownership held by the
Bank Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
Group
Current Previous
Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
Total
Investment properties 4,12
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Investment properties measured at fair
value

Balance as on Sawan 1, ........
Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at
cost

Balance as on Sawan 1, ........
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer
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Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount

Total

Property and Equipment

Group

4.13

Particulars

Land

Building

Leasehold

Properties

&

Computer

Accessories

Vehicles

&

Furniture
Fixture

Machinery

&

Equipment
Others

Total Asar end

20X2

Total Asar End

20X1

Cost
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Ba
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Particulars

Land

Building

Leasehold

Properties

&

Computer

Accessories

Vehicles

&

Furniture
Fixture

Machinery

&

Equipment
Others

Total 31st Asar

20X2

Total Asar End

20X1

Cost
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As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14
Group
- Software Total ;c;:il
Particulars Goodwill Purchased | Developed Other '26‘5;; end end
20X1
Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1

Y




Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Bank

Particulars

Software

Goodwill Purchased

Developed

Total
Other | Asar end
20X2

Total
Asar
end

20X1

Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Deferred Tax

Group

Bank

4.15

Current Year

Current Year

AL




Net

Defer Defer

Net

Def d Deferr Deferred d d Deferred
Te erre ed Tax Tax _rlfe _rl_e Tax
Aax t Liabili Assets/ Aax t Laxb'l Assets/

. SSELs ties (Liabilitie SS€ —1abi (Liabiliti
Particulars 5) s ities es)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities

Property & equipment

Employees’ defined benefit plan

Lease liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences
Deferred tax on temporary differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........

Recognised in profit or loss

Recognised in other comprehensive income

Recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, ........

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or Toss

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity
Previous Year Previous Year

Net Net

Deferred Deferr Deferred rDeJer ?e;er Deferred
Tgxe € ed Tax Tax 'I'eax Teax Tax
Asset Liabili Assets/ Asset Liabil Assets/

. SSELs ties (Liabilitie SS€ —labi (Liabiliti
Particulars s) s ities es)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls
Loans and advances to customers
Investment properties
Investment securities
Property & equipment
Employees' defined benefit plan
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences
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Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........

Recognised in profit or loss
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1,

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

Other assets 4.16
Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Assets held for sale

Other non banking assets

Bills receivable

Accounts receivable

Accrued income

Prepayments and deposit

Income tax deposit

Deferred employee expenditure

Other

Total

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Money market deposits

Interbank borrowing

Other deposits from BFIs

Settlement and  clearing

accounts

Other deposits from BFls

Total

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18
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Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Refinance from NRB
Standing Liquidity Facility
Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements
Other payable to NRB
Total
Derivative financial
instruments 4.19
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other
Total
Deposits from customers 4.20
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Institutions customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits
Other

Individual customers:
Term deposits
Saving deposits
Current deposits
Other

Total
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4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Group

Bank

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese yuan

Other

Total

Borrowing

Group

Bank

4.21

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial
Institutions

Multilateral Development
Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

Provisions

Group

Bank

4.22

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Provisions for redundancy
Provision for restructuring
Pending legal issues and tax
litigation

Onerous contracts

Other
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4.21.1: Movement in provision

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Balance at Sawan 1

Provisions made during the

year

Provisions used during the

year

Provisions reversed during the

year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Asar end

Other liabilities 4.23
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations
Liability for long-service
leave

Short-term employee benefits
Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant
income

Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under  Finance
Lease

Employee bonus payable
Other

Total

4.22.1: Defined benefit obligations
Group Bank

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Present value of unfunded
obligations
Present value of funded
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obligations

Total present value of

obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Present  value of  net

obligations

Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations

4.22.2: Plan assets

Group Bank
Plan assets comprise
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other
Total
Actual return on plan assets
4.22.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid by the plan
Current service costs and interest
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end
4.22.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains
Expected return on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end
4.22.5: Amount recognized in profit or loss
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
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Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Total

4.22.6: Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Total

4.22.7: Actuarial assumptions
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset

Future salary increase

Withdrawal rate

Debt securities issued 4.24
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued at

amortized cost

Total

Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 4.25
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Redeemable preference shares

Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component)

Other

Total

Share capital 4.26
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Ordinary shares
Convertible preference shares (equity component only)
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only)
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Perpetual debt (equity
component only)

Total

4.25.1: Ordinary shares

Authorized Capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.

...................... Ordinary share of Rs.
100 each

Subscribed and paid up

capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.

100 each

Total

4.25.2: Ordinary share ownership

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other Institutions

Bank

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Percent Amount

Percent Amount

Public
Other
Foreign ownership
Total
Reserves 4.27
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Statutory general reserve

Exchange equalization reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve
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Investment adjustment reserve
Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve
Actuarial gain

Special reserve

Other reserve

Total

Contingent liabilities and

commitments 4.28
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

4.28.1: Contingent liabilities
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total
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4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdrafts
Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee

Total

4.28.3: Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made
in financial statements

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to
Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total
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Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

Explanatory paragraphs are required for litigation contingent liabilities as per their own case of
each bank

Interest income 4.29
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other

Total interest income

Interest expense 4.30
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

Total interest expense

Fees and Commission Income 4.31
Bank Group
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Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Loan administration fees
Service fees

Consortium fees
Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees
Credit card/ATM issuance and
renewal fees

Prepayment and swap fees
Investment banking fees
Asset management fees
Brokerage fees
Remittance fees

Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts
issued

Commission on share
underwriting/issue

Locker rental

Other fees and commission income

Total fees and Commission
Income

Fees and commission expense
Bank

Group

4.32

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commission expense

Total fees and Commission
EXxpense

Net trading income
Bank

Group

4.33

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Changes in fair value of trading
assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading
assets

909



Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange
transaction

Other

Net trading income

Other operating income 4.34
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Foreign exchange revaluation gain

Gain/loss on sale of investment

securities

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and

equipment

Gain/loss on sale of investment

property

Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other

Total

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other 435

losses '
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total

Personnel Expense 4.36
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Salary

Allowances
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Gratuity expense

Provident fund

Uniform

Training & development expense
Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Employees incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRSs
Other expenses related to staff

Subtotal
Employees bonus
Grand total
4.37
Other operating expense
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Directors' fee
Directors' expense
Auditors' remuneration
Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense
Office administration expense
Operating lease expense
Operating expense of investment
properties
Corporate  social  responsibility
expense
Onerous lease provisions
Other
Total
Depreciation & Amortization 4.38
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Depreciation on property and
equipment

Depreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets

Total

q0%



Non operating income

4.39

Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Recovery of loan written off

Other income

Total

Non operating expense 4.40
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Loan written off

Redundancy provision

Expense of restructuring

Other expense

Total

Income tax expense 441
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Current tax expense

Current year

Adjustments for prior years

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Changes in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses

Total income tax expense

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Profit before tax
Tax amount at tax rate of.......... %

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax effect on exempt income
Add/less: Tax effect on other items

Total income tax expense

Effective tax rate
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Statement of distributable profit or loss
For the year ended
(As per NRB Regulation)

Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Opening Retained Earning
Add: Adjustment
Add: T/f from acquired institutions
Less: Bonus Share Issued and Cash Dividend Paid
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:
a. General reserve
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund
e. Employees' training fund
f. Other

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
- Unrealized Gain on trading assets measured at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

Total Distributable Profit or (Loss)

5. Disclosure & Additional Information

5.1 | Risk management

Credit risk

Market risk

Liquidityrisk
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Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

5.2 | Capital management
Bank or Financial Instituion shall disclose following information in regard of capital
management:
(i) Qualitative disclosures
Summary information of objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital, terms and conditions of the main features of all capital instruments,
especially in the case of innovative, complex or hybrid capital instruments.
(i) Quantitative disclosures
1. Capital structure and capital adequacy

o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with
information on the outstanding amount, maturity, and amount raised
during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capitla;

o Total qualifying capitla;

o Capital adequacy ratio;

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its
capital to support current and future activities, if applicable; and

oSummary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital
instruments, especially in case of subordinated term debts including
hybrid capital instruments.

2. Risk exposures

o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational
Risk;

o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;

o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

(ili) Compliance with external requirement
Whether during the period it complied with any externally imposed capital
requirements to which it is subject and the consequences of such non-
compliance in case the institution has not complied with those requirements.
5.3 | Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

54 Operating Segment Information

1. General information

(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments

(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable
segment derives its revenues

. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities
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All

Particulars Reportable | Reportable | Reportable | ........ Other

Segment1l | Segment2 | Segment 3

Total

(@) | Revenues from external customers

(b) | Intersegment revenues

(c) | Net Revenue

(d) | Interest revenue

(e) | Interest expense

(f) | Netinterest revenue(b)

(9) | Depreciation and amortisation

(h) | Segment profit /(loss)

Entity’s interest in the profit or
loss of associates accounted for
(i) | using equity method

(j) | Other material non-cash items:

(K) | Impairment of assets

() | Segment assets

(m) | Segment liabilities

An entity shall disclose the following about each reportable segment if the specified
amounts are included in the measure of segment assets reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker or are otherwise regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

(@) Investment in associates accounted for by the equity method

(b) Amounts of additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments,
deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights arising under
insurance contracts.

3.Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.

(b) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’
profits or losses and the entity’s profit or loss before income tax.

(c) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’
assets and the entity’s asset.

(d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss and the effect, if any, and

(e) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.
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4.Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

liabi
(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

lities
Revenue
Total revenues for reportable segments XXXX
Other revenues XXXX
Elimination of intersegment revenues (Xxxx)
Entity’s revenues XXXX
Profit or loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segments XXXX
Other profit or loss XXXX
Elimination of intersegment profits (XXXX)
Unallocated amounts:
............ XXXX
............ (Xxxx)
Profit before income tax XXXX
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments XXXX
Other assets XXXX
Unallocated amounts (XXxX)
Entity’s assets XXXX
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments XXXX
Other liabilities XXXX
Unallocated liabilities (Xxxx)
Entity’s liabilities XXXX

5. Information about products and services

profit or loss, assets and

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above

@ | o XXXX
)| i XXXX
©) | i XXXX
6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas

(a) | Domestic XXXX

Province 1 XXXX

Province 2 XXXX

Province 3 XXXX

Province 4 XXXX

Province 5 XXXX
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Province 6 XXXX
Province 7 XXXX

(b) | Foreign XXXX
Total XXXX

7. Information about major customers

Information about the extent of its reliance on its major customers, if revenue
from a single external customer amounts to 10 percent or more of the entity’s

revenue.
Particular Revenue | Segment
Customer 1* XXXX Segment 1
Customer 2* XXXX Segment 3
......... XXXX Segment 2
Total XXXX

* The entity does not need to disclose the name of the customer

5.5 | Share options and share based payment

5.6 | Contingent liabilities and commitment

5.7 | Related parties disclosures

5.8 | Merger and acquisition

5.9 | Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities

5.10 Classification of Loans, Advances & Bill Purchase and Provisioning

Classification of Loans, Advances & Bill Purchase and Provisioning

(Amount in Million)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Total

Advances

Total

Loan and | Provisions | Loan and | Provisions

Advances

1. Performing Loan and Advances

1.1 Pass Loan

1.1.1 Pass Loan (other than
Restructured/Rescheduled Covid
Related)

1.1.2 Pass Loan
(Restructured/Rescheduled Covid
Related)

1.2 Watch List

2. Non-Performing Loan and Advances

2.1 Restructured / Rescheduled

2.2 Sub-standard
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2.3 Doubtful

2.4 Loss

3. Total Loan and Advances (1+2)

4. Staff Loans

5. Accrued Interest

6. Grand Total (3+4 +5)

5.11 Statement of Principal Indicators (last 5 Fiscal Years)

Indicators Unit | FY.....| FY..... FY..... FY..... FY....
Core Capital NPR
Supplementary
Capital NPR
Total Capital Fund | NPR
Risk Weighted
Exposure NPR
Earning Per Share
(Average share
outstanding) NPR
Market Value Per
Share NPR
Book Net Worth
Per Share NPR
Number of
Promotor Equity
Shares Nos.
Number of Public
Equity Shares Nos.
Number of
Permanent Staffs Nos.
Price Earning Ratio | Times
Dividend (including
bonus) on Share
Capital Percent
Cash Dividend on
Share Capital Percent
Net Profit / Gross
Income Percent
Net Profit / Loans
and Advances Percent
Return on Total
Assets Percent
Return on Equity Percent
Interest Income /

Loans and
Advances Percent

‘ 5.12 ‘ Events after reporting date.
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5.13 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs

1. Reconciliation of equity

Explanato
ry Note *

As at As at
01.04.2073 31.03.2074
(End of last
(Date of  period presented
Transition) under previous

GAAP)

Total equity under Previous GAAP
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan
Lease accounting
Measurement of investment securities at fair value
Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortisation of debt securities issued
Deferred tax
Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Interest income
Other

Total Adjustment to equity

Total Equity under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which

transition effect has been arisen

2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

Explanatory
Note*

For the
31.03.2074

year  ended

(the latest period presented
under previous GAAP)

Previous GAAP

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income
Impairment of loan and advances

Profit/(Loss) for the year
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Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan
Defined benefit obligation of employee
Operating lease expense

Amortisation expense of debt securities

Other operating income

Interest expense

Depreciation & Amortisation

Other

Total Adjustment to profit or loss

Profit or loss under NFRSs
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which

transition effect has been arisen

3. Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position

As at 31.03.2074
(End of last period
presented under previous
GAAP)

As at 01.04.2073
(Date of Transition)
2. o ©°53 i
Particulars 85 8 2SI > BT
oz 23 S g Z Swl235
xS £2< £ I£F ZHESEL
w < o wkF = 8_& % g 2
Assets

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Derivative financial instruments
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to B/FIs
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities

Current tax assets

Investment in susidiaries
Investment in associates
Investment property

Property and equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Previous
N NANNAND
Cumulativ
e Effect of
Transition
to NFRSs
Amount
as per

NIFRQe
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Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions

Due to Nepal Rastra
Bank

Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest

Total equity o
Total liabilities and
equity

* Explanatory note is required for each line item which has been impacted by transition

4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

9 For the year ended 31.03.2074

> (the latest period presented under

> previous GAAP)

=] = 5 O —

S =~ 28,
Particulars = >3 S o S

X t E o LL e o L

n ao WhFcz < s Z

Interest income
Interest expense
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Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income

Other operating income

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans
and other losses

Net operating income

Operating expense
Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating Profit
Non operating income
Non operating expense
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which
transition effect has been arisen

5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows

For the vyear ended 31.03.2074
(the latest period presented under

> previous GAAP)

(@]

i Previou Effect  of Amount
Particulars ‘_g_ *?B s GAAP Transition as  per

g2 to NFRSs NFRSs

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
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Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period

* Explanatory note is required for each line item

Format for Interim Financial Reporting

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)
......... Quarter ended of Fiscal Year 20...../20.....
Rs. in '000'

. . ... This Quarter | Previous Corresponding
Statement of Financial Position Ending Quarter Ending | Previous  Quarter

Assets Ending

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from NRB and placements with BFIs
Loan and advances

Investments Securities

Investment in subsidiaries and associates
Goodwill and intangible assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital

Reserves and surplus

Deposits

Borrowings

Bond and Debenture

Other liabilities and provisions

Total Capital and Liabilities

Up to this | Up to Previous | Up to

) Quarter Quarter Corrosponding
Statement of Profit or Loss Previous Year

Quarter

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Other operating income
Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other
losses

1




Net operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit

Non operating income/expense
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit /(loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per NRB
Directive
Profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments

Ratios

Capital fund to RWA

Tier 1 Capital to RWA

CET 1 Capital to RWA

Nonperforming loan (NPL) to al loan (As per NRB Directive)
Total loan loss provision to Total NPL (As per NRB Directive)
Cost of Funds

Credit to Deposit Ratio ( As per NRB Directive)

Base Rate

Basic Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Return on Equity

Return on Assets

WEEHI: Return on Equity 9T Return on Assets T foazur sifife sawT e ‘T'{‘ﬁf B | qY I
HAUTAETH! TTUAT & AARH FARTP & qAT ATTH AATB! G FISIITHT T & |

Segmental Reporting

The reportable segment of each bank may differ from the other; the commercial banks should
publish the segmental reporting as per the requirement of NFRSs in their own format.
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Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Comparison Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY ....... [eveeranes
Rs. in
'000'
Statement of Financial Position As  per | As — per| Variance Reasons
unaudited Audited 0 for
Financial Financial In In % Variance
amount
Assets Statement Statement

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from NRB and placements with BFIs
Loan and advances

Investments Securities

Investment in subsidiaris and associates
Goodwill and intangible assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital

Reserves and surplus

Deposits

Borrowings

Bond and Debenture

Other liabilities and provisions

Total Capital and Liabilities

Statement of Profit or Loss

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Other operating income
Total operaing income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and
other losses
Net operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit

Non operating income/expense
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit /(loss) for the period

AEE




Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per
NRB Directive
Profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments

Brief explanations on accounts head of the Statement of Financial Position
Assets Side

1.

Cash and cash equivalent

This account shall be used for presenting the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with
other bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the
licensed institution in the management of its short term commitments.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities
purchased from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and
receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this account head.

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original
maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this
account head.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall be presented
under this head.

Other trading assets

Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together
for short-term profit shall be presented under this account head. The other trading asset
includes non derivative financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds,
Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading
purpose.

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances given to bank and financial institutions shall be presented under this
head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank and financial institutions shall be
deducted.
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7. Loan and advances to customers.

Under this head, sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the
customers other than BFIs as well as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of
impairment allowances shall be presented. Loan to employees provided according to the
Employees Bylaws of the licensed institution shall also be presented under this head.

8. Investments securities

Investments made by the licensed institutions in financial instruments shall be presented
under this account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and
investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Investment other than those measured at amortized cost shall be measure at fair value and
changes in fair value shall be recognized in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income
as per the business model adopted by the infrastructure developmentbank for the specific
securities. Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the
valuation of investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares only without
changing in the cost of investment. The financial institutions shall disclose following
particulars in respect of investment in shares and debenture/bond.

a. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in shares of
other companies
(1) Name of the company

(2) Type of share (ordinary or preference), in case of preference shares, including
the rate of dividend.

(3) Total number of shares subscribed (including bonus shares if received).
(4) Face value per share

(5) The cost price to licensed institution.

(6) Fair value of the shares at the end of the fiscal year.

(7) Where a company, in which the licensed institution has investment in shares, has
not declared dividend for previous 3 years, particulars indicating the same.

b. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in debentures
and bonds of other companies

(1) Name of the company

(2) Rate of Interest

(3) Installment of Debenture/bond subscribed.

(4) Face value per debenture/bond.

(5) Maturity date of debenture/bond

(6) The purchase price of the debentures/bond

(7) Fair value of the debentures/bond measured at fair value

The infrastructure developmentbank shall recognize impairment loss if any on the
investment instruments measured at amortized cost. The calculation of impairment loss
shall be as per requirement of NFRSs.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The infrastructure developmentbank shall recognize, measure, present and disclose the
investment instruments as per the requirement of NFRSs.

Current tax assets

This will include any advance payment made by the licensed institution towards income
tax liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities that are controlled by the bank. Investment made by the bank
in its subsidiaries shall be presented in this head under separate financial statements.
Since, the investment amount is eliminated in consolidation process, no amount shall be
presented under group financial statements.

Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the bank has significant influence but not control
over the financial and operating policies. Investment made by the bank in its associates
shall be presented in this head under this account head.

Investment properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non
current assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard shall be presented under
this account head. This shall include land, land and building acquired as non banking
assets by the Bank but not sold.

Property and equipment

All assets of long-term nature (fixed) like land, building, IT equipment, fixtures and
fittings, office equipment and appliances, vehicles, machinery, leasehold developments
and capital work in progress owned by the licensed institution shall be presented under
this head.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally
generated, trade mark etc. shall be presented under this account head.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry
forward of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. shall be presented under this account
head.

Other Assets

This account will include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned above.
Assets held for sale, non banking assets (other than land or land and building), restricted
deposits with central banks, accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income,
prepayments and deposit are some of the items to be included under this head.

Liabilities and Equity side

1.

Due to bank and financial institutions

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks
and financial institution shall be presented under this head. Interbank borrowing,
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interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount
due to bank and financial institution shall be presented under this account head.

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank.
Amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity
facility, lender of last resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

Derivative financial instruments

It includes all derivative liabilities. Derivative instruments like interest rate swap,
currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk
management purposes shall be presented under this head.

Deposits from customers

All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB shall be
presented under this account head.

Borrowing

All domestic as well as foreign borrowing other than interbank borrowing and borrowing
from Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this heading. It includes borrowing from
Nepal Government, borrowing from other domestic institutions, borrowing from foreign
bank and financial institutions, multilateral development banks etc.

Current Tax Liabilities

The liabilities recognized for the purpose of current income tax, including fees, penalties
shall be included under this head.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision
for redundancy, provision for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal
issues and tax litigation, credit commitments and guarantees etc. shall be presented under
this account head. Followings are the additional clarification on accounts presented under
this account head.

(a) Provision for Redundancy

It shall include benefits payable as a result of employment being terminated or based
on a dismissal plan of the licensed institution. Provision for employees' termination
benefits like voluntary retirement scheme shall be presented under this account head.

(b) Provision for restructuring

Restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business
locations or relocation in a region, changes in management structure, fundamental
reorganizations that have a material effect on the nature and focus of the bank’s
operations etc. The provision of restructuring that is recognized as per the requirement
of NFRSs shall be presented under this account head

(c) Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Provisions recognized for any pending legal issues and tax litigation matters shall be
presented under this account head.

e



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

(d) Onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the licensed institution from a contract is lower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision amount that is recognized for
onerous contract as per NFRSs shall be presented under this heading.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in
respect of taxable temporary differences, shall be included under this head. Deferred tax
liabilities that are recognised as per requirement of NFRSs shall be presented under this
account head.

Other liabilities

Any residual liabilities not captured above, shall be presented under an appropriate head
in this account. Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit
obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave, cash settled share
based payment liabilities, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals,
Interest payable on deposit and borrowing, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. shall
be presented under this account head.

Debt securities issued

Debenture, bond or other debt securities issued by bank shall be presented under this
broad account head.

Subordinated Liabilities

Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors shall be included here. It shall include redeemable
preference share, subordinated notes issued, borrowingsetc.

Share capital

The amount of paid up share capital of the licensed institution shall be mentioned under
this head. Amount credited in share capital by issuing bonus shares utilizing the
accumulated profit and reserves shall also be disclosed under this heading. This shall
include paid up amount of ordinary share capital and equity component of preference
share capital. The convertible preference shares which includes an option for the holder of
the shares to convert the preferred shares into a fixed number of ordinary shares at any
time after a predetermined date, irredeemable preference share and perpetual debt
instruments, the equity component that is recognized and measured as per NFRSs as
equity as well shall be presented under this heading.

Share premium

The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be
presented under this heading. The outstanding amount in this account shall not be
considered eligible for distribution of cash dividend.

Retained earnings

The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been
ploughed back in the licensed institution’s operations and is free for distribution of
dividend to the shareholders shall be presented under this heading.
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15. Reserves

Licensed institution shall include the amounts received from allocation of profits or
retained earnings in connection with maintaining reserves or created from any other
process. Normally, amount shall be credited to this heading having debited the
accumulated profit and while using these reserves, the concerned reserve account shall
have to be debited. Followings are the additional clarification of account head under
reserve.

(a) General Reserve:

General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed
from appropriation of net profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073 shall be included. No type of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be
distributed from the amount in general/statutory reserve. Approval of NRB shall be
required in order to use the amount in this reserve.

(b) Exchange Equalization reserve

(©)

Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. A bank which has earned
foreign exchange revaluation gain on foreign currency other than India currency has
to allocate 25 percent of such revaluation gain to this reserve as per provision of the
Bank and Financial Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange equalization
reserve as per the provision of the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be
presented under this heading.

Fair Value Reserves

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets that are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is
recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The
cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be
presented under this account head.

(d)Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment,
Intangible Assets, Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading.
Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not
be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in
market values and tax consequences of revaluation.

(e) Capital Reserve

()

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of
capital and which shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The
amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of remaining amount for the
unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of
merger and acquisition etc should be presented under this heading.

Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive
or special instruction of NRB shall represent special reserve. The amount allocated
to this reserve by debiting retained earning account shall be presented under this
heading.

(g) Capital Redemption Reserve
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This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards
Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares.

(h) Dividend Equalization Fund

For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of
profit during the year of profit making may be transferred shall be presented under
this account head. Dividend may be distributed by debiting this account with the
approval of the Board of Directors and endorsed by the General meeting.

(i) Capital Adjustment/Equalization Fund

Any amount that is allocated from the amount retained profit to a reserve that is
created for the raising capital of the Bank as well as calls is advance amount to
make up minimum paid up capital amount shall be presented under this account
head.

(J) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating
profit shall be presented under this account head.

(K) Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's
investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

() Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value
employee obligations shall be presented under this account head.

(m) Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this
reserve as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs
and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as
bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. The amount allocated to
this reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received in cash,
difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and
advance as per NFRSs (in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRSS),
amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss recognized in other comprehensive
income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc.

(n) Other Reserve Fund

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above)
shall be presented under this by disclosing accounting heads.

16. Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the portion of equity ownership in a subsidiary not
attributable to the parent company, which has a controlling interest and consolidates the
subsidiary's financial results with its own. The bank who has a subsidiary and
consolidates the financial statement of subsidiary in its own shall present the equity
portion of the subsidiary that are attributable to the shareholders other than the bank under
this account head.
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Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Profit or Loss Account

1.

Interest income

The interest income recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. This
heading shall include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except
on those investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and and
cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff
etc.

Interest expense

The interest expenses recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. The
interest accrued on deposits collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained,
subordinated liabilities, amount due to bank and financial institutions, due to NRB etc.
shall be presented under this heading.

Fees and commission income

Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the bank to its customers.
Fee income arises on the execution of a significant act completed or from provision of
services like asset management, portfolio management, management advisory and service
fees etc. Loan documentation fee, loan management fee, consortium fee, commitment fee,
card issuance and renewal fees, prepayment and swap fee, remittance fee, investment
banking fee, asset management fee, brokerage, commission on letter of credit,
commission on guarantee, locker rental income, etc. should be presented under this
heading. The fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on
the financial assets are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate and shall
not be recognized as income, however immaterial amount can be recognized in profit or
loss account as income.

Fees and commission expense

Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank shall be
presented under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees,
guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that
are integral to the effective interest rate on the financial liability are included in the
measurement of the effective interest rate and shall not be recognized as expense

Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and
includes all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as
unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities shall be presented under
this account head.

Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads
above shall be booked and presented under this head. This shall include foreign exchange
revaluation gain, gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on available
for sale securities, gain/loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of
investment properties, operating lease income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver,
finance income of finance lease etc.
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7.

10.

11.

12.

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses.

Impairment loss recognized as per NFRSs on loan and other losses shall be presented
under this account head. It shall includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and
advances to customers, loan and advances to bank and financial institutions, investment
securities, placement with bank and financial institutions, property and equipment,
goodwill and intangible assets, investment properties etc.

Personnel expenses

All expenses related to employees of a bank shall be included under this head. Expenses
covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity,
contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff
bonus, finance expense under NFRSs, cash-settled share-based payments etc.

Other Operating expenses

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and
presented under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head shall
include office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors'
emoluments, remuneration and non audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal
expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring,
impairment of non financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous
lease provisions etc.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life. Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an
intangible asset over its useful life.Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRSs
on property and equipment, and investment properties, and amortization of intangible
assets shall be presented under this account head.

Non operating income/expense

The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of
transactions shall be presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this
account head shall include loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision,
expense of restructuring etc.

Income tax expense

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit shall be recognized and presented under
this account head. This account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax
expense/deferred tax income.

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income

1.

Fair value reserve relating to investment in equity instruments

Net changes in fair value of equity instrument that are measured at fair value and the
changes in fair value is required to be recognized in other comprehensive income shall be
recognized and presented under this account head. The changes may be subsequently
reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be
deducted from the fair value reserve.
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Changes in revaluation reserve

Changes in revalued amount of property and equipment, and intangible assets shall be
presented under this account head.

Cash flow hedge

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variability in
cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion
of changes in the fair value (losses) of the derivative is recognised and presented in Other
comprehensive income under this account head. The changes may be subsequently
reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be
deducted from the fair value reserve.

Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans

Re-measurement gain/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income and shall be presented under this account head.

Income tax relating to these items

The income tax relating to the items shown in other comprehensive income shall be
presented under this head.
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®1 (Main Business Function) afest gzemerT (First Line of Defence) &I &9HT T89
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1.

®

Interest Rate Change (IRC) = 20/3%4X0.09 = 0,00

(%) &+ 7t dfes Fam (New Product) =T FEROT qAR T SATHERHT IATXHAGTHT
FRUT FEITHT ATTATTHT TEAT SAfFg FATHN FRU I FEHT FeATFT IS, | SATTR
SifEAdrs  gfestd T Pricing ¥ Repricing @@maq  gfqeaaicas  faeeroor
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Particulars

Detail Informations
(Not exhaustive)

Update Frequency (in
SIS)

Deadline for
Update (in SIS)

A. | Entity Details Page
Organization Chart, Within 7 days of
Authorised & Paid up Capital, Change
1. Primary Information | Contact details As & when change occurs
Within 7 days of
Committee Name, Members Name, Change
2. Details of Committee | Designation, Start Date, etc. As & when change occurs
Within 7 days of
Ownership type, Percentage, Host Country Change
3. Ownership Details Name, Name of Investors etc. As & when change occurs
.. . Within 7 days of
4. Subsidiary/Associate | Type of Subsidiary, Name of Subsidiary, Change
s Details Holding percentage, etc. As & when change occurs
Name, Father & Grandfather Name, Type,
Representation from, Contact details, PAN,
. Term, Biodata, Declaration on Code of Within 7 days of
5. Details of Board of Conduct, Citizenship Certificate, Change
Directors Qualification Certificate, etc. As & when change occurs
Within 7 days of
Change
6. Details of Auditors Name, Type, Contact details, etc. As & when change occurs
. Within 7 days of
7. Details of Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather Change
Management Team Name, Contact details, PAN, Biodata, etc. | As & when change occurs
8. DEta'|5_0f Ch'?f Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather Within 7 days of
Executive Officer Name, Contact details, PAN, Biodata, Change
(CEO) Appointment letter, Citizen Certificate, etc. | As & when change occurs
. Detalls_ of Within 7 days of
Compliance and Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather Change
Reporting Officer Name, Contact details, PAN, etc. As & when change occurs
10. Annu_al General Within 7 days of
Meeting Reportand | Attachment of AGM Report and Change
Resolution Resolution As & when change occurs
L. Within 7 days of
11. Policies and Policy Name, Category, Effective Date, As & when change or Change or update
Procedures Approved by, Attachment of the document | update occurs
Type, Location, Contact Details, Vault When branch opened, closed | On the date of operation
B | Branch Details Page Capacity, etc. or relocated start, close or relocate

Branchless Banking

Related Branch, Agent Details, Contact

When BLB opened, closed

q90




Details Page

Details, Location, etc.

or relocated

On the date of operation
start, close or relocate

Related Branch, Location, ATM Capacity,

When ATM opened, closed

On the date of operation

D | ATM Details Page etc. or relocated start, close or relocate
Base Rate, Deposit Type, Deposit Interest
) rate, Loan Type, Min./Max Interest Rate, within 7 days of end of
Deposit/Loan Product Min./Max. Premium Rate, Effective date, the month or
E | Details Page etc. Monthly & after change Change
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Indicators Unit Amount Remarks

Adeguacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weighted Assets

Core Capital NPR

Total Capital Fund NPR

Risk Weighted Exposure NPR
Earning Per Share (Average share outstanding) NPR
Market Value Per Share NPR
Book Net Worth Per Share NPR
Net Profit Per Staff NPR
Per Employee Staff Cost NPR
Number of Promotor Equity Shares Nos.
Number of Public Equity Shares Nos.
Number of Permanent Staffs Nos.
Number of Branches Nos.
Price Earning Ratio Times
Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent
Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent
Net Profit / Gross Income Percent
Net Profit / Loans and Advances Percent
Return on Total Assets Percent
Return on Equity Percent
Interest Income / Loans and Advances Percent
Exchange Gain / Total Income Percent
Interest Expenses / Total Deposits and Borrowings Percent
Total Operating Expenses / Total Assets Percent
Staff Expenses / Total Operating Expenses Percent
Staff Bonus / Total Staff Expenses Percent
Total Credit / Deposits Percent
Non-Performing Loans / Total Loans Percent
Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent
Weighted Average Interest Rate on Deposit Percent
Weighted Average Interest Rate on Credit Percent
Institutional Deposit/Total Deposit Percent
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U@ TRUHT Folleeedl [qaver aifdsd av Farad wquar fafqer qu feafasr &
QUL framT ¥ Fofl GodT b fAfHESHT T8 7 |

(@) FeaTel fae ST ST TaH fqard e e SeTdeHitsTH e Maees an gie |

Q) fadr TR qmaa ST fod STAREQERT WO faq B WO IEmHE FRAT
STHTAC! BRTST TRl &1 Al STHTAAR! 3ehebl ATHT dATbl HIel AHT gaqT A
TET THIAHATR! I T g T THHAARATH Gg BRI RIS |

() WO qUT ofb Mo AT STHMIRA] T Share WU qUT STHHT FFHT TRTEH
frgdesdT AfEUHT SERT TAH 9Tdee 98w TUHT Ugd Alhd @rardT aar e
RT3 |

(3) STHMAHAT Hed THl AaT Tl sdAbebl NI Hald I T Jo&l ar el
AT BT ARG |

(¥) STHTIASATS Fe TPl I THITTHP! THH ATIH JEAead HOTATE 7 TGqA
IR T, FHEtad HOETE d9d II g AHHHT THHARATA Fdd Tl JIHT
EIAFR] THA (ST STHTAdHAT [SURT IRE fadrere #a sHitsH faam 1=
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HeATST T I |

(%) ST fade Pl TPl THH dTed MRl A IMMAcd FFIHT STHTAT Erehl
FHEIfAeTe dgd I A |

(9) STHMAAHAT FaA THl ITTAR! THH Frtead HUETe qa IR gT AGHAT
HTA STHTAA ST [GUR GRETTATE AGATRT GHAT MM TRTI |

(5) STHMAAHA Hed THl STHFAHR! THH SA9d FHIAT @Al 6 ATTHT
RIS STHTTT FRETUTHT W qeafd Fehar Tie |

(%) el fAURT AT ATIT STHATRT Hebehl IHH STHAARAT (SUH fadr qrReqorene
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T W R T RIS T AIIEUE aATg A T |
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~
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e T AACHT fadr el dF fqerHEl  gEer SRRt TR
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(Q3) Sehel THHT TREAVMT TEh! TR FAeAT &1 SAIATST I GOhaT qor srafafesr
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(Q¥) STHAT GREAH qHra (o ffaa=r srmfe a1 faamm 9e=nq Hiea a85g
Al T fad |

@) e MRS e 99 HarsT s |

Q) oIt fa A F ol aafaer 98 qearsT g7 araraRre gHEfEraar T |
(x) Taar e@l g¥afa faamm Teiel a@dsl geiad ook | Aqar fqdrd foshl
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(3)  geus Hulier 3T T fAadqasr F w7 fquer TR AGETTRT & A HIAr ol
Y T el SUATH  Agd At ROl ¥ Sl afEnyfa gwe ¥
FETTAT IET AT Taxed ol Aqd T IRAT AT STITh & gal |l &l
FIARETAr g TR e HaAra |

(%) ol feQTeT g@d TRUH! = AR aRER ATSTEIHT i T RIS |

(%) WU FAFAl UBRAT GRFA WO MR TRARET AT A IR
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T U5 | dR qEEtead S qar faxii TRATel ATFT ATRARE FATTART ATNT 7T
ATl ATUTHT JIR RUHT fq@des s ANH Aqare W Afqae@H T Ted 99
D, |

fageft AMTvepeed T g9 FRERE ¥ faeefl sfrgererar am yanr g faadeesr
FHAT A9 (STET: T FOTel ST a1 T Aar TRTE &7 |

b T faxirg WA AT FEAIT WO g¥ATE 97 (Offer Letter), el dHIAE (
Loan Deed), fadieae# fa@d (Mortgage Deed), Hypothecation Agreement ¥ Trust
Receipt Agreement ATTATIFTHT IAANTRI fAUl JTAl ATITHT TR TH9 ¥ Consortium
Loan Agreement, Letter of Assignment, Letter of Guarantee T &&HT ETAATS 3Iail
ATITHT GHT TAR T Gl | A, A BESIAeseArs G0 HiHd FTAT el ATITAT
TAR & S AT a9 |

ferea / ST TR &1 STHHT THH, HH qatd, O A, THE |, are,
SHTHAGATRl ATH, AN, AT Hl FAEd AR [FUaes a7 a0 bR
[EaEeHT AT SEEEHISHE [qUaesdrg Agied WA AfFard 39 Jeodd T
TG, |

g T Iig A [AuaEe

Q) FEafead aafcherr A8, ST, fafq, safdmer gwar Amieear/ aradd awR q4qr faq
T,

) TR, AT, FATI,

3) I~ ATchebl THIIHT b qoT i TTIERT gATE,

¥) T,

Y) qrel (Witness),

%) EEATER Gfe=Td 9 FATSTHR! AT F¥fead Rl TH,

©) A ATTIAF IGUHT [TIIET |

TS AwRiead PRERHAT G g4 Aedhdl TAER, =6/ 9=R aad 9=
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TEATS TETT THITHET TAITETH] ATTTHT 2T TR ATl ANReATS faeh T8 1/ RIS
TS |

(%)

AR AU ANIRPEE ST a1 9 FRIegdT @ Gearel (e giafre aar
IEARIAT (Technical Service Agreement, TSA) T TR AUTET ANIREETE a€Ta JaT
fo s |

Q) ool Foeh i gotaa S qar fadie gedmesd fagelt avrewar (Joint
Venture Partner) ST wifafires Jam I=RIET (Technical Service Agreement, TSA)
T gfafy exaraRor & faelt T qur gtaty gxaraRer UF, 08y FHIH
AT AT FIAAT AT TEHTA Al ATLITH] TRATAAT T TS, |

() rfafue Far FEHIAT (TSA) A7 48 fawoes garsy 799 |
@) yifatae Far FERIAT Aaid FEeg_ a1 faq 98 ¥ ger |
(@) wifatge Fa1 Y&= T (a9 AT ANEES |
(M) oifafue FaT FERTATHT At JAT ek |
(&) HERATIT FATHT @i ATST TR TUTCAT AT qTiesafies a7 qfaer |
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(F) AT YATHT @idg ATST X ATl ANTRepepl ITefaes qor qiaer
e Fria (Wifafa® Jar ekdle RN AT SSSauayTe] H¥AT SR
a1 foma) |

(=) OTfaide FaTHT Widg ATIT T S9Tel ANTeheb FaT et |
(@) UTiafae JaT TERTAT THINTH FTT THCAT el afaqqiae! & |
() o ATITF [a9T |

yifafres FaT IRRIAT (TSA) d=Ad @idg ATSH TR AUTGl ATRFEsH gl
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THITTH EHd faR A F T/ WG 9 |

qifafae AT ROl THINTH GFed SISy o AT e SErHT
AT ATehT AT @idg AT TR ATl ANTRbR! AT SEATHITTH &, |
(@) 30 TG Yo Fiaeraawr fazell = Teehr ATZATHT TEMHAT 3 THEH |
@) Yo gfaera wwaT Tl faeell T TEh! ATTATHT TGl ¥ TATIH |
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WWWWWW{WW TEITE FE=TTE A
GEITHE T FHATNETH AN TT TRH T3 FTARH TAT 9l TIT e
FEET FFCITATE TATGTE |

fagefr Hoeh oI AReehT qaraR fasra Seeeet IR A9TE ARTREATE SHaerd=
a1 faq 9IS S | @R, AU WHRATE [qRIRE qg ATCHT I iiafae
QIR ATAAF TUHT qarar fapra Sear faaef & ar faxdrr gwar ofafas
THE | TEAT Griaiered AT TR dai, T ATl TRIbRT Jar ety qor
qRATHE FFmAT TG Sl ST f§U FHifad g7 |

BT 1] TEehl YTt eres qar TERIAr (TSA) 1 Fafd TH TUIe=Td FEel I8
AT AAAHT TET FAT FERIAT T T, |

g) AT Jeifgd HAARATTHINTT F TR FATeAl ANTRPeATS FHATIR! TqHT IR TR0

FH TRISH AU AT JEIwET © AT e (J979 TGHT T@S9TH 387 HHART T
TATHT A9 GRERATE [ARIT A% ATTHT <@ FHITHS! FOhAT/ AaCITESH!
QT T4 TR AT ANRFTS (a5 TR 0 RIS GaS

Q) TR AT ATNREATS ool TRA (4979 g FoT Sl TERIATHT TEImAT FTITH

FHET a7 fafTaarasiaT Tee e T g e |

) AIfFTR 9T UGHT FAGIH AUl ANMREATS  GATHEAT 65 Ia=den

TAYTAHTHT Fa=TIH TR T a9, |
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(3) MTIATARRT TAATHET AT THTH &7 THT Bl I AUTAT ARTRE FIeA
TATHAT HTF TR Tl ANReTg (kT 9BRaT s T afdas; |

(¥) TI¥ ATl ATepRr qiiverties, qiiveiye et smaw, Jdrhr ades a9r dar
ARl A=A FoaTeteh AT (HUF T T SAehebl TTR{AHT ATNT T T
Tg | TR AUl AT FaAT Fafd THEISHAT g3 AU AGQE FerHT 9"
FUGET ¥ fafTSe YebRep! 287 Wifdferes el oI Gl a1 a9 AT T8+ 99, |

(W) TR AT ANREATS FEHT TS 94 famA oW U9 awiew @i AT
I, |

(%) UHIEHF TR FAUTCAT ANTREATE FEAT ST b qar fadig Fear qure
ATTREATE ¥ G8T a1g T Taeerd T G T 943 |

(9)  THATSIATAYT eieb qAT [oeila WEATESel qIpUeh (a9 I agh a0 GEHT T
AT ANTRETE Ak T 19 RIS a1+ S |

FEITA AT-ATHT FoaTeAsh ATHITS dlebehl HTIRUSTAT Tl Forward, Options, Swap, Futures
STear fata= SRAfev (Derivatives) ST THI=IT FRIEARES TH T G |

TR fagell AT g SRAfcs FRIAaREwH! g1 el fafaa el gafad &= qar
79 Sepept faraelT fafmer s faammere s aikaewedr SdmET W@ TS, |

Electronic Cheque Clearing S+

TEITH] ATNT F9T [Fadieg 39t de7 el Nepal Electronic Cheque Clearing (ECC) Rule
Book, Nepal Electronic Cheque Clearing (ECC) Operating Rule ¥ Cheque Standard &
Specification @] 9 ¥ FUTd [FAARy e99 fafAds®l M, MRIe0, FRENE qw=aHr
SETIH MIAT RIS G |

() ECC #I #RIER AfFT q9aTd Jaadivash AT ECC Rule Book W ST 3T Af@Uepl
ﬂwwﬁrﬁwﬁmﬁsmﬁﬁmgﬁaﬁﬁ?ﬁmew%amﬁ%ﬁw
TIIETHT G a7 AT T THFRT A=TH @RI (Net Clearing Position) T9 St
dfeFg FRATATAT TSI FEIHT fFT qiwr IFe®drg | goured = I -

frrafes o= Net Clearing Position | §ed#we g1 9™
YT T TR/

frafaa frafes T (Regular Clearing Session) | fesdTr 3:.00 & fesEr 390 T

TRIET =TT =ieh/ STTe frediey a7 ¥ fagdr 300 au fesdr 390 s

(Non-Standard Cheque/Draft Clearing Session)

RICEIREEPENERRIERCER fereT 99:30 @S forer 9q:¥0 o

(First Express Clearing Session)

T TR Ay T & fasar 9330 awr fegar QR ¥o o

(Second Express Clearing Session)

FT Ty frraliy 99 & fegdr 30 a9 fogdr :¥o a9

(Third Express Clearing Session)

¥ 209 N § Td 91T A AU =Fee A/ AeATIR AAER T [FeEr el g5 fad A
frerates g ¥ |91 e Ry T8 |
& YEFH ARGAT A FAANF & |
() ECC ®RIARHT @ a1 SHAT YTl Af~dd IRIT (Net Clearing Position) 79 SedT
Ayt TFEfrId IeeeEdl @rdardT @< a7 wFT (Debit or Credit) T faetfaemar
FAFRTAT @IATHT THH AT TUH] Ahl HFRAT T TF AehgRT o qar fairg

%O



FeaEEdr ot feara fHeme f&9 (Business Settlement Day) @7 @TNT Y=l Sz
qTET AT g THA 9T TH T HTIH T T 4Gl H Aidded Aad w9A77 feama
9T famefa TR S 3T aReT BT NS |

(3) ECC 9T G=ATA=HT AU TE Sebebl Alehy FATATH SRTT q4T feame fAe s
(Payment & Settlement Centre) @ST T ATGIIHRAT ATAR Al FEATAIA Payment &
Settlement TFI=AT FTIET FARAEIT T |

(¥) TARIE b Faaieg o TTHT GooTeTHl ATGHHH! 2al oF JAT faxiig Feameed
TEhaTs =6 1 &l MICR =& | ST IO 3 | TEhaT Ut R (Non—
MICR) el famafvy 209 99T HaTwa™ Jdad F9ET g4 ¥ 41 999rq MICR
=hehl WA [qay g7 aawdr Hargusl gar |iel FHIMH T R1Sq g4 ar fHaerd
SRr IRTHT G | 09 FES QT 9T A@fg f@f=auar Non-MICR 3#gs 0%
HHST HATEFE A FHar T fadear T gwrel g5 fa7 77 NCHL ECC
gueiraT Non Standard Session ATha faraits g =awen fadguss | @9, o
FEAITHT THEIHT db qAT AT ARATeed ATRAT AEFeeedls qarad T ey
JHA TS 91 |

() Sfeaf@d Nepal ECC Rule Book, Nepal ECC Operating Manual, and Cheque Standard &
Specification ®T 79 SeaTa ATAYARAT HTAR FAIT & qH |

(%) 090 MG § T IRG AU AT Aepebl ATF FATAVSY ATAREFT AT faar, Fucaet
forr 7 afex g faarer famee aewdr s famwr w99 Sware wfww feama faar
g |

(9) 3feif@d Nepal ECC Rule Book, Nepal ECC Operating Manual ¥ Cheque Standard &
Specification TIATT T T |

(5) TAHIE =F [Ny Tl Fgar  dwavd s Cheque  Standard  and
Specification AT SAYF FIT AMGUHT TTAT I b qoT fairg dxares MICR =
AT T gAEET @arsar MICR Code Line #T Cheque Serial Number ¥ Bank Code
AeFFTAT Field 2% ATTaTT g o |

fasel o =% oAy v

Tl = (Al awaeia faaelt Hqemer = ferafcs gi quewr gar faeelr qarer =

frrafigs®l FRER THT Al FaRE 899 "hd T /TRIST I°g | JuTa [Faais arsadt

YIHAT [dg THHH! HLATH FHH BTAATs qaad AT AT = [Fadieg TRAs |

ATl HRTH AF Toaiy TwweAT

Q) FITEAT HETHT = [Faiigs FRER Gl Faaly esd arhd 16/ R8T 99, |

() AT Ay aew fa. @ gear a8 A9 YRATHT ghHT ARl FAXIT TTTIEH
T AT AATT o [qAdey TS, |

fafaeT TatIFesAT FH Mokl A AT Aldihebe IUA IRTEH @ WA fawrae
YRIRTT g TR ¥ AXAT B8 JATAT A THIAH TH AbaTd FoTTadqAaTe S a0
fo<irar HeaTes dTed a7 Afh a1 LT T AITSH AT T8l §aT SSAqIAIT TaATdR
faeprar Sepeeet TN UTEFEedTs A9 [HiamepT fasmue gehiTa T S AT Aidfhebe
U RIS b T /RIS qaedT 9 a7 fAeer Ay wivwesr g | afe aa<r fasmae
YT TRTE AT Aldithebd WRT T TRIST FRWT S 41 fadig Teaes goael ar
YT FAAT e Tgehl JISUAT qUTT A b UA, 04T THITH FRATE I, |
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GraT AT/ FHAT el Faar/ My Jqarsedre o T /RS TRl

TEITHT Yokl Afh /FH /FHFIAT /A8 FEATEwR] @TaT AT/ Fepdl ra=dl qa1/ Aeerare
79 Skl 99 AT http://acstatus.nrb.org.np ¥ " =a=aT WwHl G | Ih AGATEE |
afe T/ AgeaT o /fai @aTewer GEHeHT AT User ID ¥ Password S aeT
foxirar @@ o favmrare yaTd T SFaRdT AURe gt dere @l User ID X
Password {1 9 Siepepl JaTgeHl I<h SMTAT ARad FoT/MEemars sfeprives @i
JATEHT AMETH a7 FeTTATaRET HH FRATET TEIET T Grehl [qavor FEieard
[Tt 939 99 G | @1 AET &l qirdd Afh /HH/ HFIAIh] TR0 @TAes dh
TIS, | X FA AT bel @IATETA BT T AMBTRT gHAT AET GIATET AFbT THIA S, |
Al GEIH] R d9] 9AER TR ¥ JdTeaHT HURT AT ATARE] RHERATE
TCHT Tt o/ foxia Feer 7 {9 HEaR T B |

JHfE#T HTA Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA), 2010 MR X e
fadia SeamEsd JHRES] FRardal T IAESH WU AUHT [MhIesel HRIGRD! [Fal
FHRHT ATANE AT YaATeTs AFHN RIS I FTT Whl @ | Ih B AR
FRIARE! FTHFRI TRIGT THHEEHT TG Fhald FATIIANG b qaT faeiiar Geares
THA I EaT [q FRATEe PRIARD! [Fa30 AR G T 9T AThRA AR XRREAT
FIRETHER FERIAT (Inter-Governmental Agreement) TTHUY Z4a=dT TwHl G | T, AT
ARHRS T GEIIH] ArIRILHR] FERIAT TRAGHS] HTCATHT dehicqeh qaRIT AXE oI
qqr fadig ARATEed ARl ATARE AT YTl TAATEE Www.irs.gov/fatca-registration
AT TA1 A AHRE! FRATAESH] GTal FFaedl [aeror Iuaed RIS 99 ga1 el FHIfeTH
T /RIS 998, | 9 a9 aHiisTH FHRE ATARE AT JaqTars @rar FFaedl faazo
T MHATST TS |

T YAF A queer AT e qfacd qar we Ade afeddr afie wraasr
framT Twer afqard wowr T W udE | WY, I FAASHT FEATEATR STATHAF
qEaegHT qEafedd qarar faera dwdr gearad arifaer SATaes FEie T ATHE TH
qUHT Q4 a7 B 79 Sepepl S AR AR T T O ) | TG AhATE FUKALTIHT
FHAT A FRHASTAATs GHEvad FEATR] ATHAR] ATIRB! TTAT (T893 |

AGIIAAF THHT (9 FaeT

R FGATT qAT YRATAATR] AGTIRIET T AQGTARET RS ATqATd, AThT A9 feara,
TS JATE [qaRe 991 =7 fa<i fqarues gaird T HAdr ol faard fqawer g T+
AGMIREAFATE HIAT THIAH FRATET TH TAUR [FH@ Shedel A9 AL THIIATE
Tearars fawTeer s |

Y T RAT g FRATE

qaTeR (e St AT (G Tl FVRAT TS A6 Ak TA, 045 HT THT 400 FTHITH
FRATEN EE |

4. ERET X F9H

Q) TG Fepare TFATT TR TRTHT FETIRT RS @RS TRTH F -

THIRd (e, R05q & fafay sxawar Fvawmr Mo 7. 92 @ Sy iuer fAgere
aqgr 4@ qeErd fAfg R0sR WE 3 W OGN wuwr 78 favmew gEEferd qeqor
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